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COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

1000 COMMONWEALTH AVENUE

NEWTON CENTRE, MA 02459-1449
TELEPHONE (617) 796-1305
FAX (617) 796-1196
dwilkinson@newtonma.gov

DAVID C. WILKINSON
COMPTROLLER

December 20, 2011

Members of the Board of Aldetmen
Mayor Setti D. Watren
Citizens and Taxpayers of the City of Newton

I am pleased to transmit to you the City of Newton’s Comptrehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011. This report has been prepared by the Comptroller’s Office of the City in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica (GAAP) as prescribed by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The report consists of management’s tepresentations concetning the finances of the City. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and teliability of all of the information presented in this report. To
ptovide a teasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a comprehensive internal
conttol framework that is designed both to protect the assets of the City from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh theit benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements
will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this
financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Sullivan, Rogers & Company, LLC, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants, who have been hired by and teport to the City’s Board of Aldermen. The independent auditors
unqualified (“clean”) opinion on the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011 is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this repott on pages 1 and 2.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was patt of a broadet, federally mandated “Single Audit”
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the
audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requitements, with special emphasis on internal
controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the
City’s separately issued Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, Compliance and Federal Award
Programs.

GAAP require that management provide a nartative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



History and Profile

The City of Newton was settled in 1639 and incotporated as a City in 1873. The City is located approximately seven
miles from downtown Boston and is bordered by the West Roxbuty section of Boston on the southeast, the Town of
Needham on the southwest, the Towns of Wellesley and Weston on the west, the City of Waltham and Town of
Weston on the north; and the Town of Brookline and the Allston-Brighton sections of Boston on the east.

The City has a population of 83,829 according to the 2000 fedetal census and occupies a land area of 18.33 square
miles. The City is principally suburban-residential in chatacter and consists of 13 distinct villages — Auburndale;
Chestnut Hill; Newton Centre; Newton Corner; Newton Highlands; Newton Lowet Falls; Newton Uppet Falls;
Newtonville; Nonantum; Oak Hill; Thompsonville; Waban; and West Newton. Open space comprises 19.6% of the
City’s total land area, of which 55% is publicly owned.

Newton has a diversified economic base with approximately 45,500 individuals employed in 3,700 establishments
within the boundaries of the City, with an estimated annual payroll of $2.2 billion. Businesses are generally small and
service otiented with retail and wholesale trade and setvices accounting for 74% of all jobs.

Commercial uses occupy 4.1% of the City’s land area. Nearly 24% of commetcial land parcels ate office uses; 21%
are small retail uses; and 6% are storage or warehouse uses. Only 1.1% of the City’s land area is industrial. Newton is
a desirable community to live and work in due to its proximity to Boston; an excellent public school system; multiple
transpottation systems; attractive neighbothoods; high property values; and well managed local government. Newton
has an award winning public library and a City museum that was a stop on the Underground Railroad.

Otganizational Structure

The City is governed under a home-rule charter, which vested executive authority and responsibility in an elected
Mayor, who serves a four-year term. Legislative authotity is vested in a 24-member Board of Aldermen, of which
eight members are elected from the City’s eight watrds and sixteen are elected at large. Members of the Board of
Aldermen are elected every two years. An eight member school committee is elected every two years and is
responsible for appointing the Superintendent of Schools, who has tesponsibility for the daily administration of the
Newton Public Schools.

Setvices

The City provides a complete range of municipal setvices including education, public safety, public works, recteation,
library, cultural and health and human services. The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority provides public water
supply and sewerage treatment setvices.

Repotting Entity

The basic financial statements along with the combining statements and schedules included in this repott relate to the
activities under the direction and control of the Mayot, Boatd of Aldermen and School Committee. The activities of
the Newton Contributory Retirement System ate included in this repott as a blended component unit as presctibed by
GAAP. 'The activities of the Newton Community Development Authority; Newton Commonwealth Foundation;
and Newton Community Farm Inc. are disctretely presented component units. The Newton Housing Authority is
excluded from this report because it falls outside the ditection and control of the Mayor and Boatd of Aldermen.
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Financial Management

The Mayor is responsible for the preparation of the City’s capital improvement plan, and annually recommended
capital and operating budgets. The Board of Aldermen is responsible for review and approval of all approptiations
that are recommended by the Mayor. An eight member Finance Committee of the Board of Aldermen oversee
financial policy and a majority of the membership of the Finance Committee also serves on the Audit Subcommittee.

The City’s senior financial management team consists of the Chief Operating and Financial Officers, who setve on the
Mayor’s staff; the Treasurer/Collector and Chief Assessor who are appointed by the Mayor and approved by the
Boatd of Aldermen, and the Comptroller who is appointed by the Board of Aldermen.

The City’s three-member Board of Assessors, appointed by the Mayor, is responsible for maintaining accurate real
estate and personal property values. Property values are adjusted annually to capture changes in the local real estate
matrket and to make certain the City’s assessed valuations are fair and accurate.

The Treasurer/Collectot is responsible for revenue collections, cash and debt management, and the administration of
parking violations. Real estate and personal propetty taxes ate billed quatterly, thereby eliminating the need to borrow
in anticipation of revenue. A lock-box system is used for the majority of real estate, personal property, motor vehicle
and utility cash collections.

The Comptroller is responsible for maintaining the City’s accounting records, and reporting the City’s financial
activity and position. Detailed monthly revenue and expenditure information is provided on-line to operating
departments. Monthly comparative financial management repotts are issued to the Mayot, Board of Aldermen and
public on the Comptroller’s page of the City web site. Un-audited budgetary basis year-end financial repotts are issued
within 60 days of the close of the fiscal yeat, and audited financial statements are typically issued prior to the end of
the calendar year.

During the past fiscal year, the Mayor’s Office; the City’s financial management team; and the City’s Finance
Committee developed a more comprehensive set of financial management policies, which were referred to the Mayor
and full Board of Aldermen for approval. These policies were formally adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
and are posted on the City’s web site undet:

www.newtonma.gov/comptrol/fy2011/05092011/2011 %20fnancial%20guidelines.pdf.

Economic Condition and Outlook

While Newton is not immune to regional and national economic development trends, the City is charactetized as a
self-sustaining and stable local economy. Histotically, Newton has housed a myriad of economic activities ranging
from manufacturing to high-tech industties that have setved not only local residents, but also the Greater Boston area,
and in some cases national and international markets. The City’s proximity to Boston; location on major regional
highway systems; existing building stock; and solid and extensive physical infrastructure make Newton an attractive
place for metro-area regional and national investments ranging from corporate headquarters to light manufacturing
and regional retail.

‘The majority of the City’s business establishments are located in the 13 village centers, as well as in some of the
principal traffic corridors such as Needham, Boylston, and California Streets. There are two major concentrations of
light manufacturing and non-setvice related industties, both of which are located on the edges of the City; one in
Nonantum along the Watertown line, and a second in Newton Uppet Falls, along the Needham line.
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Accounting System and Budgetary Control

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls to:

e  Properly safeguard assets.

® Provide reasonable assurance on the accuracy and reliability of the accounting recotds used in the prepatation of
the basic financial statements.

¢ Provide reasonable assurance relative to compliance with legal and contractual constraints on the custody and use
of assets.

Departmental expenditure budgets are prepared and accounted for on a line item basis. However, legally binding
approptiations are made for Personal Services, Expenses, Fringe Benefits, Debt Service and Capital Outlay. Line item
transfers within an expenditure categoty may be made with the approval of the Department Head and Comptroller.
Transfers between expenditure categoties requite the approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase otdets, contracts and other commitments for expenditutes are
recotded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the Governmental Funds to maintain
budgetaty control.

An analysis of all legally adopted operating and capital budgets ate presented on pages 98 - 120 of this repott.

On September 7, 2011 the Massachusetts Department of Revenue cettified the City’s June 30, 2011 free cash (Genetal
Fund fund balance available for appropriation) at $6,793,864. ‘The City’s previous year free cash certification was
$8,018,399. Three extraordinaty and non recutring tevenue items generated $5,671,391 ot 70.7% of the June 30, 2010
free cash. These items were: $2,212,763 in telecommunications petsonal propetty taxes resulting from an August
2009 favorable State Appellate Tax Board decision; $2,643,271 in advance payment of deferred in licu of tax payments
on the New Falls 121-A urban excise property; and $815,357 in premiums earned on the Apzil 2010 sale of $26.0
million in general obligation bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City established and conttibuted
$2.6 million to a new “Rainy Day” Stabilization Fund. This sum, plus an additional $500,000 that was contributed to
the fund subsequent to June 30, 2011, is available for meeting extraordinary and unforeseen budget contingencies.

Cash Management

Quarterly billing of real estate and personal property taxes coupled with timely water and sewer utility billing has
eliminated the need to borrow in anticipation of revenue. Idle cash is invested by the Treasurer/Collector and
governed by the Municipal Finance Laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Trust Fund, Permanent Fund and Internal Setvice Fund assets, which the City does not expect to liquidate for current
operations, are invested in U.S. Government, fixed income and/or equity secutities. Professional investment
managers oversee the City’s long-term investments.

The Retirement System’s assets are segregated from other City assets and are managed by a vatiety of professional
investment managers who have been selected by the Retitement Board, with the assistance of an investment
consultant, in order to achieve the Board’s asset allocation policy. An independent custodian bank holds all of the
System’s investments. The City’s Retirement Boatd voted at its May 2007 meeting to transfer investment
management responsibility for the system’s investment pottfolio to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Pension
Reserve Investment Trust effective July 1, 2007.
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Risk Management

The City is self-insured for group health, workers’ compensation, building and general liability insurance. Individual
Internal Service Funds are maintained for purposes of accumulating sufficient assets to meet fund liabilities.

The City purchases property insurance from a commercial insurance company but funds annual premiums from
earnings on the building self insurance fund assets. All other risk exposutes ate self insured by the City.

In accordance with the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45, the City
began to recognize the cost of health benefits in the same manner that has been required for pension benefits for the
past several years in the year ended June 30, 2008. This means that instead of recognizing the cost of health benefits
as they are being paid out, the cost of these benefits are now recognized as they are earned. Although there are no
requitements that the City change the method of funding these benefits, the cumulative impact of the change in
financial reporting over the past four fiscal years is an $118.1 million increase in expenses in the government-wide
financial statements and a corresponding decline in untestricted net assets.

Newton, like most communities in Massachusetts and for that matter New England, does not curtently have a plan
for funding health benefits on a basis other than the historical pay as you go approach. In an effort to start a
discussion about this issue, the fiscal year 2011 budget did include a $137,000 appropriation for purposes of seeding a
post retirement health trust fund. On October 4, 2010 the Mayor and Board of Aldermen voted to authorize a trust
pursuant to Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32, Section 20 and the $137,000 was transferred to the new fund.
Over the course of the next several months the City expects to evaluate with our actuary the feasibility of beginning to
fund health care benefits for all new hires on an actuarial basis. Please refer to note 12 (pages 62-65) for mote
detailed information on the City’s health benefit obligations.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

Subsequent to June 30, 2011 the City entered into thtee year collective bargaining agreements with all employees of
the City and most of the Newton Public Schools’ employees. All contracts contain changes in health care plan design
that are intended to keep the total annual increase in salaties/wages and health care benefits to not more than 2.5%
per year for fiscal years 2012; 2013; and 2014.

Audit Committee
In order to strengthen the City’s internal controls and financial repotting, the Board of Aldermen
has established a permanent audit committee, consisting of both representatives of the Board of Aldermen and

Newton residents with financial management and audit education and expetience. The appointments to this
committee are pending.

Awards and Acknowledgments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City maintained a Aaa credit rating with Moody’s Investor Setvice.



Before concluding, I would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the exceptional work and professional
commitment of the staff of the Comptroller’s Office: Julie Zakak ; Regina Zegarelli; Mary Santoes; Denise Paone;
Ann-Marie Daley and Maria Mastroinni. Special thanks also go to the public accounting firm of Sullivan, Rogers &
Company for the efficient completion of this yeat’s audit and for all of their advice and assistance in the prepatation
of this repott and over the coutse of the year.

Respectfully,

-

David C. Wilkinson
Comptroller
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SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC
Corporate Place I, Suite 204 « 99 South Bedford Street
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803

P+ 781-229-5600 F «781-229-5610 www.sullivan-rogers.com

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Board of Aldermen and Mayor
City of Newton, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Newton, Massachusetts (City), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (except for the Newton
Conttibutoty Retirement System, the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm,
Inc., which ate as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010), which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City
management. Our tesponsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm,
Inc., which tepresent 31.8% and 5.0%; 31.7% and 5.0%; and 7.4% and 3.7% of the assets, net assets and revenues,
tespectively, of the discretely presented component units. Those financial statements wete furnished to us, and our
opinions, insofat as they relate to the amounts included for the Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the
Newton Community Farm, Inc., are based on the teport of the othet auditots.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica and
the standatds applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards requite that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assutance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm, Inc. wete not audited in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosutes in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the repotts of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repotts of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present faitly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City as of June 30, 2011 (except for the Newton Contributory Retirement System, the Newton
Commonwealth Foundation, Inc. and the Newton Community Farm, Inc., which ate as of and for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010), and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof
and the budgetary comparisons for the genetal fund and community preservation fund for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As mote fully described in Note 1B, the City has implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement #54, Fund Balance Roporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.



In accordance with Government Aunditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2011, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of intetnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
conjunction with this repott in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis (located on pages 3 through 16) and cettain pension and other postemployment benefits information
(located on pages 73 through 74) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is requited by the Governmental Accounting Standards Boatd,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial repotting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion ot provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assutrance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s financial statements as a whole. The introductoty section, combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, additional information and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules and additional information are the responsibility of management and wete detived from and
telate ditectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including compating and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepate the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is faitly stated in all matetial respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not exptess an opinion ot provide any assurance on them.

VAL S R G U

December 20, 2011



Management’s Discussion and Analysis



MANAGEMENT"’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Newton (the City), we offer teaders of the City’s financial statements this nartative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Financial Highlights:

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal yeat by $249.7 million (nez
assets). 'The City has negative unrestricted net assets (totaling $65.3 million) in the City’s governmental
activities and $15.1 million in unrestricted net assets in its business type activities.

The City’s total net assets decteased by $31.9 million or 11.3% in fiscal year 2011. Net assets of
governmental activities decreased by $39 million, a 17.8% decline from fiscal year 2010, while net assets of
business-type activities increased by $7.1 million, or 11.4%, from the prior fiscal year.

Unrestricted governmental net assets decreased by $38.2 million to ($65.3) million at June 30, 2011. The
decline in unrestricted governmental activities net assets is principally the result of the recognition of $33.7
million in new post -retirement health liabilities. Newton’s June 30, 2011 net OPEB liability for
governmental activities now stands at $115.3 million and $137,295 has been accumulated to meet these long
term obligations.

The total cost of all City services for fiscal yeat 2011 was $434.8 million, $397.1 million (91.3%) of which was
for governmental services, and $37.7 million (8.7%) of which was for business type setvices. This represents
an increase of $14.6 million or 3.5% from the total cost of setvices in the previous fiscal year.

A total of $90.7 million or 22.8% of governmental setvices wete financed from program revenue, leaving
77.2% to be financed from general revenues and interfund transfers of the City. Real estate and personal
propetty tax revenue continues to represent the single largest source of genetal revenue.

At June 30, 2011, the City’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $60.7 million. The
combined governmental funds fund balance decteased by $24.1 million (28.4%) from the prior yeat’s ending
fund balance, primarily due to the use of prior yeat revenues and other financing sources for the completion
of the new Newton North High School capital project and othet governmental activities.

The City’s general fund reported total fund balance of $30.8 million at the end of fiscal year 2011, a $4.3
million (12.3%) decrease from the total fund balance at June 30 of the ptiot fiscal year. The unassigned
portion of the fund balance for the general fund was $14.1 million or 4.4% of total general fund revenues and
other financing soutces. The unassigned fund balance includes $2.6 million that the City set aside during
fiscal year 2011 as a “Rainy Day” Stabilization fund and $6.8 million in “Free Cash” that has been cettified as
being available for appropriation by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue.

The City’s total bonded debt (bonds and notes) increased by $4.9 million ot 2.3% to $221.7 million duting the
year, principally as a result of additional debt issued for the new Newton Notth High School construction
project. Newton North project debt accounts for $138 million ot 62.2% of the City’s total bonded debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

This discussion and analysis is intended to setve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s
basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial
statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements. This repott also contains othet supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readets with a
broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similat to a ptivate sector business. The statement of net assets (pages
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17 and 18) presents information on all of the City’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the difference between the
two repotted as net assets. Over time, increases ot decteases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving ot detetiorating.

The statement of activities (pages 19 and 20) presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in this statement for
some items will only result in cash flows in futute fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements summarize functions and programs of the City that are principally
suppotted by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions and programs that
are intended to tecover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include the broad functions of general government; public safety; education;
public works; health & human setvices; culture and recreation; debt setvice — intetest, and the major setvices provided
within each functional category. The business-type activities of the City include two enterprise activities: the water
system and the sanitary sewer system. Trend information for all yeats since the City’s adoption of the current
reporting model can be found on pages 122-125 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A fizd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-relate legal requirements. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, ptoprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Govetnmental funds: Governmental funds ate used to account for essentially the same functions and programs reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resonrces, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluation a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrowet than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the
governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditutes, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. These reconciliations may be found on
pages 22 and 24.

The City maintains 19 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental funds
balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for
the general fund, the community preservation fund and the high school improvements fund, all of which are considered to be major
funds. Data from the other 16 funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation under the caption non-major
Lovernmental funds. A brief description and individual fund data for each of the non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements beginning on page 75 of this report. The governmental funds financial
statements can be found on pages 21-26 of this report. Trend information may be found on pages 126 and 127 of
this repott.

Proptietaty funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
entetptise funds to account for water and sanitary sewer activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate the costs internally among the City’s vatious functions, including employee health benefits;
workers’ compensation; public building insurance; and general liability self-insurance activities. The setvices provided
by these funds predominately benefit the governmental rather than the business-type functions. Accotdingly, the
internal setvice funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.



Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sanitary sewer activities,
which atre considered major funds of the City. Conversely, all internal service funds are combined into a single,
aggtregate presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. A btief description of each fund and individual
fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements beginning on page 86 of this
report. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on 27-29 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resoutces held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are nof included in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
the funds are not available to support the City’s own functions and activities. The accounting used for fiduciaty funds
is much like that used for proptietary funds.

The fiduciary funds financial statements provide separate information for the pension trust fund of the City. All other
fiduciary funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary funds financial
statements under the captions “private purpose trust funds” and “agency funds”, respectively. A brief desctiption of
each fund and individual fund data for the private purpose trust funds and agency funds ate provided in the form of
combining statements beginning on page 90 of this repott. The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on
pages 30 and 31 of this repott.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can
be found on pages 34-72 of this report. A brief desctiption of new fund balance terminology required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54 for governmental funds is presented on page 40 along with
a detailed analysis of the major components of each fund balance account on page 67. Note 17 (page 68) references
two prior period reclassifications that implementation of Statement 54 has necessitated.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information regarding the City’s progtess in funding its obligation to provide pension
and post-retirement health benefits to its employees. Such information is located on pages 73 and 74 of this report.

The combining statements previously refetred to ate presented immediately following the notes to the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis:

Net Assets: The City’s total assets exceeded total liabilities by $249.7 million at June 30, 2011. This represents a
$31.9 million or 11.3% decline from total net assets at June 30 of the prior year, and a decline of $64.7 million or
20.6% over the past two fiscal years. Trend information for total net assets and its major components ovet the past
five year period is summatized graphically below:

Net Asset Trends for Primary
Government - Last Five Years
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The decline in unrestricted net assets is directly related to the formal recognition of OPEB liabilities beginning in
2008.

The following table presents current and prior year data tegarding the City’s net assets:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets
Current assets.......o.coveeiviinainnn, $  125823,990 § 158,374,513 $§ 27,888,030 $ 29,760,662 $ 153,712,020 $ 188,135,175
Noncurrent assets (excluding
capital assets)...........c....ine 10,688,161 12,743,459 2,118,841 2,358,439 12,807,002 15,101,898
Capital assets (net).................. 402,588,420 378,350,833 74,231,617 65,272,245 476,820,037 443,623,078
Total assets.........coeevvnnnnn. 539,100,571 549,468,805 104,238,438 97,391,346 643,339,059 646,860,151
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 39,525,888 48,808,039 2,257,614 3,912,088 41,783,502 52,720,127
Noncurrent liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 127,028,965 93,394,305 3,077,306 2,211,079 130,106,271 95,605,384
Current debt.................... L. 9,408,367 9,460,500 4,610,497 4,371,395 14,018,864 13,831,895
Noncurrent debt.................... 182,586,433 178,224,800 25,113,517 24,790,355 207,699,950 203,015,155
Total liabilities. .......ccvueun... 358,549,653 329,887,644 35,058,934 35,284,917 393,608,587 365,172,561
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
(net of related debt)............ 211,763,420 194,301,691 . 46,802,526 38,627,779 258,565,946 232,929,470
Restricted........oooviiviiiiiiinn, 34,096,760 52,363,403 7,321,657 13,497,989 41,418,417 65,861,392
Unrestricted.......ccoovvieiiiinn.n.. (65,309,262) (27,083,933) 15,055,372 9,980,661 (50,253,891) (17,103,272)
Total net assets................. $§ 180,550,918 § 219,581,161 $§ 69,179,554 § 62,106,429 $ 249,730,472 $ 281,687,590

The largest portion of the City’s total net assets, $258.6 million, represents the investment in capital assets (e.g., land
and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, road network, water system, sewer
system and construction in progtess) less any related debt used to acquite those assets that is still outstanding. The
City uses these capital assets to provide setvices to citizens thetefore the assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is teported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources to
repay debt must be provided from other soutces, sinice capital assets themselves, cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Please refer to note 6 (page 54) for a detailed calculation of the City’s investment in capital assets, net of
related debt.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, $41.4 million, represents resources that ate subject to restrictions placed
on how they may be used by parties extetnal to the City, of which $19.3 million (46.6%) represents resources
restricted for capital project financing and $10.1 million (24.4%) represents resoutces testricted to community
preservation purposes. A summary of all major components of the restricted net assets may be found on the face of
the Statement of Net Assets, which can be found on page 18 of this report.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total unrestricted net assets declined by $33.1 million as a direct result of
the recognition of $34.6 million in new post tretitement health labilities. All governmental activities unrestricted net
assets have been consumed over the past four yeats with the recognition of liabilities tequired by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement 45. Pages 62 through 65 of this repott provide mote detailed information on
the City’s post tetitement health liabilities that have given tise to the change in financial positions over the past four
yeats.



Changes in net assets:

The following table presents current and prior year data regarding the City’s changes in net assets:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Fees, fines and chatges fot setvices............ $ 21915225 § 20,969,889 $ 45,171,479 § 38,405,378 § 67,086,704 $ 59,375,267
Operating grants and conttibutions............ 66,976,636 65,706,164 847,004 732,948 67,823,640 66,439,112
Capital grants and contributions................ 1,764,258 1,960,084 24,182 245,331 1,788,440 2,205,415
General Revenues:
Real estate and petsonal property taxes........ 239,761,554 232,774,689 - . 239,761,554 232,774,689
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........... 10,541,624 9,860,220 - - 10,541,624 9,860,220
Hotel room occupancy taxes.................... 1,588,882 1,168,095 . - 1,588,882 1,168,095
Meals taXeS. . ..cneieiiiiiii e 1,308,191 382,934 - - 1,308,191 382,934
Penalties and interest on taxes.................. 1,038,225 1,026,507 - - 1,038,225 1,026,507
Payments in lieu of taxes.........coeieivenn.. 515,471 3,270,902 - - 515,471 3,270,902
Community presetvation sutcharges........... 2,352,389 2,288,314 - - 2,352,389 2,288,314
Grtants and conttibutions not restricted
to specific Programs. ......vieuieiiii it 5,596,391 5,891,287 . - 5,596,391 5,891,287
Untestticted investment income................ 454,365 934,313 - - 454,365 934,313
Gain on sales/disposals of capital assets....... 32,280 24,347 - 2,776 32,280 27,123
Othet. ..o e 3,002,856 1,752,802 - - 3,002,856 1,752,802
Total tevenues........cvvvviiiiiiiinan... 356,848,347 348,010,547 46,042,665 39,386,433 402,891,012 387,396,980
Expenses
Genetal government 26,974,952 24,623,302 - - 26,974,952 24,623,302
Public safety........coooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin EIREREAN 55,800,259 52,168,801 - - 55,800,259 52,168,801
Education.........cooiiiiiiinvniiie i 252,413,006 245,946,308 - - 252,413,006 245,946,308
Public works.........oooiiiiiiiiii e 28,410,758 26,138,843 - - 28,410,758 26,138,843
Health and human setvices.................ccoennnn. 10,757,372 10,672,057 - - 10,757,372 10,672,057
Cultute and tecreation............ccoocviiiiiinnnn... 15,092,035 16,245,112 - - 15,092,035 16,245,112
Debt setvice - interest. ... coivaiviiereiririreieninnns 7,670,746 7,234,167 - - 7,670,746 7,234,167
A £ U - - 14,260,631 13,780,687 14,260,631 13,780,687
T - - 23,468,371 23,347,392 23,468,371 23,347,392
Total eXPenses.........ocvuvieieaniiinrnninnnnn. 397,119,128 383,028,590 37,729,002 37,128,079 434,848,130 420,156,669
Change in net assets before transfers..................... (40,270,781) (35,018,043) 8,313,663 2,258,354 (31,957,118) (32,759,689)
Transfers, fet. .. ..o it e 1,240,538 1,376,187 (1,240,538) (1,376,187) - -
Change in Net assets...........oeieiiiiiienineninninnns. (39,030,243) (33,641,856) 7,073,125 882,167 (31,957,118) (32,759,689)
Net assets - beginning of yeat.........ccoouvuinieiin 219,581,161 253,223,017 62,106,429 61,224,262 281,687,590 314,447,279
Net assets - end of year.........ccoviiiiiiniiiiiinan. $ 180,550,918 $ 219,581,161 $ 69,179,554 $ 62,106,429 $ 249,730,472 § 281,687,590

The City’s total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011 increased by $15.5 million (4%) from the ptiot yeat.
Approximately half the increase resulted from increased propetty taxes used to fund governmental activities and the
balance from water and sewer user chatges used to fund business type activities. The 3% inctease in propetty taxes
represents a combination of the 2 /2% increase allowed in the tax levy plus new growth. Water and sewer rates are
adjusted annually in an effort to generate sufficient revenue to meet all water and sewer expenses and to provide
sufficient flexibility to off-set the impact of weather related consumption volatility.

The $2.8 million reduction in payment in lieu of tax revenue is reflective of the fact that the City received a non-
recurring in lieu of tax payment on an urban redevelopment property during the last month of fiscal year 2010.



Hotel room and occupancy and meals tax revenue growth is principally reflective of a full year of tax revenues from
the increased room occupancy tax increase and meals tax implementation that was put in place by the City during the
fall of 2009. The reduced level of investment income eatnings is a function of both smaller capital project fund
available cash balances and record low shott term interest rates.

The following chatt illustrates the distribution of total current year revenues for the primary government, by major
soutce.

FY 2011 TOTAL REVENUE BY SOURCE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

B Propety taxes B Other taxes
O Grants and contributions OFees, fines and charges for service
@ Investment income H All other

Total expenses increased by $14.7 million or 3.5% duting the yeat. The $34.6 million expense associated with fourth
year implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 45 accounted for all of the expense
growth for the year. A schedule summarizing the cumulative impact of the implementation of GASB Statement 45
on all activities is presented on page 63 of this report.

The percentage of total expenditures devoted to education, the City’s single largest category of spending, remained
constant at 58.0%.



The following chart illustrates the distribution of expenses by major function for the primary government for the year
ended June 30, 2011.

FY 2011 TOTAL EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

8 General government B Public safety DO Education
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Govetnmental activities — Governmental activities decteased the City’s net assets by $39 million or 17.8% duting
fiscal 2011, for the reasons cited above. A summary of revenues and major functional expenses is included in the
tables presented previously. In order to assist the reader in understanding more completely the full cost of the major
services provided by the City within each of the broad functional classifications identified above, the Statement of
Activities, presented on pages 19 and 20 of this tepott, provides a detailed accounting of all major service expenses,
related revenues, and each service’s consumption of general revenues (principally property taxes).

As has been the case in all years since the City has adopted this reporting model, all governmental activity setvices,
except for inspectional services, relied on subsidies from general tevenues to one degree or another duting fiscal yeat
2011. Inspectional service department program revenues exceeded total progtam expenses by $2.7 million for the
year.

Business-type activities — Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $7.1 million or 11.4% during
fiscal year 2011. This is primarily the result of increased uset charge revenue resulting from a rate increase that was
put in place effective July 1, 2010, and enhanced revenue collections from the City’s new water metets.



Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds:
As noted eatlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
tequirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may setve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2011, the City’s governmental funds teported a combined fund balance totaling $60.7 million, a $24.1
million decrease from the prior year reported financial position. As noted on page 23, the $12.8 million decline in the
financial position of the High School Improvement Fund accounts for slightly more than half the change in financial
position. This is the result of the fact that during fiscal year 2011 a total of $24.1 million was expended on demolition
of the old North High School building and site work while $11 million in project financing was obtained in the form
of 2 loan from the Massachusetts School Building Authority.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Community Preservation Fund’s financial position declined slightly -
$505,929. This is a result of the fact that during the year project expenditures were incurred against appropriations
funded in ptior fiscal years. The fund ended fiscal year 2011 with $9.4 million in fund equity or slightly more than
three years of total fund revenue. A total of §5.2 million (55.3%) of this sum consists of unexpended multi-year
approptiations. The remaining $4.2 million is available for appropriation for community preservation purposes.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2011 the general fund reported a total fund
balance of $30.8 million, $4.3 million or 12.3% less than the total fund balance for the previous fiscal year. The
unassigned portion of fund balance, however, increased slightly to $14.1 million or approximately 4.4% of total fund
tevenues and other financing sources. Note 14, on page 67 of this report provides a detailed analysis of the major
components of each fund balance category.

City of Newton, Massachusetts
General Fund
Fund Trends — Fiscal year 2011 and (5) previous fiscal years

2011 (1) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Total fund balance $ 30,773,574 $ 19,312,545 $ 20,169,278 $ 19,433,216 $ 23,609,407 $ 20,294,872
Less: Fund balance restrictions for:
Debt services . s aias .+ » « SoURaaEERET oo 0rar oo s 683,320 749,640 881,707
Capital..oooiiiiiiiiiiiiniinrrin g et 108,107 - -
Other postemployment benefits.........cuvieeiiivainnanss 137,295
Less: Fund balance committed for:
Subsequent year's expenditures. ..............vrveriieiens 2,066,320 2,675,133 5,051,017 2,900,000 3,400,000 1,700,000
Capital,.eeiriinriiiiiniciae coir 9,714,755 - - - - -
Continued appropriations. . .......cceieieunerecriiivrsiinss 3,096,013 3,192,017 2,335,964 2,223,358 2,438,391 2,071,369
Less: Fund balance assigned for:
Encumbrances 727,814 1,804,606 1,377,372 867,806 1,446,323 2,106,351
116,627 . i : ’ -
Unassigned fund balance............c...ooovvovesvieenn.s 14,123,323 10,891,149 10,523,218 13,442,052 16,324,693 14,417,152
Total revenues & other financing sources.......cccvvviieivna... $ 321,055,179 $ 318,872,777 % 310,562,043 % 296,667,211 § 286,109,886 $ 272,578,602
Total fund balance as % total revenues and ofs................ 9.6% 6.1% 6,5% 6.6% 8.3% 7.4%
Unassigned fund balance as % total revenues and ofs......... 4.4% 3.4% 3.4% 4.5% 5.1% 5.3%
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(1) Starting in fiscal year 2011 general fund balance is being repotted in accordance with Governmental Accounting

Standards Board Statement #54, I'und Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions

Total fiscal year 2011 general fund revenues and other financing soutces increased by $2.2 million or 0.7%, to $321.1

million.
% Increase/ %
Soutce Amount of Total (Decrease) Change

Real estate and personal property taxes.....ocoovvivaniiinainis $ 240,732,647 75.0% $ 7,006,470 3.0%
Motor vehicle excise taxes. . ....o.oveeiviviiiiiiiiiinan. 10,463,796 3.3% 241,262 2.4%
Hotel room occupancy taxes........o.ocevineiniinininn... 1,588,882 0.5% 420,787 36.0%
Meals tAXES. ... .ovti i e 1,308,191 0.4% 925,257 241.6%
Penalties and interest on taxes..............ooviiieininininnn.. 1,011,005 0.3% 8,199 0.8%
Licenses and permits.........o.oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i, 5,130,138 1.6% 996,556 24.1%
Intergovernmental................c 50,534,834 15.7% (2,797,570) -5.2%
Charges for serviCes.........oooiiiiiiiiiiii 1,623,604 0.5% (23,739) -1.4%
Fines and forefitures...............oco 1,897,413 0.6% (187,538) -9.0%
Investment I0COME. .......ooiiiiiiiii e 431,344 0.1% (456,225) -51.4%
Payments in lieu of taxes............oooooviiiiiiii s, 439,721 0.1% (2,655,338) -85.8%
Special a8SESSMENES. ...t 131,050 0.0% 56,776 76.4%
MiSCEllANEOUS. . .1vieiiiitiieitieeii i eeen e ee e ea s 1,061,254 0.3% 825,759 350.6%

Total fevenues. ... ...t 316,353,879 98.5% 4,360,656 1.4%
Premium from issuance of bonds/notes........................ 168,147 0.1% (647,210) -79.4%
Sale of capital assets.........covveuiiiiiiiiii 16,438 0.0% (2,103) -11.3%
Transfers from other funds..................... 4,516,715 1.4% (1,528,941) -25.3%
Total revenues and other financing sources.................... $ 321,055,179 100.0% $§ 2,182,402 0.7%

Propetty tax growth of §7 million (3.3%) was off-set by revenue declines of $2.8 million in intetgovernmental
revenues and $2.7 million in payments in lieu of taxes. The $2.8 million reduction in intergovernmental revenue is the
result of the fact that Newton received the final Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) project debt

service reimbursement in fiscal year 2010.  All future MSBA reimbursements are dedicated to direct capital project
funding and not debt service payments. The $2.7 million in lieu of tax payment reduction is reflective of the fact that
the City received a non-recurring payment on an utban redevelopment property in late 2010.

Revenue growth in meals and hotel room and occupancy tax revenue is reflective of the first full year effects of
changes made in these two local option taxes during fiscal year 2010. Eighty-two percent of the reported increase in

license and permit revenue can be accounted for in a single building permit which was issued during the fall of 2010

for new construction on the campus of Boston College.
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Total general fund expenditures and transfers to other funds totaled $325.4 million, an increase of $5.6 million or
1.9% over the previous fiscal yeat.

% Increase/ %
Amount of Total (Decrease) Change
General government............ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiii $ 12,417,168 3.8% (1,030,157) -1.7%
Public safety.........coooveiiiiiiiiiiia 34,762,099 10.6% 585,653 1.7%
Education. . , . issmssinssssiminsiasiss s adn@ st snrissns 165,810,597 51.0% 2,077,259 1.3%
Public works. ... 21,455,318 6.6% 610,665 2.9%
Health and human services..................oooaL. 3,790,917 1.2% 4,946 0.1%
Culture and recreation.............cocoviiiiiii i, 8,962,738 2.8% (1,235,505) -12.1%
Retirement benefits.........coo.oovii 53,157,157 16.3% 3,216,209 6.4%
Workers' compensation insurance........................... 1,048,014 0.3% (301,986) -22.4%
Property and liability insurance................ooocoiinoo. 397,789 0.1% 71,620 22.0%
Claims and judgements................ooovviiiiiiii .., 160,733 0.0% 60,280 60.0%
State assesments and charges..................ooiiienna.., 5,472,487 1.7% (146,830) -2.6%
Debt service
Principal.......ooooi 8,705,500 2.7% 1,212,000 16.2%
Interest st i e i e SR s riaess 7,381,915 2.3% 465,647 6.7%
Total expenditures. ... ....coeoeeeiiieiiiairiniiirinnn.. 323,522,432 99.4% 5,589,801 1.8%
Transfers to other funds...............o.oi 1,854,928 0.6% 58,049 3.2%
Total expenditures and transfers............................. $ 325,377,360 100.0% $ 5,647,850 1.8%

The latgest growth area in the General Fund spending was for retirement benefits. Expenditures for retirement
benefits (including pay-as-you-go post retirement health and life benefits and the Commonwealth’s on behalf
contribution to the Massachusetts Teachers Retitement System for Newton educators) increased by $3.2 million ot
7.3% for the year. This amounted to 57.1% of total spending growth for the City’s General fund for the year. The
$3.2 million increase in retitement spending consisted of $1.7 million in additional conttibutions to the Newton
Retirement System; $1.4 in additional Commonwealth of Massachusetts on-behalf payments made to the
Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System for Newton educators; and $140,000 in increased pay-as-you-go retiree
health premium growth.

Although public education spending continued to represent the single largest spending priority of the City, growth in
spending for this purpose was limited to $2.1 million or 1.4% mote than the prior fiscal year. Reported increases in
debt setvice and property insurance premiums were related to new debt setvice requirements for the new Newton
North High School and increased propetty insurance premiums on the new high school building,

The votets of the City elected to implement the Community Preservation Act (CPA), with a 1% surcharge on all real
estate tax bills, in November 2001. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City realized $3 million in CPA
fund revenue, $2.4 million (80%) of which came from the local property tax surcharge. State matching funds
continued to decline, from $761,914 in fiscal year 2010 to $616,589 in fiscal year 2011. [Fund expenditures totaled
$3.5 million for the year, $2.4 million (68.6%) of which was for community housing purposes and $882,788 (25.2%)
was for debt service on two land acquisition projects.

The high school improvements fund was established to account for major renovations to the City’s Newton South

High School and the construction of a new Newton Notth High School. The fund ended fiscal year 2011 with a $3.3
million fund balance.
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On June 14, 2010 the new North High School project atchitect cettified substantial completion of the project and the
building was turned over to the City of Newton for use as a public school building for the 2010 — 2011 academic -
yeat.

Duting fiscal year 2011 expenditures of $24.1 million were made for demolition of the old North High School
building and for project site work. All project financing is now complete.

Proptietary funds - The City’s proprietaty funds provide the same information found in the government-wide
statements, but in slightly more detail. Restricted proptietary net assets represent capital grant funds whose purposes
ate restricted for improvements to the physical infrastructure of the City’s water and sewer systems. Proprietary fund
net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt reptesents principally the City’s water supply and distribution
system and the sanitary sewer collection system.

The financial position of the City’s sewer fund incteased by $3.3 million to $36.4 million at June 30, 2011. This
tesulted from a combination of a July 1, 2010 sewer use charge rate increase and billings and collections resulting from
the installation of new meters. A total of $25.9 million ot 71% of the fund’s net assets represent investments in
capital assets (net of debt) and another $1 million reptesents resoutces legally restricted for future sewer system capital
improvements. Unrestricted fund net assets amounted to $9.5 million at June 30, 2011.

The financial position of the City’s water fund also improved duting the last fiscal year from $29 million at June 30,
2010 to $32.7 million at June 30, 2011. The $3.8 million improvement in the financial position of this fund was also a
function of the July 1, 2010 water rate increase and improved billings and collections resulting from the installation of
new water meters.

A total of $20.9 million or 72% of the total fund net assets represents the City’s investment in water system capital
assets (net of debt) and another $6.3 million represents resoutces legally restricted for future water system capital
improvements. Unrestricted fund net assets wete $5.5 million.

The City is currently in the process of completing the replacement of all water meters that are used for purposes of
water and sewer fund billings.

The financial position of the City’s Intetnal Setvice Funds declined by $247,970, or 1.9%, to $13 million during the
yeat ended June 30, 2011. Internal service funds are used to account for the City’s self-insured group health
insurance; wotkers compensation; and general liability risk exposutes and to fund property insurance premiums for
$699.7 million in insured City buildings and contents. Detailed information on the self-insurance funds is presented
on pages 86-89.

The financial position of the City’s group health self -insurance fund declined by $512,538 (4.7%) during the year,
ptincipally as a result of a decision not to inctease premiums for the City’s Tufts Health plan. The year-end net asset
balance of $10.4 million represents approximately 2.7 months of average paid claims for the year and is in line with
the City’s fund equity policy for this fund. As noted in the notes to the financial statements, the City did implement
cettain changes in health plan design subsequent to June 30, 2011. These plan design changes are intended to keep
the City’s health insurance and employee compensation cost growth (exclusive of pension and OPEB) at not more
than 2.5% per year over the next three fiscal yeats.

The financial position of the City’s wotkets’ compensation self- insurance fund improved by $503,821 during the year
as a result of positive investment earnings on fund assets under professional management. 'The June 30, 2011 fund
equity of $1.6 million provides a cushion against volatility in investment performance and extraordinary and
unforeseen claims experience, the later of which is particulatly important because the City does not purchase any
commercial stop loss insurance on workets’ compensation program claims.

The financial condition of the City’s building insurance fund continued to decline as a result of the fact that fund
investment income does not match the resources withdrawn from the fund each year for commercial property
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ihsurance premiums. At the current rate of resoutce use, the fund will no longer be available to finance building

insurance premiums within three yeats.

Fiduciary funds — The net assets of the City’s contributoty retirement system increased by $18.8 million (8.4%) to

$241.4 million during the system’s fiscal year that ended December 31, 2010, as a result of positive investment
petformance. The City made its actuarially required contribution to the fund in full. More specific information about

the local retirement system may be found on pages 68-71 of this report.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

The difference between the original General Fund budget of $297.5 million (including prior year encumbrances and

continuing appropriations) and the final amended budget of $305.6 million amounts to 2.7% and can be summarized

as follows:

Description Amount

Snow and ice control..............oo $ 2,565,000
Stabilization fund...................o L 2,643,271
Capital outlay and improvements................... 1,437,437
School health insurance.............................. 821,664
Public safety salaries & overtime.................... 335,000
OthEL. .o 328,506

Total supplemental approptiations................ $ 8,130,878

Thete wete no deficits incurred in the appropriations of the various departments of the City. All but $1.7 million
(0.5%) of total appropriations were expended, encumbeted, ot continued into fiscal year 2012 for completion of the
approptiated purposes at June 30, 2011. Please refer to pages 98-107 for a complete accounting of budget to actual

experience for all City departments, at their legal level of control.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets — The City’s investment in capital assets fotr governmental and business-type activities, net of
accumulated depreciation of $195.7 million, as of June 30, 2011, amounts to $476.8 million. The investment in
capital assets includes land and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment,

infrastructure and construction in progtess.

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land and improvements............ $ 22,226,126 $ 22,226,126 $ 284,785 § 284,785 § 22,510,911 § 22,510,911
Buildings and improvements....... 309,965,778 120,264,614 2,359,102 2,431,391 312,324,880 122,696,005
Machinery and equipment.......... 18,725,294 19,746,669 2,214,077 2,405,243 20,939,371 22,151,912
Infrastructure...........ooeenene,.. 42,311,034 41,037,324 62,128,469 57,100,909 104,439,503 98,138,233
Construction in progress........... 9,360,188 175,076,100 7,245,184 3,049,917 16,605,372 178,126,017
Total capital assets.................. $ 402,588,420 $ 378350,833 $§ 74231617 § 65272245 $ 476,820,037 $§ 443,623,078

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $33.2 million or 7.5%. Major capital asset events

during 2011 included the following;

® Business-type activity net capital assets incteased by $9 million, principally due to the ongoing water meter

teplacement program, but also due to water and sewer system improvements funded with Massachusetts
Water Resources Authority grants and intetest free loans.
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*  Governmental activity capital assets (net) increased by $24.2 million, principally as a result of ongoing activity
at the new Newton North High School facility. The new North High School facility, which had been
classified as construction in progress as of June 30, 2010, was placed in service as a public school building on
September 7, 2010.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets may be found on pages 51-53 of this report.

Debt outstanding — At June 30, 2011, the City had total long term debt outstanding of $221.7 million, $192.0 million
for governmental activities and $29.7 million for business-type activities. There were no bond anticipation notes
outstanding at June 30, 2011. All debt is a general obligation of the City, although water and sewer debt service
payments ate made from the resources of the enterprise funds and community presetvation fund project debt setvice
payments are made from resources of the community presetrvation fund.

City of Newton, Massachusetts
General Obligation Bonds and Notes Outstanding — by Putpose

Govermmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Education buildings............... g 169,600,000 S 163,432,000 $ - 8 - § 169,600,000 $ 163,432,000
Municipal buildings................ 11,045,000 11,723,000 - - 11,045,000 11,723,000
Departmental equipment......... 6,755,000 6,968,000 - . 6,755,000 6,968,000
Landfill closure..................... 1,169,800 1,307,300 - - 1,169,800 1,307,300
Street reconstruction.............. 395,000 470,000 - - 395,000 470,000
Land acquistion.................... 3,030,000 3,785,000 - . 3,030,000 3,785,000
Water system.........ovuiierinnnns - - 20,046,257 18,105,254 20,046,257 18,105,254
Sanitary sewer system.............. - - 9,677,757 11,056,496 9,677,757 11,056,496
Total bonds and notes............. $ 191,994,800 $ 187,685,300 $ 29,724,014 $ 29,161,750 § 221718814 $ 216,847,050

During the year just ended, the City added $18.7 million in new bonds and retired $13.8 million in existing bonds.
General fund interest and principal payments amounted to $16.1 million ot 5% of fund revenues and other financing
sources. Community Preservation Fund interest and principal payments amounted to $882,788, or 29.3%, of fund
revenues.

All existing long-term debt of the City’s existing debt will be repaid in full by the year 2041.

At June 30, 2011 the City’s authorized and unissued long tetm debt amounted to $15.4 million, a decrease of $14.5
million (48.5%) from June 30, 2010.

The City’s bonds are rated Aaa by Moody’s Investor Services Inc.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found on pages 56-61 of this report. In addition, debt
trend information is available on pages 132-135 of this reportt.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

® According to the U.S Census Bureau, the median family income for the City for calendar year 2005 was
$124,893. This compares favorably with the U.S median family income of $55,832. The City’s per capita
income was $55,891 compared with $25,035 for the nation as a whole.

® According to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Unemployment Assistance, the
unemployment rate for the City as September 30, 2011 was 5%, which compares favorably with the statewide
unemployment rate of 7.2%.
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® According to the City’s Board of Assessots, the 2011 median value of a single family home in Newton was
$674,650; the median value of a commercial propetty was $726,400; and the median value of industrial
propetty was $833,250.

The City of Newton’s fiscal year 2012 general fund operating budget, as amended through the date of this report,
amounts to $308.3 million. This represents an increase of $2.7 million, or 0.9%, from the final fiscal year 2011 budget

total.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all of those with an interest in
the City’s finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Compttollet, City of Newton, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton,
Massachusetts 02459 or dwilkinson@newtonma.gov.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011
Primary Government
Govemnmental Business-type Component
ASSETS Activities Activities Total Units
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......oiouviuiiiineinniiiii i $ 66,905,155 § 5,776,116 § 72,681,271 § 688,434
Restricted cash and cash equivalents........ccoveeviiniiiniiiiiiinninnn.. 34,073,957 7,321,657 41,395,614 331,881
Investments.......c.ocoveeiiiiniinnn.n vi 8,954,796 8,954,796 -
Restricted investments 5% 593,839 E 593,839 -
Interest and dividends.......couciiiiiiiiin i 34,424 . 34,424 448,633
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Real estate and personal property taxes. . ovuu s erieeaierasienennnnns 4,030,480 - 4,030,480 -
Tax and utility liens. ......oouvvueniunn. i 6,232,196 468,702 6,700,898 ]
Motor vehicle excise. . ... vuvviiiciiciaiinins o 645,984 . 645,984 -
Community preservation surcharges ‘es 43,713 - 43,713
Charges fOr SEIVICE. ...\ iuuiiiiteviiaiienaeaaie e rerrasesasneeranes 553,726 14,063,126 14,616,852 -
Departmental and Other. . iuveuiewieneniieeiieeieissrernsieeinnnnsess 729,957 . 729,957 11,006
Intergovernmental. ... 2,458,030 229,763 2,687,793 -
Special assessments 1,195 28,666 29,861 -
| et oL S SR L - AR S b e P S - = = 85,026
Other assets... 35,306 - 35,306 457
Due from fiduciary funds : i 30,813 - 30,813 .
Prepaid expensesiol. i . aiiiiiedie o o Jabiwassan iansnses s - - - 4,030
IOVENEOLY.craittiisrreee s e s - - - - 782
Working capital deposit. ... iruueissiruerivimsniieierinneaesinesramaens 500,419 . 500,419
Total CUrrent ASSELS, ... v ieusuisniissesiriseeriessramiisaeeersnanns 125,823,990 27,888,030 153,712,020 1,570,249

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted IMVeStMENTS .. ucuscveiiiineraisiieeseinesnieeanineseereraeiais 69,457 - 69,457
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Real estate tax deferrals. 3,226,051 - 3,226,051 -
Departmental and other. 4,213,577 - 4,213,577
Intergovernmental. ... vueueecveusieuieeeiirerina e ieaa e aes 2,576,389 2,065,159 4,641,548
Special assessments. . 602,687 53,682 656,369 -
Loansicaianva. . cve-asvviia ssssvisis - Siaveva i - - - 3,902,599
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable. ... .uiiiiuieiiimr v 31,586,314 7,529,969 39,116,283 -
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation.......ccevvrvn.en..u. 371,002,106 66,701,648 437,703,754 2,064,700
Total NONCULTENT ASSEES-.vuiunteriniaiineeiiieierneeeiiiiaranas 413,276,581 76,350,458 489,627,039 5,967,299
Total assets 539,100,571 104,238,488 643,339,059 7,537,548
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable. .. .cuu e cvevrverereunieniteiieeesaeeieererisnnraan. 3,697,602 567,516 4,265,118 72,207
Accrued Habilities. . 5,031,142 1,022,362 6,053,504 104,083
Accrued payroll......... 5 12,157,984 66,185 12,224,169 z
Revenue refunds payable. .....ooieiiii i s 6,112,523 - 6,112,523 -
Health claims payable......o.coeuveicieiiiniiniiniarnnrrmrrriniesieeraes 4,022,849 - 4,022,849 -
Other Babilties. . ..ivemniiirareiin e cae it srss s s i eenseesneaes 1,840,845 - 1,840,845 -
ACCTUE IMEETEST. + ..t et e ieieaiaiaerterras s ieriisaneebasseensassarannes 1,799,393 182,029 1,981,422 -
Abandoned property.......ceuiiiiian. 1 504,941 - 504,941 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets..........cc.ivurveeiiunivennnnn, 357,392 387,849 745,241 -
Bonds payable. ... .o i 9,408,367 4,610,497 14,018,864 -
Landfill closure and other environmental liabilities. ..........zuveearans 105,000 - 105,000 -
Compensated abSENCES. . c.uv.iuriieiveninenisaiiirniiencanainerienissiins 2,768,537 31,673 2,800,210 -
Workers' compensation benefits........co.ovvuirnririiiiiininieinnnns s 1,127,680 - 1,127,680 -

Total current liabilies. ....oiuennieiniiiiirariaavan e irenins 48,934,255 6,868,111 55,802,366 176,290




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (Continued)

JUNL 30, 2011
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable.... qisiiinn e eeves Seeniienennnennnenn S . e $ 182,586,433 § 25113,517 § 207,699,950 § -
Landfill closure and other environmental liabilities..................... 700,000 700,000 -
Compensated abSEnces. ... ...c..vuiuuiaimniriiiieaneerniesiineeenrinarons 5,169,172 285,049 5,454,221 -
Net OPEB obligation.......... 115,270,563 2,792,257 118,062,820 -
Workers' compensation benefits. 5,889,230 - 5.8689.230 -
Total noncurrent Habilities........c..ccovvviieiiiiinyireenianns 309,615,398 28,190,823 337,806,221
Total Habilities. ... .cc.uvivvvririneren it i enrans 358,549,653 35,058,934 393,608,587 176,290
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.........cccoeeeeiiiiiinn, 211,763,420 46,802,526 258,565,946 2,064,700
Restricted for:
Capital purposes. ........... BN e e e e oo S o W HBAE e e 11,975,854 7.321,657 19,297,511
Community preservation aChVIHES. ...u..eveieiuerrneerneeensnna 10,058,947 - 10,058,947 -
Bducation aCHVIHES. ... vvvvsieseeearierereineiteiiceneeansnernnees 2,485,421 - 2,485,421
Other post employment benefits. :- 137,295 . 137,295
Dbt SELVACE. 1. oevviiiiiitee e ieiie it e e e e e e e ra e araa s 683,320 - 683,320
Perpetual funds:
Expendable..............ooeeeis Mienmereenanienentrensen pne dilkomes 793,638 . 793,638
Nonexpendable.... 445,570 - 445,570
Other specific purposes. . 7,516,715 . 7,516,715 -
UREESICEEA- -+ =2t ts e csess st esets et sse s iaetseneeseeeea (65,309,262) 15,055,372 (50,253,891) 5,206,558
TOtAl DO BSSEES. o viuvueerarrrerneerin b iemtneectnerenensiansnnsneneann $ 180,550,918 § 69,179,554 § 249,730,472 § 7,361,258

See notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Fees, Fines, and Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Legislative & €XeCutive. ... .. ...ovuveiiiiinnniininiianianns 2,667,321 287,893 $ 15,967 $ 8210 § (2,355,251)
Elections. .. .............. 748,163 1,007 30,768 - (716,298)
Financial administration. 3,972,074 207,767 929 - (3,763,378)
Administrative support. . 4,388,540 333,396 8 - (4,055,136)
Planning & development.............cocoviininniiiniiiniinnnn, 9,520,915 400,369 5,024,785 - (4,095,761)
Public building maintenance & operation.................... 5,677,939 29,880 557,959 - (5,090,100)
Public safety
PObice........vivveeenen 28,622,512 4,268,602 350,826 - (24,003,084)
Fite....cocvvvvninnns 25,562,938 574,153 30,099 (24,958,686)
Inspectional SETvICes..uui.uieiirriceiiiiiaiiiinneennes. 1,523,953 4,255,904 - 2,731,951
Other public safety 90,856 20,491 - - (70,365)
BEdUCAtON. | 1-vvvvre it etssaes ottt 252,413,006 6,342,631 58,158,842 - (187,911,533)
Public works
Streets & sidewalks...............o.iciieiirsinneeineeersiresens 14,835,743 2,811,108 280,076 1,756,048 (9,988,511)
Control of snow & ice. 4,337,064 - 527,048 - 3,810,016)
Collection & disposal of solid waste 7,081,167 162,752 177 - (6,918,238)
EDGIICEONG v ervvvervtisiesinseeresesssesvesesrseennren e 2,156,784 61,254 . (2,095,530)
Health & human services
Public health & human services. ..o vviinicniniieaiiin.n, 9,461,598 116,806 211,241 - (9,133,551)
Senior services. . 898,653 2,704 370,222 2 (525,727T)
Veteran services 397,121 - 230,466 - (166,655)
Culture and recreation
TABLATIES. ..o et ree et e 7,249,449 126,441 516,852 5 (6,606,156)
Parks & 1eCreation......cociviiiiiiiiii it 7,496,567 1,911,977 441,313 - (5,143,277)
Newton HisStory museum. ... .cccvivrvrvuvinsiinrnnnnenanin.s 346,019 - 1,963 - (344,056)
Debt service - interest. ..uuiiuennnicret et cireiiaraeiieieeiins 7,670,746 - 227,095 - (7,443,651)
Total governmental ACHVItiES. .. .. .o2rierrreeernneians. 397,119,128 21,915,225 66,976,636 1,764,258 (306,463,009)
Business-type activities:
WVBLCE. ettt s e ee s ettt e ema e e e cn e et e e enta e e s 14,260,631 18,961,903 531,858 15,740 5,248,870
SEWEL. 1+ ettne st etest et etese et e ettt 23,468,371 26,209,576 315,146 8,442 3,064,793
Total business-type aCtivties. .............cvveereeveeveenenn, 37,729,002 45,171,479 847,004 24,182 8,313,663
Total Primary GOVEINMEDt. ... cuuurrvrennieeiiiaiinieenreierereeies 434,848,130 67,086,704 $ 67,823,640 $ 1,788,440 § (298,149,346)
Component units:
Newton Commonwealth Foundation, Inc........c...cvuviviininnns 202,130 307,026 $ 4,105 $ - $ 109,001
Newton Community Development Authority... 1,972,686 - 28 - (1,972,658)
Newton Community Farm, Inc.....civiuveneiiiniiniiiiiiinn, 133,053 97,540 58,276 - 22,763
Total Component Units..........cooenviiiiiniiniiiii i 2,307,869 404,566 $ 62,409 $ - $ (1,840,894)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Changes in net assets:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous Page)..-.....ooveverirnennn..

General revenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes,

levied for general purposes.........ccovviiiiiieiiiiianieians
Real estate and personal property taxes,

levied for community preservation purposes.................
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes...........oceeeueeeeia,..,
Hotel room 0ccupancy taxes. ........vvucveererianenneneeneninnia
Meals taxessic....ooueenennnnen EEEERRTR oo e eeen e STRERRRRR e

Payments in lieu of taXeSs. . ..coviiiveiiiiiiiii i,

Grants and contributions not restricted to
SPECILIC PIOZIAMIS. cou e it it i et iieiiiae e e ieaees
Unrestricted investment inCOME. .......c.uiveeiiirereenenininnnnn.s

Total general revenues and transfers..........ocoooiiiiiiininnniniin
Change In net asSets. .. ouiuii ittt iaeaians
Net assets - beginning of year...........coovui it

Net assets - end Of Year. . .uyieriiciiiiiii i

See notes to basic financial statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
(306,463,009) $ 8,313,663 $ (298,149,346) $ (1,840,894)
239,761,554 239,761,554 -
2,352,389 - 2,352,389
10,541,624 - 10,541,624
1,588,882 1,588,882 -
1,308,191 1,308,191
1,038,225 1,038,225 -
515,471 515,471
5,596,391 - 5,596,391 -
454,365 - 454,365
32,280 - 32,280 -
3,002,856 - 3,002,856 3,717,830
1,240,538 (1,240,538) - -
267,432,766 (1,240,538) 266,192,228 3,717,830
(39,030,243) 7,073,125 (31,957,118) 1,876,936
219,581,161 62,106,429 281,687,590 5,484,322
180,550,918 § 69,179,554 § 249,730,472  § 7,361,258
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
Nonmajor Total
Community High School Govemmental Govemmental

ASSETS Genenl Preservation Improvements Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents. . .......ccoeiniiiuiemiiaiiensrinnniiicinanns 50,839,822 $ - 8 s - § 50,839,822
Interest and dividends................coceee - - 2,946 2,946
Recetvables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Real estate and personal property taxes... 4,030,480 - 4,030,480

Real estate tax deferrals. ... .ouvviuimiimmoiiiiriiiiiiiiniianns 3,226,051 - - 3,226,051

Tax and Utility Hens. . ......vrvveereseoreereereeseesseressssenns 6,224,328 A 7,868 6,232,196

Motor vehicle excise 645,984 - - 645,984

Community preservation SUrCharges.....iocusiumsiieiernvasionines - 43,713 - 43,713

Charges fOr SeTvICes a.sammasiaseseesiannis sunnsvssbiasssnranensonseons 41,881 - 511,845 553,726

Departmental and other.. 4,916,577 . - 26,958 4,943,535

Intergovernmental.... 1,207,146 625,763 2,328,858 872,652 5,034,419

Special assessments. 603,882 . - 603,882
Due from other funds. . ouweeveiciiricieinn i srsrrairssasannes 204,321 - 204,321
Due from fiduciary funds... 30,813 - - 30,813
Other assets 5,306 - - 30,000 35,306
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents. ... .vovieniiviiviciinianmnirriereeieriins 928,722 9,390,701 4,755,691 18,998,843 34,073,957

INVESIMENES. 1\ vt et hei s e it e e et ana e i e naas - = 663,296 663,296
TOTAL ASSETS. .. itivirier oo sene s e see e 72905313 § 10,060,177 $ 7,084,549 $ 21,114,408 $ 111,164,447
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Wareants payable.........ovierreensessssreeiimassissisesscieeenes 1,470,670 § .5 1,231,711 § 975,130 $ 3,677,511

Accrued habilities. 3,526,122 - 226,369 1,157,087 4,909,578

Accrued payroll........ o4 11,389,090 1,231 - 749,952 12,140,273

Revenue refunds payable......oiiviivieiiieiiieriiiereiiareani 6,112,523 . - . 6,112,523

Other Habilities. ..o ivmeriiieeiin it e - = = 498,175 498,175

Abandoned property.. 504,941 . - 504,941

Liabilities due depositors 357,392 - - - 357,392

Deferred 1eVeNUE. . vuuiivuiiieiiiniieaneenrnrianaranans 18,771,001 649,142 2,328,858 270,029 22,019,030

Due t0 other funds...........iourmmmuarimerees s ian - - - 204,321 204,321
TOTAL LIABILITIES. .0 cueiaimraieniinnin i sansniaisinsianseens 42,131,739 650,373 3,786,938 3,854,694 50,423,744
FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendable. ... .c.ouimiiimimimimrimieisim s . - - 445,570 445,570

T U 928,722 9,409,804 3,297,611 16,281,748 29,917,885

Committed SERi . 14,877,088 B . 886,894 15,763,982

ASSIgNed. . .ouiin i e e e s 844,441 - - - 844,441

Unassigned.........coivmvmmiemmsirininis UL SR 14,123,323 - (354,498) 13,768,825
TOTAL FUND BALANCESaisinisiiineiinneiinnsisasgi 30,773,574 9,409,804 3,297,611 17,259,714 60,740,703
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES........c.ccevvuv... 72905313 § 10,060,177 $ 7,084,549 % 21,114,408 § 111,164,447

See notes to basic financial statements,
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Total governmental fund balances (page 21).........o.oiiiiiiiiiii i

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, thetefote, are not teported in the governmental funds.......................oooooo ..

Other assets are not available to pay for current petiod expenditurtes and,
therefore, are deferted in the governmental FUndS.........ooueiiieiiiriee i e ve e is e e eieaeens

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds intetest is not reported until due..............c..ocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieii

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable. ..o
Landfill closute and other envitonmental Habilities. ...........ut e e e,

Compensated abSences. ........ ...
Net OPEB 0bHgation. . ... e

Internal service funds ate used by management to account for health insurance,
wortkets' compensation, building insurance and liability insurance activities. The assets
and liabilities of the internal service funds are reported as governmental activities in the
Statement Of MEt ASSEES.. ... i e

See notes to basic financial statements.

60,740,703

402,588,420

22,019,030

(1,799,392)

(191,994,800)
(805,000)
(7,937,709)
(115,270,563)

13,010,229

180,550,918
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle excive takes.....
Hotel room occuplingy e
Meals BEES wiacaiiiiiiiiensins
Community preservation surcharges.
Penaltics and interest on taxes
Ficenzes and permits...........
Intergovernmental ...
Churges for services
Fines and forfeimure
Investment mcome. ...
Contributions and donations..,
Payments in licu of mes. .
Miscellaneous. ....ooueenes

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
Legislative & executive,
Electons,.
Financial administration
Administrative support....
Planning & development..........cccoviiiie,
Public bullding maintenance & operations....

Public safety:

Police
Fire. ..
Inspectional services..
Other public safety.

Education...

Public works:
Streets & sidewalks..vvive..re
Control of snow & ice,....
Collection & disposal of solid waste..
Vehicle maintenance
Engineering,...cccc.
Administration & support.

Health and human services:

Health & human Services, cuurumuieivirerrmismruassisimasiessismmssrmsssensssorsns

Senior services.
Veteran services
Culture and recreation:
Librades......uui..
Parks & recreation
Newton History museum
Retirement benefits. .........
Workers' compensation insurance,.,
Property and liability insurance
Claims and judgments

State asSeSSMENTS & CHALEES .« y1ucatemmumiersiirnineesssbaseersmunsersssismnssrssssbenssrsens

Debt service:
Principal
Interest....

TOTAL EXPENDITURES........comimprmaniriennineans

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in.....ocumviviiieminiannanes
Issuance of general obligation bonds..
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes.
Sale of capital assets
Transfers out,......

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).....uvusarcaseeerssnnions
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. ... cociiiieinimiinmecnmmieiiisssmiarsienon i

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. . .cuicimiaiiiiinneriiniiiiciniiaanians
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.....ciiuiiiemunrnniarinns

See notes to basic financial statements,

Nonmajor Total
Community High School Govemmental Govemmental
General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

. 3 240,732,647 $ - 3 - 3 - 8 240,732,647
10,463,796 . . 10,463,796
1,588,882 . . 1,588,882
1,308,191 . 1,308,191
- 2,365,422 . 2,365,422

1,011,005 - - 27,219 1,038,224
5,130,138 - - 393,475 5,523,613
50,534,834 616,589 B 22,705,255 73,856,678
1,623,604 - - 13,050,474 14,674,078
1,897,413 - - 10,058 1,907471
431,344 31,230 - 91,899 554,473

- . - 1,382,243 1,382,243

439,721 - - - 439,721
1,061,254 - 276,217 339,392 1,676,863
131,050 - - 123,588 254,638
316,353,879 3,013,241 276,217 38,123,603 357,766,940
1,838,797 4,700 10,075 1,853,572
471,122 - 11,979 483,101
2,889,152 - . 2,889,152
3,182,934 : . 3,182,934
1,092,377 2,488,386 5,482,145 9,062,908
2,942,786 55,725 - 7,024,964 10,023,475
17,332,892 . 2.730,578 20,063,470
16,287,302 228,504 16,515,806
1,067,453 - 4,100 1,071,553
74,452 : = - 74,452
165,810,597 3 24,062,467 24,929,180 214,802,244
6,381,074 - 3,115,479 9,496,553
3915717 . . 3915,717
6,215,904 - - 97,636 6,313,540
2,117,111 i 1,110 2,118,221
1,375,773 - - 61,254 1,437,027
1,449,739 - - 1,449,739
2,933,638 - 182,615 3,116,253
568,427 - - 203,983 772,410
288,852 - - 288,852
4,730,458 24,377 449,727 5,204,562
3,983,303 14,360 E 1,729,905 5,727,568
248,977 47,105 4,596 300,678
53,157,157 - - 53,157,157
1,048,014 - p R 1,048,014
397,789 - - - 397,789
160,733 - - - 160,733
5472487 - - - 5,472,487
8,705,500 755,000 - - 9,460,500
7,381,915 127,788 - - 7,509,703
TP 323,522,432 3,517,441 24,062,467 46,267,830 397,370,170
(7,168,553) (504,200) (23,786,250) (8,144,227) {39,603,230)
4,516,715 - 1,869,928 6,386,643

- - 11,000,000 2,770,000 13,770,000

168,147 - - - 168,147
16,438 - - 19,824 36,262
(1,854,928) (1,729) = (3,011,866) (4,868,523)
2,846,372 (1,729) 11,000,000 1,647,886 15,492,529
(4,322,181) (505,929) (12,786,250) (6,496,341) (24,110,701)
35,095,755 9,915,733 16,083,861 23,756,055 84,851,404
$ 30,773,574 § 9,409,804 $ 3297611 § 17,259,714 § 60,740,703




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (PAZE 23). . .euueirreiiveiiiiieiieir e eeii e ee it een s

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.
CaPItAl OUHIAYS. ...ttt et e e e e et ee e et et e e e e
Depreciation

In the statement of activities, only the loss on the disposal of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds thete is no use of financial resources,
As a result, the change in net assets differs from the change in
fund balance by the net book value of the disposed capital 8SSEts. ...cooevivvviiivtiiiii ittt eeeiiiie e

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue. ...........o.oivveeviiiineeaiinniiiieiinaeinn,

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

Bond proceeds................
Bond maturities

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable............ooiiiiiiiiii i

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
These amounts represent the net changes in accruals:

Claims & JudBMEnts. .....oo.uiiiiii ittt e
Landfill closure and other environmental liabilities

Compensated aDSECes. ........uuiiiit i i e e e

Net OPEB 0bHgation.........oiuiiiii i e e
Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance, workers' compensation,
building insurance and liability insurance activities. The net activity of the internal service funds

is reported with governmental ACHVIHES . ... .. .. .iieuiiiieiit ittt e it e et eeat e e e ee e ae et e e e ema e e e eees

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (PAZE 20). ... . eeurneiiit ittt e it eee e

See notes to basic financial statements.

(24,110,701)

38,782,510
(14,540,941)

(3,982)

(1,092,463)

(13,770,000)
9,460,500

(161,042)

40,000
105,000
244,139

(33,735,293)

(247,970)

$ (39,030,243)



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes.......
Motor vehicle excise taxes... LT
Hotel toom 0ccupancy taXes, .. .-iucuensivisiivmioeiiiiiiinionn.
Penalties and interest on taxes.......
Licenses and permits. .......... B PSP — "
Intergovemmmental ..
Charges for services.
Fines and forfeitures....
Investment income,
Payments in lieu of taxes...
Miscellaneous.........

Special assessments..,

TOTAL REVENUES...

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General povermnment:
Legislative & execulive
Elections,...ccoumeinion
Financial administraton
Administrative SUPPOrt.....ovviiesiies
Planning & development......... . s
Public building maintenance & operations

Public safety:
Police....uuus .
Fire sisixin s

Inspectional services.........

Public works:
Streets & sidewalks. .
Control of snow & ice.
Collection & disposal of solid waste.
Vehicle maintenance........iviuiiivies
Engineening. .vo.o.ooveeviniiiieiioies
Administration & SUppPOLt, ., vevveeeesrin

Health and human services:

Health & human services........ ek n

Senior services. ...
Veteran services.
Culture and recreation:
Libraries..... i
Parks & recreation. ..
Newton History museum. ...
Retitement benefits, ..
Workers' compensation insurance.
Property and liability insurance...
Claims and judgments.
Reserve fund.........
State assessments & charges.
Debt service:
Poncipal....cccoerreerroeranrensrrnanes
Intereshliilcitasaraia s diliiiini,,

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... iiiiiiinionsmicianninas

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES,. -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers i u.vesuusssmmmmmesaieimies e
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes. ..
Sale of capital aSSEtS. . w1 ioiimmnnremrmemeieesieienns
Transfers out. ..,

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).......
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .....ooovuiiiieiianicnenieenns
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.......ccuuiiiiiianie,

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR...cccvummiiimiininnienennens

See notes to basic financial statements.

Vanance
Actual to Final Budget

Original Final Budgetary Positive/

Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
238,302,002 238,752,520 $ 240,263,282 % 1,510,762
10,000,000 9,900,000 10,008,481 108,481
1,303,314 1,365,000 1,588,882 223,882
1,455,209 1,178,500 1,308,191 129,691
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,011,005 11,005
3,150,000 3,328,023 5,130,138 1,802,115
19,272,700 20,101,150 20,546,918 445,768
1,551,000 1,513,600 1,623,604 110,004
2,030,000 2,030,000 1,897,413 (132,587)
1,100,000 880,000 417,144 (462,856)
405,000 405,000 439,721 34721
150,000 150,000 481,546 331,546
100,000 74,000 131,050 57,050
279,819,225 280,677,793 284,847,375 4,169,582
1,856,160 1,873,265 1,838,797 34,468
523,035 521,298 471,122 50,176
3,208,522 3,237,200 2,889,152 348,048
3,881,567 3,849,995 3,376,759 473,236
1,162,817 1,134,341 1,092,377 41,964
3,128,970 3,645,147 2,939,236 705,911
17,602,937 18,787,672 18,702,239 85,433
15,959,389 16,153,570 15,986,047 167,523
1,143,904 1,148,904 1,067,453 81,451
76,319 76,319 74,452 1,867
166,305,930 167,283,875 166,260,250 1,023,625
6,785,661 7,121,039 6,363,498 757,541
1,085,030 3,983,974 3,915,717 68,257
6,354,796 6,216,274 6,215,904 370
2,370,035 2,436,765 2,117,111 319,654
1,382,467 1,385,670 1,369,198 16,472
1,522,474 1,527,051 1,449,739 77,312
3,061,312 2,978,149 2,920,138 58,011
580,746 579,267 568,427 10,840
211,062 290,680 288,852 1,828
5,029,031 4,979,824 4,730,458 249,366
4,397,110 4,656,261 3,972,178 684,083
263,933 263,359 248977 14,382
23,382,339 23,808,731 23,774,440 34,291
1,000,000 1,048,014 1,048,014 -
404,823 404,823 397,789 7,034
70,000 161,133 160,733 400
1,631,022 52,275 : 52,275
5,552,182 5,589,087 5,472,487 116,600
8,666,975 8,666,975 8,666,975 -
7,343,756 7,343,756 7,342,289 1,467
295,944,304 301,204,693 295,720,808 5,483,885
(16,125,079) (20,526,900) (10,873,433) 9,653,467
9,115,627 10,127,311 10,147,264 19,953
- B 168,147 168,147
- E 16,438 16,438
(1,543,326) (4,413,817 (4,413 817) -
7,572.301 5,713,494 5,918,032 204,538
(8,552,778) (14,813,406) (4,955,401) 9,858,005
27,888,321 27,888,321 27,888,321 -
19335543  § 13,074915 § 22,932920 $ 9,858,005




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Variance
Actual to Final Budget
Original Final Budgetary Positive/
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES

Community preservation surcharges. ..........cooovvivviivisiinaannn.., 3 2,353,480 2,353,480 $ 2,345,089 (8,391)

Intergovernmental ... 681,605 616,589 616,589 -

INVEStMENE INCOME. 1ovvtittiiiiiiie i re e ie i eianiins 54,000 54,000 31,230 (22,770)

TOTAL REVENUE Sziswidismiiauisstasinatlviainma fosadlivesisa 3,089,085 3,024,069 2,992,908 (31,161)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative & eXecutive......o.vveeiiriiiiniiiiiiii i, 5,200 51,340 4,700 46,640
Planning & development.................cc..un. 3,258,024 3,942,080 2,940,385 1,001,695
Public building maintenance & operations 629,866 728,646 55,725 672,921
Public works:
Streets & sidewalks........coviviiiiiiinii s 430 - -
Culture and recreation:
Libraries............. 36,545 36,545 24,377 12,168
Parks & recreation............ 37,289 488,939 14,360 474,579
Newton History museum. ... e 3,005,175 3,005,175 47,105 2,958,070
Reserve fund.......ooooiiiiii e 2,060,307 699,095 - 699,095
Debt service:
Principal.sspussesiesizaamivmmssivams A A 755,000 755,000 755,000
Interest 127,788 127,788 127,788 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......coooiiiiiiiiiiaiiie i 9,915,624 9,834,608 3,969,440 5,865,168
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES. ..ottt eiiivsiseians (6,826,539) (6,810,539) (976,532) 5,834,007
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers Ot iuiiseiin e iNis i iiihan i ersaas sata sea 8 s e simm (10,000) (26,000) (1,729) 24,271
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE .. ...cuctiuiiiiiiiiienirenanrninnss (6,836,539) (6,836,539) (978,261) 5,858,278
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...........ccvvvivininan. 10,367,733 10,367,733 10,367,733 -
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR.......coviiiiiiiisi e $ 3,531,194 § 3,531,194 § 9,389,472 5,858,278

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equIVAIEIES. ...\ vveeseruesmsmrrsseniomarssesssionnssssnrans
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Investments .
Interest and dividends. .......c......

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Charges for service...
Utlity liens.....
Special assessments

Intergovernmental.
Working capital deposit..

TOtal CUTTENE ASSELS. . vuiavsiassmsissmriasrmierensinseiisreeniions

Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special aSSeSSMENTS. vvvivivuseissismasssmmmsmassssansmsssmesssssssnss
Intergovernmental,...cueiiierieisiasrimarsissneisre e
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable. ... .ocmueiniiiivaeiiimminiiae

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation. ..

Total noncurrent assets

Total assetsai....... 0. siaiah. Jah . aimdids Sabaiia b Gt oo

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Warrants payable
Accrued liabilifes.........
Accrued payroll....
Other liabilites.. ..
Liabilities payable from restricted assets.

Accrued interest........
Accrued health claims payable. .
Workers' compensation claims....

Compensated absences
Long-term bonds and notes payable, .. .....ccoaiai. O Yoo G

Total current Babiliies. ..ovveemeremiimimiisirimineiemiemaneiones

Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims....

Compensated absences...
Net OPEB obligation..
Long-term bonds and notes payable...

Total noncurrent liabilities. ... ....c.. i,
Total Habilities. . vvvevvvirvvunerners gpormsrmeasns snisnens

FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.........cocoveiiiiiiiinine
Restricted for:
Capital purposes...
Unrestricted...

Total net assets...

See notes to basic financial statements.

$

$

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Govermnmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Water Total Funds
3,055,236 § 2,720,879 5,776,115 16,065,334
1,015,966 6,305,691 7,321,657 -
- 8,954,796
- 31477
8,224,144 5,838,981 14,063,125
272,293 196,409 468,702 -
28,666 28,666
229,763 - 229,763 -
500,419
12,826,068 15,061,960 27,888,028 25,552,026
53,682 53,682
2,065,159 - 2,065,159
26,245 7,503,724 7,529,969
33,211,942 33,489,706 66,701,648
35,357,028 40,993,430 76,350,458
48,183,096 56,055,390 104,238,486 25,552,026
105,838 461,676 567,514 20,092
149,019 873,343 1,022,362 121,563
33,598 32,587 66,185 17,713
. - . 1,342,670
165,943 221,906 387,849
124,088 57,941 182,029
- - . 4,022,849
_ ) . 1,127,680
16,878 14,795 31,673 -
1,383,079 3,227,418 4,610,497
1,978,443 4,889,666 6,868,109 6,652,567
- - - 5,889,230
151,897 133,152 285,049 -
1,309,841 1,482,416 2,792,257 -
8,294,678 16,818,839 25,113,517
9,756,416 18,434,407 28,190,823 5,889,230
11,734,859 23,324,073 35,058,932 12,541,797
25,855,352 20,947,174 46,802,526 -
1,015,966 6,305,691 7,321,657 -
9,576,919 5,478,453 15,055,372 13,010,229
36,448,237 § 32,731,317 69,179,554 13,010,229
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges fOr SEIVICES.cuuuis ittt iietiiiii et s e s as
Special ASSESSMENES. ...\ ' iviieiitii it i rris ittt e e e
Employer contributions.
Employee contributions

Miscellaneous. . ... ... il e i e e e TR Shi ey n v ss e vasna i wansa

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and employee benefits............ooviiiniiiciiiin
Other operating expenses..............
MWRA assessment....
Workers' compensation.

Self insurance Claims, oo uvv. et i e e
B T

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.....cccciiiiiieineniainninnanns ]
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1. icvuneeureauniiumnsoiianimenineinonon
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Intergovernmentalinsimaiiaivmvinmme RS e e e i
Investment income..

INLELESE EXPEIISC. 11 utucnnnsnsuatneeteaietrensnsrinnsrssissietenentresieneranens
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS. ..o it si e

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Transfers in......ovvvviiviaienninanns
Premium from issuance of bonds
TTANSIEIS OUELL 1.t iuiantuu ettt e et et tae s e e s es et et ataaatnatiataiaanas

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS...........

CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS......coviiuimaiiranrin i

FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR...

FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR .cc.vvivuiianenieiinnincnnen

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund Govemnmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Water Total Funds
26,177,827 18,961,904 45,139,731 §
31,748 - 31,748 -
. - - 41,183,157
- = 10,285,804
- - - 40
26,209,575 18,961,904 45,171,479 51,469,001
2,911,176 3,048,452 5,959,628 -
734,398 895,172 1,629,570 3,173,417
18,034,955 8,710,520 26,745,475 -
267,662 150,000 417,662 .
- . - 49,590,756
1,051,048 940,356 1,991,404
22,999,239 13,744,500 36,743,739 52,764,173
3,210,336 5,217,404 8,427,740 (1,295,172)
315,146 349,699 664,845 -
8,442 15,740 24,182 1,324,784
(469,132) (516,131) (985,263) -
(145,544) (150,692) (296,236) 1,324,784
3,064,792 5,066,712 8,131,504 29,612
1,078,575 - 1,078,575 -
. 182,159 182,159 .
(837,801) (1,481,312) (2319,113) (277,582)
240,774 (1,299,153) (1,058,379) (277,582
3,305,566 3,767,559 7,073,125 (247,970)
33,142,671 28,963,758 62,106,429 13,258,199
36,448,237 32,731,317 69,179,554 % 13,010,229
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

B Type B - Enterpnse Fund Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Water Total Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 26,602,067 $ 17,785,398 § 44,387,465 § 10,285,804
Receipts from interfund services provided. . . 41,183,197
Payments to vendors/providers (20,482,228) (11,718,070 (32,200,298) (51,339,332)
Payments to employees....uieees (1,641,016) (1,7115,918) (3,356,934) -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES...tiuuvmnmmensssiassssmssssrmssmmssssmnns 4,478,823 4,351,410 8,830,233 129,669
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in,.. 1,078,575 - 1,078,575 -
Transfers out.... (837,801) (1,481,312) (2,319,113) (277,582)
Cash advance tepayment to general fund (214,893) {214,893 -
NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES... 25,881 (1,481,312) (1,455,431} (277,582)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes.., - 4,933,657 4,933,657 -
Premium from the issuance of bonds and notes - 182,159 182,159 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,843,203) (8,107,573) (10,950,776)
Principal payments on bonds and notes......... . (1,156,377) (2,992,654) (4,149,031)
Interest expensec.i... it o i e e i wwna s we s sy T Foaad bass (159,772) (143,998) (303,770) -
NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......... 4,159,352) (6,128,409) (10,287,761) -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments....... ..., = - - (1,314,882)
Investment income. ... cocivimainniiiiens 8,442 15,740 24,182 1,329,042
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES. ... oouiuncimimiainsanisisiiessainsinnens 8,442 15,740 24,182 14,160
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS. . ..ccviuiiumemiiiensiaiornns 353,794 (3,242,571) (2,888,777) (133,753)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes $3,717,408 and $9,780,580 reported as restricted in the sewer and water
enterpnse funds, T T —— 3,717,408 12,269,141 15,986,549 16,199,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $1,015,966 and $6,305,691 reported as restricted in the sewer and water
enterprise funds, respectively). e L e R e O e s Lo o e (OO PR 1 4,071,202 § 9,026,570 $ 13,097,772 % 16,065,334
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 3210336 $ 5217404 § 8427740 $ (1,295,172)
Adjpustments to tecomaile operating income (loss) to net
cazh [rom operating activitics:
Changes n assets and labilities not cequinng curcent expenditure of cash:
Deprecation.. 1,051,048 940,356 1,991,404 -
Net OPEB obligation 385,140 469,534 854,674 -
Changes in assets and labilit quiring cureent expenditure of cash;
Unility liens. . 945 (13,864) (12,919) -
Water fees... B (1,162,642) (1,162,642) .
Sewer fees. 410,280 - 410,280 -
Specul assessmoents. . (18,733) - (18,733) -
Workmg capital deposit a v - (102,002)
Warsants payable.... (47,237) (7o) (47,407) (328,075)
Acerued liabilities.. (47,396) (337,303) (384,699) 80,718
Accrued payroll. . (21,302) (19,247 (40,549) (10,941)
Othee liabilities., (455,101) (755,593) (1,210,694) 1,342,670
Luabilitics payable from restncted assets. 2,536 8,405 10,941 -
Accrued health clams payable... - - - 110,422
Workers' compensation........... - - - 332,049
Accrued compensated absenees.. . coocvniiciiea. 8,307 4,530 12,837 -
Total adUSHTENTS uyunssunsasssssrnnssansssnsssssnssssspessssssssnsmsnsnssassmnsnssanssss 1,268,487 (865,994) 402,493 1,424,841
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..o cresercss s esnesssnsssssevanmioness $ 44783823 § 4,351,410 § 8,830,233 $ 129,669
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPAT and MWRA).......ooiiieiiiimiiniiieceiaiiaens § 537,508 % 349,699 §$ 887,207 § -

See notes to basic financial statements.



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011

Pension Private
Trust Fund Putpose Agency

ASSETS (As of 12/31/10) Ttust Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents. ... $ 5,899,140 § 1,777,235 1,225,873
INVESHMENTS. .ot e - 7,289,810 -

EqUIties. . ..o 139,635,395 - -

Mutual bond funds.............oo 42,623,884 -

Real estate. ... ...t i 28,308,762 - -

Alternative. ... i 24,652,125 - -
Interest and dividends. .....ccoovriiiiiieiiini e - 22258 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Intergovernmental. ... 260,782 -

LOaDS . - et 5 20,436 -

Total aSSELS. ... ieiii i 241,380,088 9,109,739 1,225,873

LIABILITIES

Warrants payable...........o.o 7,602 - -

Payroll withholdings..............cooveiiiiii . 204,433

Other liabilities. . .......ooi e, - 1,021,440

Due to the general fund...............ocoo - 30,813

Total HabiliHes . ... .oee i 7,602 30,813 1,225,873

NET ASSETS

Held in trust fot pension benefits and other purposes................. $ 241372486 § 9,078,926 -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Net investment income:
Net appreciation/(depreciation) in fair value of investments..............
Interest. .o
Total investment income (0SS)..........cooeiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin.l,
Less INVestment eXPense. ... .uue v ettt
Net investment income (08S)...........ocoirmiiaiiiiiiniiiicneeane ..
Intergovernmental...........oo i

Transfers from othet SYStems. . ........vouiiniiiiii e,

TOTAL ADDITIONS. ...t e

DEDUCTIONS
Retitement benefits. .......ocooiiei i
Refunds of contributions & transfers to othet systems....................
AdminiStration eXPEMSE. .. ...uuueiteeitaitie et e e
Educational scholarships & awatds........coocoiiiiiiiiiiiniiin

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ... ettt

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. ......ovoiiiiiiii i

NET ASSETS ATEND OF YEAR. .. ..ciiiiiiiiieieece e

See notes to basic financial statements.

Pension Private
T'rust Fund Purpose
(As of 12/31/10) Trust Funds
15,127,456 §
7,661,211 3
= 172,939
22,788,667 172,939
21,040,141 )
7,623,816 1,081,339
28,663,957 1,081,339
(1,103,868)
27,560,089 1,081,339
278,119
993,065 -
51,619,940 1,254,278
30,247,733
2,321,187 -
264,776 32,996
- 364,499
32,833,696 397,495
18,786,244 856,783
222,586,242 8,222,143
241372486 § 9,078,926
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011
Component Units
Newton Newton Newton
Commonwealth Community Community
Foundation, Inc. Development Farm, Inc.
(As 0f 12/31/10) Authority (As of 12/31/10) Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............c.cceivivaiiiirvininiiiniiiiianans 561,893 : 126,541 § 688,434
Restricted cash and cash equivalents..........oovevvvviiiiiiiiniiniinnn 328,391 3,490 331,881
Interest and dividends.....cooevniviiiiiariniiiiniii e - 448,633 - 448,633
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Departmental and other........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiia 10,603 - 403 11,006
I T PP - 85,026 - 85,026
[0 T T T U - - 457 457
Prepaid eXpenses. . .uevieiiie i e 3,300 - 730 4,030
INVEDOTYasnums v v v e S @sBAE R e eereneeen e EITERTREEIRD v e v e e e rans - 782 782
Total CULTENE ASSEES. 1. auiitnireretarinseiiirarieaneeenirsrreens 575,796 862,050 132,403 1,570,249
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Loans. sgfvaiil ... 0laalididiis L SR TEERRIERE . e - 3,902,599 - 3,902,599
Capital assets:
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation..... .. .cueeuen.... 1,820,337 - 244,363 2,064,700
Total NONCULLENT ASSELS.1vuvrrnvsrsseaiseanaernenereeneannss 1,820,337 3,902,599 244,363 5,967,299
TOtAl BSSEES. . ovuir vt et et r e aans 2,396,133 4,764,649 376,766 7,537,548
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable 64,444 - 7,763 72,207
Accrued liabilides 104,083 - 104,083
Total liabilities. .........ooooviiiiiiiiiiic i, G4 444 104,083 7,763 176,290
FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............. . 1,820,337 - 244,363 2,064,700
Unrestricted. . e eeuieu e e iraie e e e 511,352 4,660,566 124,640 5,296,558
TOLAl NEL ASSEES. +-vveiueiraeeecnenereia e e e ere e eeieeneaseanaaeiasns 2.331,689 4,660,566 369,003 § 7,361,258

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Component Units

Newton Newton Newton
Commonwealth Community Community
Foundation, Inc, Development Farm, Inc.
_(Asof12/31/10) Authority (As 0f 12/31/10) Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges fOr SEIVICES. . uummiinii ittt e vecii e e ia 5 307,026 § - 8§ 97,540 % 404,566

ContrbUHONS 141 u ittt s i ettt e e eanes - - 57,427 57,427

OBttt ettt ettt se ettt et rn . 3,717,830 - 3,717,830

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. ....cvvvniiiiiiiiiiiiiienanieenns 307,026 3,717,830 154,967 4,179,823
OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and employee benefits............ccoivviiviiiiiiiiiaiiininns 28,268 . 133,053 161,321

Other operating expenses. . 50,000 1,972,686 - 2,022,686

Depreciation 123,862 - - 123,862

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......ccuiiiniiiiiiiiiiiinienenenannns 202,130 1,972,686 133,053 2,307,869
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS). .ttt iteiiiesieee et ciieeeeneenennns 104,896 1,745,144 21,914 1,871,954
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

TNVeStMENE INCOME. 1 .1ueitiiitiiiciiiein et e e e st s et e raie e 4,105 28 849 4,982
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS. . ccieinitiiniiiiieinieiineiineiinaeiennns 109,001 1,745,172 22,763 1,876,936
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR..........cccocviiennnnenn. 2,222,688 2,915,394 346,240 5,484,322
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR......ccvoiiiiiiiiiniciirerenennnns $ 2,331,689 § 4,660,566 % 369,003 % 7,361,258

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Newton, Massachusetts (the City) is 2 municipal corporation governed by an elected Mayor, who serves a four -
yeat tetm, and a twenty-four member Board of Aldermen, who setve two-year terms. Sixteen of the members of the Board of
Aldetrmen ate elected at large, and eight members are elected from one of the City’s eight wards. The current city charter was
approved by the voters of the City on November 2, 1971, and became effective January 1972.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accotdance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the standard setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting.

"The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the City and its component units, legally separate organizations
for which the City is financially accountable ot integrated.

Blended Component Unit

The following component unit provides setvices ot benefits exclusively or almost exclusively to the City or its employees and
is therefore blended and reported as if it were part of the City:

The Newton Contributory Retirement System (the System) was established to provide retirement benefits to City employees,
Newton Housing Authority employees and their respective beneficiaties. The System is governed by a five member board
comprised of the City Comptroller (ex officio); an appointee of the Mayor; two members elected by the active and retired
members of the System, and one member appointed by the other four members. The System is presented using the accrual
basis of accounting and is reported as a pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds financial statements.

‘The System does not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available unaudited financial
repott in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Public Employee Retirement
Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 1000 Commonwealth Avenue,
Newton, Massachusetts 02459.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The following component units are discretely presented in the government-wide financial statements because of the nature
and/or significance of their relationships with the City. Each of the component units described below are considered major
component units.

The Newton Commonswealth Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was established for the management of the Newton Commonwealth
Golf Course on the site formerly known as the Chestnut Hill Country Club. The Foundation is governed by a fifteen member
board appointed by the Mayor and are subject to confitmation approval by a majority of the Board of Aldermen. The annual
operating budget of the Foundation is subject to approval by the Mayor. Complete audited financial statements may be
obtained by wtiting to the Foundation Chaitman at Newton City Hall, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton, Massachusetts

02469.

The Newton Community Development Authority (the Authority) was established in 1975 pursuant to Chapter 705 of the Massachusetts
General Laws to develop housing programs for low and moderate income families, the eldetly and handicapped residents of
the City. The Authority is governed solely by the City’s Ditector of Planning and Development, who is appointed by the
Mayor, subject to confirmation approval by a majority of the Board of Aldermen. The Authority does not issue a separate
audited financial statement.

34



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

The Newton Community Farm, Inc., a non-profit organization, was established in 2005 to preserve the historic Angino Farm,
including its open space, buildings, and farm structures. The farm, building, and structures are owned by the City of Newton
and licensed out to the organization. Complete audited financial statements may be obtained by writing to the Newton
Community Farm’s administrative office located at 303 Nahanton Street, Newton, Massachusetts 02459.

B. Implementation of New Accounting Principles

Fort the year ending June 30, 2011, the City implemented the following pronouncements issued by the GASB:
® GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
® GASB Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans

e  GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus

GASB Statement No. 54 established standards for fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to obsetve constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in
governmental funds. Additionally, the definitions of the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund, debt service
fund, and permanent fund types ate clarified by the provisions in this Statement.

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 57 and Statement No. 59 had no reporting impact for the City.

C. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the City) including its blended component units. These statements include the financial activities of the
overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize double counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type
activities ate financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-
type activities of the City and for each major function/service program of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses
are those that are specifically associated with a progtam and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a patticular service. Vehicle
maintenance; retirement benefits; wotkets’ compensation; property and liability insurance; health insurance subsidies; claims
and judgments; othet; and state assessments and charges costs have been allocated to major functions/programs in order to
present a more accurate and complete picture of the cost of City setvices. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or setvices offered by the major programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requitements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component unit. Sepatate statements fot each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, with each displayed in a
separate column in their respective governmental fund and proptietary fund financial statements. All remaining governmental
funds are aggregated and reported in a separate column.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Internal setvice funds of the City (which provide setvices ptimatily to other funds of the City) are presented, in summary
form, as part of the proprietary funds financial statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are the City’s
governmental activities, financial statements of the intetnal service funds are presented in the governmental activities column
when presented at the government-wide level. The costs of these services are allocated to the appropriate function/program
(general government, public safety, education, public wotks, health and human services, and culture and recreation) in the
statement of activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from exchange transactions (charges for setvices) associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions ate those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition, such as intergovernmental subsidies and investment earnings, are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The fund is used to account for and repott all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another

fund.

Community Preservation Fund: This fund accounts for the 1% local property tax surcharge that the voters of the City
approved in November of 2001 for open space, histotic tesoutce and affordable housing purposes. The Commonwealth of
Massachusetts cutrently matches (in the subsequent fiscal year) local surcharge revenue on a percentage basis that can change
annually.

‘The Boatd of Aldermen has appropriation authority over all community preservation funds; however, all appropriation
recommendations must originate with the nine membet community preservation committee.

High School Improvements Fund: This fund accounts for major improvements that are being made to the City’s two high
schools, and are being financed by the sale of long term debt and state grants.

‘The non-major governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are aggregated
and presented in the non-major governmental funds column on the govetnmental funds financial statements. The following
describes the general use of these fund types:

Special revenne funds are used to account for and repott the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt setvice or capital projects.

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition ot construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital
projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proptietary funds or for assets that will be held in
trust for individuals, private organizations, ot othet governments.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report tesources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not
principal, may be used for purposes that support the government’s programs and benefit the government or its citizenty.

The City also reports the following major enterptise funds:

Sewer Fund: This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s sanitary sewer collection and disposal system.
The City is charged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) for disposal of sanitary

sewerage.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Water Fund: This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water supply and distribution system.
The City is charged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) for water supply.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds account for group health, workers’ compensation, building and general liability insurance
protection to City departments on a cost teimbursement basis.

Pension Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources for defined
benefit pension benefit payments to qualified employees and retirees and their survivors. This fund is excluded from the
City’s government-wide financial statements.

Private Purpose Trust Funds: These funds are used to account for tesources legally held in trust for the benefit of persons and
otganizations other than the City. Since such funds can not be used for purposes of providing City setvices, they are excluded
from the City’s government-wide financial statements.

Agency Fund: This fund is used to account for monies held on behalf of parties other than the City, such as state and federal
agencies; independent not-for-profit organizations for which the City collects private donations; the Metro Fire District; and
public school student activities. This fund is excluded from the City’s government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary

funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when eatned and expenses are recorded at the time that liabilities ate incurted, regatrdless of when the
telated cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving
(ot giving) equal value in exchange, include property, motor excise and hotel room occupancy taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from propetty taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Detived tax revenues, such as hotel room occupancy taxes, that result from assessments imposed by the City on exchange
transactions are recognized when the undetlying exchange occurs. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

For the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements, all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements issued on or ptior to Novembet 30, 1989, are applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with ot
contradict GASB pronhouncements.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds ate reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. The City considers revenues teported in the governmental funds to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereaftet to pay liabilities of the cutrent period. For this purpose, the
City considets tevenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property taxes, motor excise taxes,
charges for service, investment income, and in lieu of tax payments are considered to be susceptible to accrual. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized when all eligibility requirements have been satisfied and they are measurable
and available.

Expenditures ate tecorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and intetest on general long term
debt, compensated absences, landfill post closure monitoring costs (and other environmental liabilities) and claims and
judgments, which ate recognized as expenditures only to the extent that they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions
ate reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long term debt and acquisitions under capital leases
are reported as other financing sources.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

D. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments
The City’s cash and cash equivalents ate considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term investments with an
otiginal maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are cartied at fair value.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Permanent fund cash and cash equivalents and investments and cash and cash equivalents associated with certain development
and water and sewer utility deposits are classified as restricted. Other assets are classified as restricted when their use is
restricted by third-patty covenants.

Receivables
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful collections. Qutstanding personal propetty
taxes, motot excise taxes and parking violations that are three or more years old have been classified as uncollectible for

financial reporting putposes.

Based upon an analysis of water and sewer receivable activity over the past three years, 9.5% and 9.7% of outstanding water
and sewer user charges receivable have been assigned to an allowance for doubtful collections. Real estate taxes receivable are
secuted by tax liens, and therefore are considered 100% collectible. Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100%

collectible.

Property taxes: The City is responsible for assessment and collection of all property taxes. The Board of Assessors determine
the estimated fair value of all real and personal property, subject to the property tax, each January 1. Taxes are then levied on
each propetty based upon the budget that is adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen net of the amount of state aid and
other revenues. Property taxes are due in quarterly installments - August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1, and subject
to penalties and 14% interest if not paid by the due date. Taxes due on August 1 and November 1 are estimated based upon
the prior year tax bill since the tax rate is generally not finalized until late November or December. The February 1 and May 1
tax bills are adjusted to reflect the actual tax levy. Itis the City’s policy to perfect tax liens on delinquent properties within
one year of the date that the tax is levied.

Motor vehicle excise taxes: Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the City and are
tecorded as recetvables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000
of value.

Water and Sewer User Charges: User fees are billed quattetly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties
and interest if they ate not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed in December of every year
and are included as a lien on the property ownet’s tax bill. Water and sewer charges and related liens are recorded as
teceivables in the fiscal year of the levy. Unbilled amounts are estimated based upon actual billing amounts subsequent to

year-end.

Intergovernmental: Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually.
For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables ate recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. For
expenditure dtiven grants, receivables are tecognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other eligibility
requirements have been met.

Inventories

The amount of inventories is not material to the government-wide and fund financial statements of the City and therefore is
recorded as expenditures at the time of putchase.
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Capital Assets
Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at

their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repaits that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend the assets’ useful
lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $15,000 or more and an estimated useful life of
more than a single year. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 7-20 years
Buildings and improvements 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 yeats
Infrastructure 20-50 years

Inter-fund Transactions

Inter-fund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, ot transfers. Loans atre reported as
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination in the government-wide statements. Setvices provided,
deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur
when one fund incurs a cost, chatges the approptiate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All
other inter-fund transactions are treated as transfers and are repotted “gross™ in the fund financial statements. Ttansfers
between governmental funds are eliminated in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements, while transfers
between governmental and proprietaty funds are reported “net”.

Deferred Revenue

Defetted revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resoutces measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Deferred revenue, if appropriate, is recognized as revenue in the convetsion to the government-wide (full accrual) financial

statements.

Net Assets and Fund Balances

Government — wide financial statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net Assels) — Net assets are reported as restricted
when constraints placed on net asset use are either extetnally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, ot laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions ot enabling legislation. Net assets have
been reported as restricted for the following putposes:

¢  Capital purposes represent unspent proceeds of bonds, notes and grants that ate restricted for specific capital
projects.

¢ Community preservation activities represent amounts testricted by state statute for open space; histotic
preservation, and affordable housing under the Community Preservation program.

® Education activities represent amounts received from the U.S. Depattment of Education, the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts’ Department of Education, and various ptivate donors for public education services.

®  Other postemployment benefits represent amounts restticted for other postemployment benefits.
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® Debt service represents amounts accumulated from Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for future
payment of long-term debt service costs associated with school construction. This amount will be amottized over
the next 16 fiscal yeats.

® Perpetual funds — expendable represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

® Petrpetual funds — non-expendable represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may be
expended.

®  Other specific purposes represent resttictions placed on assets by other outside parties.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable — represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (i.e., prepaid amounts)
ot because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., principal of permanent fund).

Restricted — represents amounts that can be spent only for specific putposes because of constitutional provisions ot enabling
legislation ot because of constraints that are extetnally imposed by cteditors, grantors, contributors, ot the laws or regulations
of other governments.

Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action of the Board of
Alderman, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the City. Committed amounts may be established,
modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by the Board of Alderman.

Assigned — represents amounts that do not meet the ctitetia to be classified as restricted or committed but are intended to be
used for specific purposes. Under the City’s structure, only authotized assignments for non-contractual encumbrances can be
made by individual depattment heads.

Unassigned — represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of any other
governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund balance
classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned fot specific purposes for which resources already have been allocated.

Long term debt

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements — Long term debt is reported as a liability in the government wide and
proptietary fund statements of net assets. Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable ate reported net of the applicable premium or discount.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements — The face amount of governmental funds long term debt is reported as other financing
soutces in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Bond premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond
discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whethet ot not withheld from the actual bond proceeds, are
reported as General Government (financial administration) expenditures.
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Investment Income
Excluding the permanent funds, investment income detived from major and non-major governmental funds is legally assigned

to the General Fund, unless otherwise ditected by legal ot conttactual provisions.
Investment income from proptietary funds is retained in the funds.

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation leave, special leave (sick, religious observance, petsonal leave), and enhanced longevity
benefits based upon collective bargaining agreements and city ordinance. These benefit costs are accrued when earned in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only if the
benefit had been earned at June 30 as a result of a tetitement, resighation, or termination, and the benefit is expected to be
paid immediately after the start of the new fiscal year. Vacation pay is classified as a current liability, while special leave and
school enhanced longevity benefits are classified as non-current liabilities.

Post Retirement Benefits
In addition to providing pension benefits and as more fully desctibed in Note 12, the City provides health and life insurance

coverage for curtent and future retitees and their spouses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosute of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the basic financial statements and the treported amounts of the revenues and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal
year. Actual results could vaty from estimates that were used.

Total Column

Government-wide financial statements — The total column presented in the government-wide financial statements represents
consolidated financial information.

Fund financial statements — The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial
analysis. Data in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budget Information

‘The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts require that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen adopt a
balanced budget each fiscal year. The City Chatter requites that the Mayor submit a recommended budget to the Board of
Aldetmen and that the Board adopt the budget, with or without amendments, within forty-five days following the day the
budget is received. The Board of Aldermen may approve, reduce ot reject any budget recommendation of the Mayor by
majotity vote, but may not increase an appropriation without the concutrence of the Mayor. Annual approptiations are
recommended and approved for the General Fund and Community Presetvation Fund for personal services (salaries and
wages), expenses (supplies and services), debt service and capital outlay/improvements, and fringe benefits. A single bottom-
line appropriation budget is recommended and voted for the Newton Public Schools.

Amendments to the original budget; transfers between municipal departments; and transfers between departmental

appropriation units require prior approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and in the case of a transfer from one
department to another, the approval of the head of the department from which funds ate being transferred is also required.
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The Comptroller’s Office has responsibility for making cettain that the budget is executed in accordance with the plan
approved by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and monthly approptiation status repotts are provided to the Mayor and
Board. Budgetary control is exercised on a line item basis for all municipal departments and transfers between line items
within departmental appropriation units require advance approval of the Comptroller. Encumbrance accounting is used as an
additional control measure. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities since goods and setvices have not been received.

Although unobligated annual appropriation balances generally lapse at yeat-end, it is the City’s policy to continue cettain
appropriations into the following year under certain limited circumstances. These are limited to amounts voted as special
(multi-year) appropriations (generally capital outlay and improvements), capital maintenance funds, property tax tevaluation
progtam appropriations and funds included in the annual budget for settlement of collective bargaining contracts that have not
been settled at yeatr-end.

An annual budget is adopted in conformity with the guidelines described above. The original fiscal year 2011 General Fund
and Community Preservation Fund budgets authorized $297,487,630 and $9,925,624 (including ptiot year encumbrances and
continuing appropriations), respectively, in approptiations and other amounts to be raised. Duting the fiscal yeat, the Mayor
and Board of Aldermen authorized supplemental approptiations for the General Fund totaling $8,130,878, and reduced
appropriations for the Community Preservation Fund by $65,016, for total budgets of $305,618,510 and $9,860,608,
respectively.

Total General Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds totaled $300,134,625, and $3,823,827 in approptiation balances
were cattied forward into fiscal year 2012 to support encumbrances and continuing apptroptiations.

Total Community Preservation Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds were $3,971,169, and $5,158,444 in
appropriation balances were cartied forward into fiscal yeat 2012 to suppott encumbrances and continuing approptiations.
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B. Budget to GAAP Reconciliation
Accounting principles followed for putposes of preparing the financial statements on a budgetaty basis differ from those used

to present financial statements in accordance with GAAP. A reconciliation of the budgetaty-basis to GAAP-basis results for
the General Fund and Community Preservation Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are presented below:

General Fund
Other Financing
Revenues Expenditures Soutces (Uses)
Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual................co $ 284847375 § 295,720,808 $ 5,918,032
Reclassifications
Activity of stabilization fund recorded in the general fund
for GAAD PULPOSES. .. et itiitaneie e e e 13,905 - (3,208,660)
Activity of other postemployment benefits fund recorded
in the general fund for GAAP putposes....................... 295 - 137,000
Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day receipts..........c.c.cccvenenene. 423,302 = -
Net change in recording tax refunds payable.................... 501,378 - -
To record activity for landfill closute subsidy................... 78,151 78,151 -
To record activity of MTRS on-behalf payments............... 29,382,717 29,382,717 =
Net change in collective bargaining accrual...................... - (1,426,147) -
Net change in recording other revenues......................... 1,106,756 -
Net change in recording other expenditures............cc...... - (233,097) -
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances...................... $ 316,353,879 $ 323522432 % 2,846,372
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Community Preservation Fund

Revenues Hxpenditures

Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual................... $ 2,992908 § 3,909,440

Adjustments
Net change in recording 60-day teceipts...............c..ouen... 20,333

Net change in recording other expenditures.................... - (451,999)

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of tevenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances...................... $ 3,013,241 § 3,517,441

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments
A. Summary of Deposit and Investment Balances

City (Excluding the Pension Trust Fund)

"The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authotize the City to invest temporatily idle cash in bank term deposits and
certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government, with maturities of one year or
less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with matutities of not more than 90 days; money market accounts; and the
state treasutet’s investment pool — the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and opetates in accordance with applicable state laws and
regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth setves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair
value of pool shares.

The municipal finance laws allow the City to invest ptivate purpose trust funds in securities other than mortgages ot collateral
loans that are legal for the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Investments for the City are teported at fair value.

The City maintains a cash and short term investment pool that is available for use by all funds with unrestticted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of private putpose and pensions trust funds are held sepatately from other City
funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be recoveted. The
City does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30, 2011, $61,633,282 of the City’s bank balance of
$83,099,833 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
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The City’s investments at June 30, 2011 ate presented below. All investments are presented by investment type, with debt

securities presented by matutity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10

Debt Secutities:
U.S. Treasuries..........cooevvnn.... 3,731,305 % 101,109 §$ 2,914,058 $ - $ 716,138
U.S. Agencies.........cocoveinennn. 1,439,094 302,225 1,136,869 - -
Corporate bonds.................... 349,200 157,083 165,651 26,466 -
Money market mutual funds....... 821,146 821,146 - -
Mutual bond funds................. 506,777 506,777 - -
Certificate of deposits.............. 263,965 64,708 199,257
External investment pools......... 40,521,031 40,521,031 -

Total debt secutities............... 47,632,518 § 42,474,079 % 4415835 § 26,466 § 716,138
Othet Investments:
Equity securities.................... 10,643,118
Equity mutual funds................ 143,150
Real estate investments............. 402,779

Total other investments..........

Total investments...................

11,189,047

58,821,565

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate tisk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect the fair value

of an investment. The City does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.
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Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the countetpatty, the City will not be able to
recover the value of its investments ot collateral securities that ate in the possession of an outside party. The City does not
have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of June 30, 2011, $7,532,014 of the City’s investments of $58,821,565
were uninsured, not registered in the name of the City and exposed to custodial credit tisk as follows:

Held by

Fair Held by Countetparty's

Investment Type Value Counterparty Trust or Agent
U.S. Treasuties....ccooveivvininnnn.n, $ 811,804 $ - $ 811,804
U.S. Agencies.......coovveiinnenenn.. 757,876 - 757,876
Cotporate bonds...................... 349,200 - 349,200
Money market mutual funds......... 507,861 507,861 -
Mutual bond funds.................... 506,777 - 506,777
Equity securities...........c.ocoeniin. 4,191,381 . 4,191,381
Equity mutual funds.................. 143,150 143,150 -
Certificates of deposit................. 263,965 263,965 -
Total.ooveiii $ 7,532,014 $ 914,976 $ 6,617,038

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other countetparty to a debt security will not fulfill its obligations. The
City does not have a policy for credit tisk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2011, the credit quality ratings of the City’s
investments in debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings*
Fair
Investment Type Value AA-2 Aa2 Al A2 Unrated
Cotporate bonds.................. $ 349,200 § 40256 $ 101,527 § 99,894 § 107,523 § -
Money market mutual funds..... 821,146 - - . - 821,146
Mutual bond funds............... 506,777 - - - - 506,777
Certificates of deposit............ 263,965 - - - - 263,965
External investment pools....... 40,521,031 - = - - 40,521,031
Total....ovviiiiiiii i, $§ 42462119 § 40,256 § 101,527 § 99,894 $ 107,523 §  42,112919

* Per the rating scale of Moody’s and Standard and Poot’s (hational credit rating organizations)
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Pension Trust Fund (The System)

Pension trust fund investments (mote fully described in note 18), include a combination of public and private real estate
limited partnership investments, which represents 11.7% of the Pension Fund’s total investments. ‘The structute, tisk profile,
return potential and marketability of these investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value can be
determined only by negotiation between the patties to a sales transaction. The City has determined the value of these
investments from investment advisors, based upon independent year end appraisals.

"The Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT) meets the ctitetia of an external investment pool and operates in accordance
with applicable state laws and regulations. The Treasuter of the Commonwealth setves as Trustee and provides regulatoty
oversight. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the City’s position in pool shares.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be tecovered.
The System does not have a policy for custodial credit tisk of deposits. As of December 31, 2010, the System is not exposed
to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The System’s investments at December 31, 2010 are presented below. All investments ate presented by investment type, with
debt secutities presented by maturity.

Investment
Maturities
(in Years)
Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1
Debt Securities:
Money market mutual funds (PRIT).......... $ 200,037 $ 200,037
Debt security mutual funds (PRIT)............ 42,623,884 42,623,884
External investment pools...................... 5,699,103 5,699,103
Total debt securities........................... 48,523,024 § 48,523,024

Other Investments:

Equity mutual funds...................o L 139,635,395
Real estate investments (PRIT)................ 18,016,745
Real estate investments (non PRIT)........... 10,292,017
Alternative investments (PRIT)................ 24,652,125

Total other investments....................... 192,596,282
Total INVeStMENts. .......ovuvuurneeenennennnn. $ 241,119,306
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Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The System’s policy is that at least 15%, but no mote than 30% of the pottfolio must be invested in fixed
income securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterpatty, the System will not be able
to recover the value of its investments or collateral secutities that are in the possession of an outside party. The System does
not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. The custodial arrangements are reflective of the fact that System
assets are invested in pooled funds as opposed to individual secutities. As of December 31, 2010, the System’s ivestments
were not exposed to custodial credit.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its obligations.
The System’s policy is that bonds shall have a minimum quality rating of Baa or equivalent as rated by one ot mote recognized
bond rating services, however, 5% of the total investment pottfolio tmay be invested in bonds with a2 minimum quality rating
of CCC as rated by Standard & Poot’s Corporate and Municipal Rating Setvice. As of December 31, 2010, the ctedit quality
ratings of the System’s debt securities ate as follows:

Quality Ratings*
Fair
Investment Type Value Unrated
Money market mutual funds................... $ 200,037 $ 200,037
Debt security mutual funds (PRIT)........... 42,623,884 42,623,884
External investment pools..................... 5,699,103 5,699,103
Total. .o § 48,523,024 $ 48,523,024

* Per the rating scale of Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s (national ctedit tating organizations)
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Note 4 - Receivables

At June 30, 2011, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and non-major governmental, intetnal service and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including applicable allowances for amounts estimated to be uncollectible, ate as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal propetty taxes..... $ 4327359 § (296,879) $ 4,030,480
Real estate tax defertals....................... 3,226,051 = 3,226,051
Tax and utility liens...........cooooeoiinne. 6,232,196 - 6,232,196
Motort vehicle excise taxes.................... 1,829,220 (1,183,236) 645,984
Community preservation surchatges........ 43,713 - 43,713
Charges for ServiCes........vviviiiieeinnnn.. 553,726 - 553,726
Special assesSmMeNnts........ocvvveevininnnnnn. 603,882 - 603,882
Departmental and othet...................... 7,787,714 (2,844,179) 4,943,535
Intergovetnmental..................coll L. 5,295,201 - 5,295,201
Loans...cooiiiiiiiii 20,436 - 20,436

§ 29919498 § (4,324,294) § 25,595,204

At June 30, 2011, receivables for the Enterprise Funds consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Chatges for services.........ccoevveinnainnnnn. $ 15,290,660 $ (1,227,535) § 14,063,125
Utility Hens.....ovvvvieiiiiiiie i 468,702 = 468,702
Special assessments............coveiiiiiainin, 82,348 - 82,348
Intergovernmental....................ol 2,294,922 - 2,294,922
§ 18,136,632 § (1,227,535) § 16,909,097
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Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. At June 30, 2011, the various components of defetred tevenue repotted
in the governmental funds were:

Community High School Nonmajor
General Preservation Improvements Governmental
Fund Fund (Major) Fund (Major) Funds Total
Receivable type:

Real estate and personal property taxes............ $  3,134301 § - 3 S - - $ 3,134,301
Real estate tax deferrals..................oo, 3,226,051 - < - 3,226,051
Tax and utility liens............cooci i, 6,224,328 - - 7,868 6,232,196
Motor vehicle excise taxes.........ooevvinreeine... 96,857 < . . 96,857
Community preservation surcharges............... - 23,379 - - 23,379
Charges for services.........ccooviiiviiiiiiinnnn.. 41,881 - - 262,161 304,042
Special assessments............coooiiiiiinieennn, 603,832 - - . 603,882
Departmental and other................oocia . 4,916,577 - - - 4,916,577
Intergovernmental (state school construction).... - 2,328,858 - 2,328,858
Intergovernmental (other state and federal)...... 527,124 625,763 - - 1,152,887

Total. .o $ 18,771,001 $ 649,142 § 2,328,858 § 270,029 $§ 22,019,030

The MSBA has approved a grant totaling $46,577,166 for the Newton Notth High School project. The grant amount
represents 60% of total eligible project costs, not to exceed the approved amount. The City has received $44,248,308 of such
assistance. An intergovernmental receivable and corresponding deferred revenue for the temaining balance of $2,328,858 has
been recorded in the High School Improvements major governmental fund’s financial statements. The defetred revenue has
been recognized as revenue in the convetsion to the government-wide financial statements.
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for governmental activities fot the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land.. .o 22,226,126 $ - $ s $ 22,226,126
Construction in ProOgress. ... ...cocveveveiiiiiniiienieeeins, 175,076,100 3,832,428 (169,548,340) 9,360,188
Sub-total mevssizssmuE i i s s 197,302,226 3,832,428 (169,548 .340) 31,586,314
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements.................ooiieia .. 213,109,389 198,438,784 - 411,548,173
Equipment and machinery.................oc 55,944,634 3,292,961 (551,068) 58,686,527
Road network. ... 61,910,742 2,766,677 - 64,677,419
Sub-total.....ovii 330,964,765 204,498,422 (551,068) 534,912,119
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements.....................oo (92,844,775) (8,737,620) - (101,582,395)
Equipment and machinery.................... (36,197,965) (4,310,354) 547,086 (39,961,233)
Road network. ..o (20,873,418) (1,492,967) - (22,366,385)
SUD-E0tAL. 1 vttt e s (149.916,158) (14,540,941) 547,086 (163,910,013)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net...................... 181,048,607 189,957,481 (3,982) 371,002,106
Governmental capital assets, net...................ocoiiienn $ 378,350,833 § 193,789,909 $ (169,552,322) $ 402,588,420

Depreciation was charged to governmental fund programs in the Statement of Activities as follows:

Legislative & executive...........vevuiuiniiiiii i, $ 3,585
ElecHons. ... 25,861
Administrative SUPPOLE. ... ...oeeiriiititieieiiiieeiiianaes 135,535
Public building maintenance and opetations................... 155,459
POlCE. . e 783,426
Ei€. 2% . -@. - % .65 T -0+ TTE -EEEEET: 1. » T -EFETTEETTRREY .. SR 691,916
Inspectional sefvices...........oveeiiiiiiiiice 12,085
Other public safety.............cooooiiiiiii 1,541
Education.......cooooiiiiiiii 8,888,805
Streets and sidewalks. ..., 2,607,157
Control of snow and ice...........ocoovviii i, 13,250
SOHA Waste. ...ttt 998
Publichealth..........c.oooiii 3,600
RS ST e TS s Lo = T 48,665
BT s (= T 933,706
Parks and tecteation........... ..o 229,762
Newton history museum. . .......ocovivviinireiinniieiinanans 5,590

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities. ...... $ 14,540,941
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Capital asset activity for individual entetprise funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Water system:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land.. .o $ 258,540 S - S - 258,540
Construction I Progress. .. ..vov.e v trrirereierrinenaaanen.. 3,049 917 4,195,267 - 7,245,184
Sub-totalcnsmmsisri e s 3,308,457 4,195,267 7,503,724
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements..............c.cooeiiiieL. 2,203,492 - 2,203,492
Equipment and machinery..................... 4,431,632 - - 4,431,632
Water SYStemm. ..ouuii e 36,726,335 3,912,306 - 40,638,041
Sub-total......oo 43,361,459 3,912,306 47,273,765
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements...................co, (1,014,870) (33,163) (1,048,033)
Equipment and machinery.................... (3,287,283) (129,905) - (3,417,188)
Water SYStemM. . vt (8,541,550) (777,288) - (9,318,838)
Sub-totalissssrmiiviniiivaiigin i se e T (12,843,703) (940,356) (13,784,059)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net...................... 30,517,756 2,971,950 - 33,489,706
Water system capital assets, net...............cooooiiiiinin.. $ 33,826,213 $ 7,167,217 $ - 40,993,430
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Sewer system
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land....ooooiiii i s e $ 26,245 $ - S 26,245
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements.............ooociiiininnL, 1,867,659 - - 1,867,659
Equipment and machinery.................... 2,327,833 76,816 - 2,404,649
Sanitary sewer SYSEEM. ......ovriiiitiiiiii e 44,206,918 2,766,387 - 46,973,305
Sub-total.... ... 48,402,410 2,843,203 - 51,245,613
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements...............oooiiiiiiiinan. (624,890) (39,126) - (664,016)
Equipment and machinery..............coooiiiiinii (1,066,939) (138,077) - (1,205,016)
Sanitary sewer SYSEeMM. .....vviivieiiii i (15,290,794) (873,845) - (16,164,639)
Sub-total.... ..o (16,982,623) (1,051,048) - (18,033,671)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net...................... 31,419,787 1,792,155 - 33,211,942
Sewer system capital assets, net.........cooooiiieiiiiiiL, $ 31,446,032 § 1,792,155 § - 33,238,187
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Capital asset activity for individual component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Newton Commonwealth Foundation (Golf course):
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements. ..........ooueiiriinninnneaiiiaan . $ 2,579,886 § 76,365 S $ 2,656,251
Buildings and improvements................ooiiiiiininn, 69,481 - 69,481
Equipment and machinery..............coooviiiiii 58,722, 2.559 < 61,281
SUD-OtAl. ... 2,708,089 78,924 - 2,787,013
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements. ........o.vuvveveinaniiiiiai i, (757,252) (117,550) - (874,802)
Buildings and improvements. ... (47,201) (1,943) - (49,144)
Equipment and machinery................ooiin, (38,361) (4,369) - (42,730)
SUB-tOtAL. ..o (842,814) (123,862) (966,676)
Golf course capital assets, net...........coeeeuiviineininn..... -] 1,865,275 § (44.938) S - $ 1,820,337
Beginning Ending
Balances Incteases Decteases Balances
Newton Community Farm:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment and machinery........................ $ 297,252 § 4,610 §$ - S 301,862
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Equipment and machinery..................ocoo (38,328) (19,171) (57,499)
3
Newton community farm capital assets, net.................... $ 258,924 § (14,561) $ 244,363
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Note 6 — Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt at June 30, 2011 is summatized as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation................cc.oeenen. $ 402,588,420
Less: total long-term debt outstanding...............c..ooiiiiiiinnn.. (191,994,800)
Add: long-term debt outstanding not related to asset acquisition...... 1,169,800
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.............ccoevveininn.. $§ 211,763,420
Business-Type Activities Total
Entetprise Funds/
Business-Type
Water Sewer Activities
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation....... $ 40,993,430 § 33,238,187 $ 74,231,617
Less: total long-term debt outstanding................. (20,046,257) (9,677,757) (29,724,014)
Add: grant receivable to fund capital debt............. - 2,294,922 2,294,922
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.......... $ 20,947,174 § 25,855,352 § 46,802,526
Note 7 — Inter-fund Receivables, Payables and Transfers
Receivables and payables between funds at June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Community development block grant - non majot governmental fund ~ § 6,077 {1}
General Fund Street improvements - non major governmental fund 198,244 {2}

Total due from other funds 204,321
General Fund Chaffin education - private putpose trust fund 30,813 {3}

{1} Advance funding pending receipt of Community development block grant reimbursements.
{2} Advance funding pending receipt of state chapter 90 highway construction grant reimbursements.
{3} Advance funding pending teceipt of Chaffin fund reimbursements.
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Inter-fund transfer activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 consisted of the following;

Community Non-Major Water Sewer
Geneml Preservation Governmental Enterprise Enterprise Internal Service Total
Transfer Purpose Fund Fund Funds Fund Tund Funds All Funds

School Lunch fund subsidy,... .. $ (462,000) $ $ 462,000 $ - $ . $ = $ -
School Student Athletic Revolving fund subsidy . (903,678) 903,678 - -
School Security Federal Grant Matching funds (125,750) 125,750 - -
Traffic signalization Federal Grant Matching funds... 40,000 (40,000}
Traffic signalization Federal Grant Matching funds, ....c.uuicreciiiienissenreieroriennsennn. (40,000) 40,000
Elementary School modular design. (75,000) - 75,000 -
Fire Station design funding change..........csvee.. - 4,954 4,954 .
Fire Station design funding change - CSF to Municipal Bldg Fund.....cc.coiveivnniianian. (125,046) 125,046 -
Parking Meter Receipts Reserved fund subsidy of traffic control =1 1,200,000 (1,200,000}
Parking Meter Receipts Reserved fund - Street paving, 500,000 (500,000) 3
Stormwater Management Fund reimburse unused NSHS field design funding............ 16,005 (16,005) -
BAA Marathon Receipts Reserved fund - Playground improvements....... 50,000 (50,000) .
BAA Marathon Receipts Reserved fund - Emerson CC equipment.... 10,000 (10,000) - - -
Water Fund administration and support reimbursement......... 558,534 - - (558,534) - - -
Water Fund administration reimbursement to Sewer Fund - - (922,778) 922,718
Sewer Fund administration and support reimbursement,..,..evivveiiinnienienniinsianinins 837,801 - - (837,801) -
Sale of Recyclable Materials Receipts Reserved fund - solid waste collection/disposal... 400,000 (400,000) -
CATV Receipts Reserved fund - Planning/legal/IT staff.........cvvunvievinians T 100,000 (100,000) .
Newton Wellesley Hospital Traffic Mitigation reimbursement. . 2,469 (2,469) -
Bicycle Rack Installation 1,600 (1,600) -
NCGF Mayor's Golf Day Receipts Reserved fund - Camp scholarships - (15,000) E (15,000)
NCGF Mayor's Golf Day Receipts Reserved fund - Camp scholacships.... . 15,000 - - 15,000
NCGF Mayor's Golf Day Receipts Reserved fund - 4th of July Celebrations. 10,000 - (10,000) - -
CPA Fund engineering and legal support services 1,729 (1,729) . -
School E-Rate Receipts Reserved - School technology. .. 235232 - (235,232) E
FEMA flooding grant reimbursement for building improvements........coueciveevueann.. 120,000 (120,000)
FEMA flooding grant ceimbursement - close balance to reimburse General Fund 4,278 (4,278) .
FEMA flooding grant reimbursement - close balance to reimburse Sewer Fund.. - (155,797) 155,797
Medicaid reimbursement for flu vaccines. .......o.eeiceiicciiisiarionareninnsionns . 5,297 - (5,297) - -
Municipal Building Insurance Fund - FY 2011 property insurance premiums............. 277,582 - (277,582)
Close MEMA storm reimbursement to reimburse General Fund....cuieiieeiiiieeocinie. 174 174 .
Police Station Lobby Improvements (CSF to Municipal Bldg Improv Fund),. (118,500) 118,500
Municipal Building project energy conservation rebates transferred to CSF 136,627 - (136,627)
Close out unexpended parks equipment balance 10 CSF...cuiveviiiiiiiininiiieninnirinn. 9387 - (9,387) - - -

Transfers from other funds........ououiiiisiiimiiiiiiiiii s asinre e trresesreann $ 4516715 § - 3 1,869,928 $ - $ 1078575 % - % 7465218

Transfers (0 Other FUNAS. ... vviveessis s sessie s eiises s e ses e enereetsrseenn e $_ (1,854,928) $ (1,729) $ (3.011,866) $ (1,481312) $__ (837,801) $ (277,582) $__ (7,465,218)

Note 8 - Short-Tetrm Debt

Shott tetm debt may be authorized and issued to fund current opetating costs ptior to the collection of revenues through the
issuance of revenue (RAN’s) or tax anticipation notes (AN’s), ot to finance capital project expenditures prior to the issuance
of permanent long-term debt, through the issuance of bond (BAN’s) ot grant anticipation notes (GAN’s).

The City has no short term debt outstanding at June 30, 2011, and did not issue or retire any shott term debt duting the fiscal

yeat.
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Note 9 - Long-Term Obligations

The follow represents a summary of changes that occutted in long-term obligations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current
2010 Increases Decreases 2011 Potrtion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable....................... $ 187,685,300 $ 13,770,000 % (9,460,500) $§ 191,994,800 $ 9,408,367
Landfill closute and other environmental. ... 910,000 - (105,000) 805,000 105,000
Workers compensation. ........................ 6,684,861 2,151,116 (1,819,067) 7,016,910 1,127,680
Claims and judgments.......................... 40,000 - {40,000) . -
Compensated absences......................... 8,181,848 - (244,139) 7,937,709 2,768,537
Net OPEB obligation. ......................... 81,535,270 48,628,143 (14,892,850) 115,270,563 -
Total .o $ 285,037,279 § 64,549,259 $§  (26,561,556) $ 323,024,982 § 13,409,584
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable....................... $ 29,161,750 $ 4,933,657 §$ (4,371,393) § 29,724,014 § 4,610,497
Compensated absences......................... 303,885 12,837 - 316,722 31,673
Net OPEB obligationt...............cc.ocoo.... 1,937,583 1,132,633 (277,959) 2,792,257
Total. oo $ 31,403,218 § 6,079,127 $ (4,649,352) § 32,832,993 § 4,642,170

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, the internal service fund’s long-term
liabilities ate included as part of the governmental activities totals above. At fiscal year end, $7,016,910 of the internal service

funds accrued liabilities (workers’ compensation claims) is included above.

The outstanding long-term debt related to land acquisition (Kesseler Woods, Angino Farm and Rogers Street) will be funded

from the community presetvation fund (major fund).

Except for the amounts related to the internal service funds and community preservation fund, the governmental activities

long term liabilities are genetally liquidated by the general fund.

Note 10 - Long-Term Debt

Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 10 authotizes indebtedness of up to a limit of 5% of the equalized valuation
of the City. The City’s long term debt at June 30, 2011 along with future year debt setvice requirements is as follows:
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Bonds Payable — Governmental Funds

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%)  July 1, 2010 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2011
MWPAT landfill closure 02/15/1998 4.60 $ 1,307,300 § - (137,500) $ 1,169,800
School renovations..................... 07/15/2000 4.40-4.85 425,000 - (425,000) -
School renovations..................... 08/15/2001 3.65 910,000 = (500,000) 410,000
School renovations..................... 08/15/2003 3.06 2,280,000 - (570,000) 1,710,000
Land acquisition (CPA)............... 12/15/2003 2.0-34 2,000,000 - (500,000) 1,500,000
School renovations..................... 02/15/2005 3.0-4.0 7,500,000 - (500,000) 7,000,000
School renovations...................., 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 9,110,000 - (625,000) 8,485,000
Road improvements................... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 305,000 - (55,000) 250,000
Public works equipment............... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 610,000 - (60,000) 550,000
Fife eqUIpMent............c..cvovv..... 02/15/2006 3.0-4.3 610,000 - (60,000) 550,000
School tenovations..................... 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 7,340,000 - (515,000) 6,825,000
Fire station improvements............ 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 265,000 - (25,000) 240,000
Public works equipment............... 02/01/2007 4.0-5.0 570,000 - (60,000) 510,000
Land acquisition (CPA)................ 11/01/2007 3.98 1,785,000 - (255,000) 1,530,000
Fite station improvements............ 11/01/2007 3.98 450,000 - (40,000) 410,000
School renovations..................... 11/01/2007 3.98 180,000 - (10,000} 170,000
School new construction.............. 11/01/2007 3.98 17,075,000 - (970,000) 16,105,000
School new construction.............. 06/15/2008 4.37 22,645,000 - (450,000) 22,195,000
School renovations..................... 06/15/2008 3.80 1,980,000 - (110,000) 1,870,000
Fire equipment...............c.oeove.e. 06/15/2008 3.80 390,000 - (30,000) 360,000
Public works equipment............... 06/15/2008 3.80 520,000 - (40,000) 480,000
School new construction.............. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 73,640,000 - (1,390,000) 72,250,000
School tenovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 1,925,000 - (105,000) 1,820,000
School renovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 210,000 - (15,000) 195,000
School renovations..................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 735,000 - (40,000) 695,000
South high school athletic fields...... 04/01,/2009 2.0-5.0 3,000,000 - (215,000) 2,785,000
Fire station renovations............... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 2,315,000 - (170,000) 2,145,000
Fire station design...................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 275,000 - (70,000) 205,000
City hall boiler replacement........... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 210,000 - (15,000) 195,000
Bendliffe citcle construction.......... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 165,000 - (20,000) 145,000
Fire equipment.......................e. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 745,000 - (55,000) 690,000
Parks equipment....................... 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 100,000 - (10,000) 90,000
DPW equipment...............oco.e.e. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 560,000 - (40,000) 520,000
School new consttuction.............. 05/01/2010 3.0-4.0 11,650,000 - (390,000) 11,260,000
Fire station tenovations............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 4,538,000 - (238,000) 4,300,000
Underground fuel tanks............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 453,000 - (48,000) 405,000
Modular classrooms................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,400,000 - (95,000) 1,305,000
School renovations..................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,427,000 - (117,000) 1,310,000
Energy consetvation .................. 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 3,670,000 - (245,000) 3,425,000
Fite equipment......................... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 500,000 - (50,000) 450,000
Public wotks equipment............... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 1,910,000 - (195,000) 1,715,000
School new construction.............. 03/30/2011 2.0 11,000,000 - 11,000,000
School tenovations..................... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 - 2,210,000 - 2,210,000
City hall windows...................... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 - 125,000 - 125,000
Public works equipment............... 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 - 435,000 - 435,000
TOtal vt eeeeeeen, $ 187685300 $ 13,770,000 $ _ (9,460,500) $ 191,094,800
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During fiscal year 2011, the City issued $13,770,000 in new general obligation bonds; $11,000,000 for school construction;
$2,210,000 for school renovations; $125,000 for City hall windows; and $435,000 for public works equipment.

During 1998, the City entered into a twenty-year loan agteement with the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Ttust
(MWPAT) to provide $2,675,000 in funding for the closute of the City’s remaining sanitary landfill. The loan agreement
provides for both principal and interest subsidies over the term of the loan. At June 30, 2011, a balance of $1,169,800 was
outstanding on this loan. A principal subsidy of $38,525 and an interest subsidy of $39,626 have been recorded in the general
fund.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for Governmental bonds payable for future yeats is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 9,408,367 § 7,570,861 $ 16,979,228
2013 9,057,167 7,444,195 16,501,362
2014 9,128,867 7,060,860 16,189,727
2015 8,048,367 6,758,076 14,806,443
2016 8,087,967 6,477,680 14,565,647
2017 8,047,667 6,207,150 14,254,817
2018 7,857,467 5,917,292 13,774,759
2019 7,927,267 5,603,164 13,530,431
2020 7,821,667 5,283,760 13,105,427
2021 7,551,667 4,961,051 12,512,718
2022 7,421,667 4,647,691 12,069,358
2023 7,461,667 4,358,694 11,820,361
2024 7,531,667 4,067,350 11,599,017
2025 7,186,667 3,772,579 10,959,246
2026 6,281,667 3,485,639 9,767,306
2027 5,836,667 3,236,570 9,073,237
2028 5,736,667 3,000,062 8,736,729
2029 4,971,667 2,783,703 7,755,370
2030 5,001,667 2,577,507 7,579,174
2031 4,936,667 2,364,836 7,301,503
2032 5,041,667 2,153,796 7,195,463
2033 5,251,667 1,921,357 7,173,024
2034 5,481,667 1,678,667 7,160,334
2035 5,721,667 1,424,752 7,146,419
2036 5,976,667 1,159,138 7,135,805
2037 6,241,667 880,592 7,122,259
2038 6,521,667 589,121 7,110,788
2039 5,336,667 283,975 5,620,642
2040 751,667 31,030 782,697
2041 366,657 7,333 373,990

Total $ 191,994,800 § 107,708,481 $ 299,703,281
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Bonds Payable — Water Enterprise Fund

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%) July 1, 2010 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2011

MWRAWater ..........oovvvviina.n. 09/28/2000 0.00 $ 107,483 $ - $ (107,483) §$ -

MWRA Water .......ooiviivniin.. 02/15/2001 0.00 151,120 - (151,120) -
MWRA Water .......ccoovviiiiininnn. 02/15/2002 0.00 517,204 - (258,602) 258,602
MWRA Watet .......cooooviniennn.. 08/15/2002 0.00 775,805 - (258,601) 517,204
MWRA Water ........coovviiiinnnn, 02/26/2004 0.00 1,034,408 - (258,602) 775,806
MWRA Water ........coooviniiiin.. 11/18/2004 0.00 1,293,010 - (258,602) 1,034,408
MWRA Water ......ooovviiiinien .. 05/18/2006 0.00 1,551,611 - (258,602) 1,293,009
MWRA Water ........oooovininnnnn, 05/31/2007 0.00 1,810,213 - (258,602) 1,551,611
Water meter replacement............. 04/01/2009 2.0-5.0 5,400,000 . (600,000) 4,800,000
MWRA Watet ..., 05/21/2009 0.00 3,240,000 - (360,000) 2,880,000
MWRA Water ......ooovreeerereeenn., 05/20/2010 0.00 2,224,400 ; (222,440) 2,001,960
MWRA Water .............ociinnn.. 02/15/2011 0.00 - 1,933,657 - 1,933,657
Water meter replacement............. 04/14/2011 3.0-4.5 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
Total.......ooooiiiii $ 18,105,254 § 4,933,657 $§ (2,992,654 $ 20,046,257

The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) offers water system rehabilitation and sanitary sewer infiltration and
inflow reduction financial assistance programs to membet communities in order to assist with the on-going maintenance of
water and sewer system infrastructure. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City was the recipient of a $1,933,657
ten-year interest free water system rehabilitation loan.

At June 30, 2011, the City had $12,246,257 in MWRA water tehabilitation loans outstanding. Interest subsidies on these loans
for the year ended June 30, 2011 totaled $349,699.

During fiscal year 2011 the City also issued $3,000,000 of genetal obligation debt for water meter replacements.

Debt service requirements for future year principal and interest for water enterprise fund debt is as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 3,227,418 $ 238,992 § 3,466,410
2013 2,968,816 222,000 3,190,816
2014 2,710,214 201,000 2,911,214
2015 2,451,612 177,000 2,628,612
2016 2,193,009 151,500 2,344,509
2017 1,934,407 121,500 2,055,907
2018 1,675,806 91,500 1,767,306
2019 1,675,805 60,000 1,735,805
2020 715,805 27,000 742,805
2021 493,365 13,500 506,865
Total $ 20,046,257 § 1,303,992 § 21,350,249
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Bonds Payable — Sewer Enterprise Fund

Date of Interest Outstanding Outstanding
Issue Rate (%) July 1, 2010 Issued Redeemed June 30, 2011

MWRA Sewer..........c.ooooeininne. 02/16/2006 0.00 $ 10,505 $ - $ (10,505) § -
MWPAT Sewet...............coeuenn, 10/06/1999 5.16 3,690,000 - (320,000 3,370,000
MWPAT Sewet............ccooevennne. 11/10/2000 5.20 4,751,331 - (371,331) 4,380,000
MWPAT Sewet..........cocovvnnnnnn. 07/03/2002 0.00 86,435 - (5,301) 81,134
MWRA Sewer.........ccooovivvinnenn. 02/15/2007 0.00 121,880 - (60,940 60,940
MWRA Sewer........oooveiinnnnnn.. 06/14/2007 0.00 452,320 - (226,160) 226,160
MWRA Sewer.........cooovviiiennn, 08/23/2007 0.00 31,680 - (10,560) 21,120
MWRA Sewet...........ooovvininnn. 11/29/2007 0.00 92,169 - (30,723) 61,446
MWRA Sewer.........oooiviiiiennns 09/09/2008 0.00 448,096 - (112,024) 336,072
MWRA Sewer............ooovviinen. 02/19/2009 0.00 635,580 - (158,895) 476,685
MWRA Sewer.......o.oooiviininninn., 03/01/2010 0.00 236,500 - (47,300) 189,200
Sewer system improvements.......... 05/01/2010 2.0-4.0 500,000 - (25,000) 475,000
Total ..o, $ 11,056,496 % - % (1,378,739 § 9,677,757

‘The MWRA’s sanitary sewer infiltration/inflow reduction financial assistance program provides financial assistance for eligible
projects in the form of a combination of grants and five-year interest-free loans. At June 30, 2011, the City had $1,371,623 in
MWRA sewer infiltration/inflow teduction loans outstanding.

The City has also entered into (3) ten-yeat subsidized loan agreements with the MWPAT for additional sanitary sewer system

infiltration and inflow reduction projects. At June 30, 2011 the City had $7,831,134 in loans outstanding under this project.
Interest and principal subsidies on these loans for the year ended June 30, 2011 wete $315,146 and $222,362, respectively.

60



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Debt setvice requirements for future year principal and intetest for sewer enterprise fund debt is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending Principal Interest ‘Total
2012 $ 1,383,079 $ 407,909 $ 1,790,988
2013 1,121,159 360,059 1,481,218
2014 1,104,219 334,529 1,438,748
2015 853,300 285,411 1,138,711
2016 831,000 241,137 1,072,137
2017 856,000 196,493 1,052,493
2018 891,000 147,991 1,038,991
2019 921,000 104,573 1,025,573
2020 941,000 61,093 1,002,093
2021 531,000 24,033 555,033
2022 35,000 9,750 44,750
2023 35,000 8,250 43,250
2024 25,000 7,000 32,000
2025 25,000 6,000 31,000
2026 25,000 5,000 30,000
2027 25,000 4,000 29,000
2028 25,000 3,000 28,000
2029 25,000 2,000 27,000
2030 25,000 1,000 26,000
Total $ 9,677,757 § 2,209,228 $ 11,886,985

Water and sewer debt is expected to be funded from watet and sewer enterprise fund revenue.
At June 30, 2011 the City had a total of $15,409,120 in authotized and unissued debt, which is summatized as follows:

Authotized and Unissued Debt

Beginning End
of Year Increases Decreases of Year

High school improvements............. $ 17,329,692 § - § (11,000,000) $ 6,329,692
School imptovements.................... - 2,210,000 (2,210,000) -
Energy conservation audits............. 167,400 - - 167,400
Public works equipment................. 820,000 265,000 (1,085,000) -
Sewer system imptrovements ........... 1,009,800 - - 1,009,800
Sewer system improvements ........... 2,277,000 - 2,277,000
Sewer I&I temoval....................... 102,155 - - 102,155
Sewer I&I temoval MWPAT........... 2,995,073 . = 2,995,073
Water main rehabilitiation............... 1,933,657 - (1,933,657) -
Water meter replacement................ 5,528,000 - (3,000,000) 2,528,000
Newton city hall window repait........ £ 125,000 (125,000)

Total ..o, $ 29,885,777 $ 4,877,000 $ (19,353,657) $ 15,409,120




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note 11 — Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs

State and federal laws and regulations mandated that the City close its old landfill site when it ceases accepting waste and to
perform certain maintenance and monitoting activities at the site after closure. On June 28, 1996 the City signed a consent
agreement with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Department of Environmental Protection that established a schedule
for closure of the Rumford Avenue landfill. This landfill ceased operations in 1976 and was capped during 1998, which was in
compliance with the consent agreement. The City has recorded a liability of $595,000 at June 30, 2011 for future year landfill
site monitoting and maintenance. Estimated costs per year total $35,000. The current estimate is based upon current costs
and may require modification in future years due to ptice inflation, changes in technology or changes in state/federal law and
regulations.

Note 12 — Other Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description — The City provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors (hereinafter referred
to as the “Plan”) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the
MGTL. assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to plan design and contribution rates must be
accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are
no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of paying benefits under the Plan.

The number of patticipants as of June 30, 2011, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees...........ocooeiiiiiiiiiinnL. 2,091
Retired employees and beneficiaties........... 3,526
Tatalvermi onmoniie s i srime 5,617

Funding Policy - The conttibution requirements of Plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the City.
The required health insurance contribution rates of Plan membets and the City are 20% and 80%, respectively. In addition,
the City reimburses 80% of the Medicare Part B ptemiums paid by retirees. The Plan members and City each contribute 50%
towards a $5,000 term life insurance premium. The City cutrently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current
obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administeting the Plan are paid by the City.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required conttibution (ARC) of the employet, an actuatially determined amount that is calculated in accordance with the
parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC teptesents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not
to exceed thirty yeats.
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‘The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the
plan, and changes in the total net OPEB obligation:

Amount

(in thousands)
Annual required conttibution........................ $ 52,181
Interest on net OPEB obligation.................... 1,670
Adjustment to annual requited contribution....... (3,953)
Annual OPEB cost...oiiiiiiii i 49,898
Contributions made...................ccoe. (15,308)
Increase in net OPEB obligation.................... 34,590
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of yeat......... 83,473
Net OPEB obligation at end of yeat................ $ 118,063

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the net pension

obligation is as follows:

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation
June 30,2009...............cnl L $ 46,999 30.1% § 54,868
June 30,2010...........ocvieiennnL. 43,384 31.4% 83,473
June 30,2011.........coieiiiiiail, 49,898 32.6% 118,063

Funded Status and Funding Progress — 'The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation, was as
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Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAT) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A) ® (B-A) (A/B) © (B-2)/C)
06/30/11 § - 3 639,110 % 639,110 - $ 176,191 363%

Actuatial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
conttibutions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates ate made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that shows whethet the actuatial value of
plan assets is increasing or decteasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as
undetstood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattetn of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan members to that point. The actuatial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that ate designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the
actuartal value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: June 30, 2011

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Amorttization method: Level dollar

Remaining amortization petiod: 27 years (closed)

Interest discount rate: 2.00%

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 10.8% for 2011; 9.8% for 2012; 8.7% for 2013; 7.6% for 2014; 6.6% for 2015; 6.5%

for 2016 through 2020; 6.3% for 2025; 6.1% for 2030; 5.4% for 2040; 5.1% for
2050; 4.9% for 2060; 4.8% for 2070; 4.5% for 2080; 4.2% starting in 2085 to an
ultimate level of 4.2% per year
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Allocation of AOPEBC — AOPEBC costs were allocated to the City’s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Legislative & Executive........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiani., $ 498 978
Electons. . ouuiie i 124,744
Financial administration....................cocL 618,732
Administrative SUPPOLt.....o.vvereiiiiiiiiiiieanannnn. 603,763
Planning & development................oooiiiii, 279,428
Public building maintenance & opetation.................. 598,773
Police. ..o 4,450,882
Bite. oo 4,605,565
Inspectional setvices..........oooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 264,458
Education........oooooiiiiiii 31,036,417
Streets & sidewalks.........oovoiiiiiiiii i 1,616,688
Collection & disposal of solid waste........................ 94,806
Equipment maintenance...............ocoevneeeienniinenen. 459,060
Engineeting. ... 329,325
Administration & SUPPOLt........c.iuiuiiiiiiiirininenenn.. 319,346
Publichealth...........oooo i 733,497
SeNIOr SETVICES. . ittt 109,775
Veteran SEtVICES. . vvveieie ettt eeaneenn 04,867
Libraries. ..o e 1,047,853
Parks & tecreation........ooouuvuiiiiieiiiiiiie e, 743,477
Newton history museum.............ociviiiiiiiiinin... 49,898
Total AOPEBC - governmental activities.......ooovvviiuereaninnnn. 48,650,332

Watetssiiviiimisimisis s svasanis o s ety e S g s 698,568
S OWEL isamurssssasess s T S A e TS SN 0 548,876
Total AOPEBC - business-type activities. ..........c.ceevveennns... 1,247,444
Total AOPEBC. ... ..o e $ 49,897,776

Note 13 — Risk Financing

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, property and casualty, workets’ compensation,
unemployment, and employee health insurance claims. The City is self-insuted for general liability risks, howevet, Chapter 258
of the Massachusetts General Laws limits the liability to 2 maximum of $100,000 per claim in all matters except actions relating
to federal civil rights, eminent domain, and breach of contract. The City is also self-insured for workers’ compensation and
unemployment claims.
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The City has medical plans with Tufts and Harvard-Pilgtim, under which it makes actual claims payments. The medical plan
providets act as claims processors and a transfer of risk does not occur. City employees and retirees contribute 20% of the
cost of health care and the remainder is paid by the City. The City purchased stop loss insurance for individual claims in
excess of $250,000 per year, which are incurred duting the fiscal year and paid within eighteen months after June 30.

At June 30, 2011, the City’s health claims liability totaled $4,022,849 and is based on approximately one month claims paid
average. Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2009 are as follows:

Cutrent Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Yeat-end
Fiscal year 2010............ $ 4412246 $ 46,320,935 § (46,820,754) $ 3,912,427
Fiscal year 2011............ 3,912,427 47,168,457 (47,058,035) 4,022,849

Subsequent to year end the City has implemented several changes in health plan design for active employees and their
dependents. The changes include introduction of an annual deductible for employees and their dependents; increased
copayments for health benefits; and an increase in the employee contribution from 20% to 25% for new employees of certain
collective bargaining groups.

Wotkers” compensation claims are administered by the City’s Petsonnel Department. The City contracts for an annual
actuatial valuation of the program, and based on this study, has tecorded a liability of $7,016,910 at June 30, 2011, of which
$1,127,680 has been recorded as a cutrent liability based upon the City’s expectation that this amount will be paid within the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. The liability includes an estimate of the IBNR claims.

The June 30, 2011 plan valuation is based upon the use of a combination of the paid loss development method and the
Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss method. US Life Tables 2001 Vital Statistics for Males and Females have been used to
determine annuity values for long term claims, using a 5.0% annual rate of interest.

Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2009 are as follows:

Current Year

Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year 2010......... $ 6,679,405 § 1,758,272  § (1,752,816) $ 6,684,861
Fiscal year 2011......... 6,684,861 2,151,116 (1,819,067) 7,016,910
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Note 14 — Fund Balances

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet ate detailed as follows:

Nonmajor Total
Community High School Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal............... $ - % - % - $ 445570 § 445,570
Restricted:
Debt setvice.......covvvviinii i, 683,320 - - - 683,320
General government.............cco...... - - 2,927,686 2,927,686
Public safety..............cooiii 325,353 325,353
Education........cooovveiiiiiiinn... - - - 2,410,568 2,410,568
School construction.........c.o.voveve.ns - 3,297,611 3,730,234 7,027,845
Public wotks..........coooiiii, - < 1,417,155 1,417,155
Health and human services.............. - 409,935 409,935
Culture and recteation................... - . 2,632,328 2,632,328
Community preservation................ - 3,659,054 - - 3,659,054
CPA- community housing............... - 1,663,731 - - 1,663,731
CPA- histotic tesoutces................. - 3,723,784 - 3,723,784
CPA- open space............ccocoeennne. - 363,235 - 363,235
Capital.......ooooii 108,107 - - - 108,107
Other post employment benefits....... 137,295 - - 137,295
Schoollunch....................o - - 11,753 11,753
Insurance proceeds.................o..ees < - - 52,972 52,972
Receipts reserved....ocoooniiiiinnin, = 2,363,764 2,363,764
Sub-total - Restricted................ 928,722 9,409,804 3,297,611 16,281,748 29,917,885
Committed:
Subsequent year's expenditures......... 2,066,320 - - 2,066,320
Capitalisyiud i W ivsm i s 9,714,755 - - - 9,714,755
Continuing approptiations.............. 3,096,013 - - 3,096,013
Receipts reserved.....vivveiinininiannn, = = 886,894 886,394
Sub-total - Committed............... 14,877,088 - - 886,894 15,763,982
Assigned:
Encumbrances.............cooevvini.. 727,814 - - - 727,814
Capital...........oooi 116,627 - - - 116,627
Sub-total - Assigned................. 844,441 - - - 844,441
Unassignied......cooovviiiiiiiniineninennn, 14,123,323 - - (354,498) 13,768,825
$ 30,773,574 $ 9,409,804 § 3,297,611 § 17,259,714 § 60,740,703
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Note 15 — Stabilization Funds

The City maintains capital and rainy day stabilization funds that wete established under MGL. Chapter 40, Section 5B.
Appropriations in and out of the stabilization funds requite approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. Investment
income is retained by the funds.

The balance of the capital and rainy day stabilization funds at June 30, 2011 total $9,939,489 and $2,648,966, respectively, and
ate reported in the general fund as restricted ($108,107), committed ($9,714,755), assigned ($116,627) and unassigned
($2,648,9606).

Note 16 - Donot Restricted Endowments

Petmanent Fund and Private Purpose Trust Fund donots have placed restrictions on the expenditure of certain Permanent
Fund and Private Purpose Trust Fund endowments. Local policy prohibits the expenditure of unrealized gains and, as a result,
only realized gains and investment income on all such funds is available for expenditure. Furthermore, the expenditure of
investment income is restricted by individual donor trust agreements.

Amounts available for expenditure related to Permanent Funds are reported as expendable perpetual funds in the Statement of
Net Assets and restricted fund balance in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Amounts available for expenditure related
to Private Purpose Trust Funds are reported as held in trust for other purposes in the Fiduciary Funds Statement of Fiduciary
Net Assets.

Note 17 — Prior Petiod Reclassifications

The beginning fund balance of the general fund has been restated from $19,312,545 to $35,095,755 and the beginning fund
balance of the nonmajor governmental funds has been restated from $39,539,265 to $23,756,055 to reflect the reclassification
of stabilization funds to the genetal fund.

Note 18 — Pension Plan
A — Plan Description and Membership

The City conttibutes to the System, a cost-shating multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
Newton Conttibutory Retirement Board (NCRB). Substantially all employees of the City are members of the System, except
for public school teachers and certain school administrative personnel who are members of the MTRS.

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, pursuant to Massachusetts
Genetal Law Chapter 32, up to a maximum of 80% of the average of a member’s three highest consecutive years’ regular
compensation. In addition to regular compensation, benefits ate based upon a member’s age, length of creditable service and
group classification. Members become vested after ten yeats of creditable service. A normal retirement allowance may be
received after the completion of 20 years of setvice or upon reaching age 55, with 10 years of service. Normal retirement for
most employees occurs at age 65, except for certain hazardous duty and public safety employees who attain normal retirement
at age 55. Benefits and member contribution rates ate determined by Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws.

A retirement allowance consists of two parts, an annuity and a pension. A member’s accumulated total retirement deductions,
plus interest, constitutes the annuity. The difference between the total retirement benefit and the annuity is the pension.
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At December 31, 2010, the System’s membetship consisted of the following;

ACHVE MEMDELS,vvusisiusssransssrmmieinsssisissinssessasssssisni 1,662
Inactive members. ... s msusaswsnvsimmemiessssammnmiies 602
Disabled members cevmuavusssmmmvessxsssmmoess sismamswmmiess 151
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. ... .. 1,178

Totaliusiriase s s TR aaa T o S nmbb i i ieimneserarmrecs srmeenes 3,593

B - Basis of Accounting

The System’s financial statements ate prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are
trecognized in the period in which the conttibutions ate due. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and
the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable.

Investments of the System ate stated at fair value.
C - Funding Policy

In 1984 the City began funding the System on an actuarial resetve basis. This funding includes both current year service and
the amortization of past service liability. It is the policy of the NCRB to contract for an annual actuarial valuation of the
System to determine whether the contributions are sufficient to meet accruing liabilities and to demonstrate what adjustments,
if any, are necessary on the basis of actual experience. Active member contribution rates are based upon date of hire: Prior to
Januaty 1, 1975 - 5% of regular compensation; January 1, 1975-December 31, 1984 - 7% of regular compensation; January 1,
1985-June 30, 1996 - 8% of regular compensation and July 1, 1996 to date - 9% of regular compensation.

Members hired on or after January 1, 1979 conttibute an additional 2% of annual regular compensation in excess of $30,000.
Cost of living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth
during this time period are funded by annual contributions from the Commonwealth. Cost of living adjustments granted after
1997 must be approved annually by the NCRB and the costs are botne entirely by the System. These adjustments may not
exceed 3% on the first $12,000 in benefits.

D - Investment Policy

‘The NCRB is responsible for the adoption of a formal asset allocation policy, the selection of professional investment
managers to execute the investment policies, and the appointment of an investment consultant to assist with the evaluation of
investment manager performance. All investment activities of the NCRB are subject to oversight by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts’ Public Employee Retitement Administration Commission (PERAC).

Effective July 1, 2007, the Newton Contributory Retirement Board transferred investment management responsibility for all

assets, except those currently invested in real estate limited partnerships, with early withdrawal penalties, to the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ Pension Reserve Investment Ttust.
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E — Annual Pension Cost

The City’s contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $14,829,525; $13,364,434;
and $12,682,312; respectively, and equaled the actuarially required contribution for each fiscal yeat. At June 30, 2011 the City
did not have a net pension obligation. The required contribution was determined as part of the January 1, 2009 actuatial
valuation using the individual entry age normal cost method. The actuarial assumptions included an 8% rate of return on
investments (net of administrative expenses); an inflationary rate of 3% and projected salary increases of 4% for the current
yeat and the following three years; and 4.75% (5.25% for Group 4) annually thereafter. The actuatial value of the System’s
assets was determined using the five-year smoothing of investment returns greater/(less) than expected. The valuation must
be within 20% of market value. The System’s unfunded actuatial accrued liability is being amortized as a level petcentage of
projected payroll.

Funded Status and Funding Progress - The funded status of the plan at January 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, is as follows:

Dollar Amounts In Thousands

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date A) ®) (B-A) (A/B) ©_ @8/
January 1,2011 § 260,156 § 473,083 § 212927 55.0% § 81,378 261.7%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following notes to the financial
statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2011

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal

Amortization method: Increasing payments 3.75% pet yeat

Remaining amortization petiod: 27 years (closed)

Asset valuation method: Actuarial assets equal preliminary asset value plus 25% of the difference between

market value and preliminary asset value. Preliminary asset value is the previous
years’ actuarial asset amount increased by net cash flow and expected investment
income. The result must be within 20% of market value.

Investment rate of return: 7.75%
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Projected salary inctreases: 2.0% per year in 2012; 2.5% pet year in 2013; 3.0% pet year in 2014; starting in 2015
the annual increases will be 3.5%

Cost of living adjustments: 3.0%

Legally Required Reserve Accounts — The balance in the System’s legally required reserves as of December 31, 2010 are as
follows:

Description Amount Purpose
Annuity Savings Fund..... 3 76,724,534 Active members' contribution balance
Annuity Reserve Fund. ... 28,839,701 Retited members' contribution account
Military Service Fund..... 44,816 Militaty leave of absence contribution balance
Pension Fund.............. 135,763,435 Remaining net assets
Total.........oovvviiiinn, $ 241,372,486

F - Non Contributory Retirement Allowances

City employees with Wortld War IT militaty veteran status, at least 30 yeats of service to the City, and who began work prior to
July 1, 1939, are entitled to a non-contributory pension benefit equal to 72% of their highest annual rate of regular
compensation. Retirement benefits for these individuals ate funded on a pay-as-you-go basis by the City, and there is no
estimate of the actuarial liability for these benefits because the City deems the amount to be immaterial to the financial
statements. Expenditures for non-contributory retitement benefits for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009
were $347,374, $369,779 and $421,905, respectively. Non contributory retirees are eligible for an annual cost of living
adjustment of not more than 3% on the first $12,000 of their annual retirement benefit.

Note 19 — Massachusetts Teachers Retitement System

Public school teachers and certain administtators are membets of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System, to which
the City does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the
legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments totaled $29,382,717 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, and, accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension
expenditures.

Note 20 — Commitments and Contingencies

"The new Newton North High School was opened in Septembet of 2010 and demolition of the old Newton Notth High
School building and major site work at the location of the new Newton North High School building is substantially complete.
Final project close out and the MSBA audit of the project budget is pending.

Subsequent to year end, the City entered into three year retroactive collective batgaining agreements with all employees of the

City and most of the Newton Public Schools’ employees. The initial year of each contract has been funded by the Board of
Aldermen and School Committee.
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Other significant commitments include the continuing approptiations and encumbrances outstanding for the general fund and
CPA fund, for which outstanding balances at June 30, 2011, totaled $3,823,827 and $5,158,444, respectively.

The City participates in a number of state and federal award programs. Although the federal grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2011, these programs, as
well as cettain state grant programs, are still subject to sepatate financial and compliance audits. ‘The amount, if any, of
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although it is expected such
amounts, if any, will be immatetial.

Vatious additional legal actions and claims ate pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any at June 30, 2011 cannot be
ascettained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial position of the City at June
30, 2011.

Note 21 — Future Implementation of GASB Pronouncements
The GASB has issued the following statements:
> Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Aprrangements, which is required to be

implemented during fiscal year 2013. The implementation of this Statement will not impact the basic financial
statements.

»  Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34, which is
tequired to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The City is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will
have on its basic financial statements.

»  Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The City is currently evaluating
the effect that this Statement will have on its basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferved Inflows of Resourves, and Net Position, which is
tequired to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The City is currently evaluating the effect that this Statement will

have on its basic financial statements.

> Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Acconnting Termination Provisions—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 53, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2012. The implementation of this Statement
will not impact the basic financial statements.

‘These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the City is one participating

employer:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (SYSTEM)

Dollar Amounts in Thousands
Actuarial UAALasa
Actuatial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) ®) (B-4) (A/B) ©Q  _(BA/Q
January 1, 2011 260,156 $ 473,083 § 212,927 55.0% $§ 81,378 261.7%
January 1, 2010 254,035 462,104 208,069 55.0% 83,844 248.2%
January 1, 2009 252,117 443,010 190,893 56.9% 82,014 232.8%
January 1, 2008 281,115 419,001 137,886 67.1% 79,206 174.1%
January 1, 2007 265,701 402,258 136,557 66.1% 74,197 184.0%
January 1, 2006 253,421 382,732 129,311 66.2% 71,278 181.4%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of
Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)
2005 $ 10,273,356 100
2006 10,667,820 100
2007 11,747,762 100
2008 12,843,635 100
2009 13,547,778 100
2010 15,029,827 100
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

The following schedule provides information related to the City’s portion of the System’s ARC:

CITY SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Percentage of City ARC
Fiscal Year ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%)
2006 $ 10,176,916 100 99.1%
2007 10,552,659 100 98.9%
2008 11,594,554 100 98.7%
2009 12,682,312 100 98.7%
2010 13,364,434 100 98.6%
2011 14,829,525 100 98.7%

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE
The following schedule provides information related to the City’s other postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Dollar Amounts in Thousands

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Petcentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date @ ®) (B-A) (A/B) Q @A/9)
06/30/11 § - 3% 639,110 § 639,110 - 3 176,191 363%
06/30/10 - 531,675 531,675 . 175,729 303%
06/30/09 ; 595,672 595,672 ; 174,021 342%
06/30/08 - 432,960 432,960 . 201,970 214%

The significant change to the methods and assumptions used in the 06/30/10 and 06/30/11 actuatial valuations identified
above that impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress is the increase in the trend on healthcare and medical costs.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

School Lunch Fund:

This fund is used to account for the operations of the Newton Public School Department’s student lunch program. Revenues
are generated from the sale of lunches, state and federal reimbursement grants, and investment income. A formal budget is
not adopted for this fund; however, expenditures can not exceed revenues plus the beginning fund balance. Any difference
between fund revenues and expenditures is financed with a transfer from the School Department’s general fund operating
budget. Itis the policy of the Newton Public school department to subsidize all fund employee benefit costs.

Revolving Fund

The Revolving Fund is used to account for a variety of municipal functions that are expected to be self- supporting, such as
departmental ptivate duty details. All revolving funds, except for damage recoveries of less than $20,000; private duty details
and assignments; wetlands protection and development teview activities; and police asset forfeitures are authorized annually by
vote of the Board of Aldermen under Massachusetts General Law Chapter 44, Section 53E 2. Fund expenditures are
limited to the lesset of actual available resources or the annual spending limit authotized by the Board of Aldermen.

Receipts Reserved Fund

This fund is used to account for a variety of local revenues whose use is either legally restricted by state law, ot has been
restricted by vote of the City’s Board of Aldermen, for specific purposes and can only be spent with the prior approptiation of
the Boatd of Aldermen. The fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of surplus real estate, parking meter receipts,
development mitigation funds, and revenues generated from cable television license agreements and the sale of recyclable
matetials. No expenditures can be made directly from the fund; rather, resoutces are appropriated and transferred to the
City’s general fund for expenditure.

Federal ARRA Fund
This fund is used to account for American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) grant funds.

Community Development Block Grant Fund
This fund is used to account for activities undertaken with federal Community Development Block Grant funds. The Mayot

and Board of Aldetmen approve each year’s grant budget. This is a reimbursement grant.

Municipal Federal Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for a variety of categotical municipal federal grants. The Board of Aldermen approve annual
grant budgets and grant budget obligations are genetally limited to the lesser of actual available resoutces ot the annual
spending limit authorized by the Boatd.

Municipal State Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for a variety of categorical municipal state grants. The Board of Aldermen approve annual grant
budgets and grant budget obligations are limited to the lesset of actual available resources ot the annual spending limit
authorized by the Boatd.

School State Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for all categorical public education state grants. The School Committee approves annual grant
budgets and grant budget s are recorded upon teceipt of approved grant agreements.
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School Federal Grant Fund
"This fund is used to account for all categorical public education federal grants. The School Committee apptoves annual grant

budgets and grant budgets are recorded upon receipt of approved grant agreements.

Gift Fund
This fund is used to account for private gifts and donations that are unrelated to any other fund. Expenditures ate limited to
the lesser of actual available resources or the annual spending limit authorized by the Board of Aldermen and School

Committee.

Stormwater Management Fund
This fund is used to account for operation and maintenance of the City’s stormwater drainage activities. Effective July 1, 2006

the Mayor and Board of Aldermen voted to establish the Stormwater Management special revenue fund. These activities wete
previously accounted for within the Public Works depattment’s General Fund appropriation. A flat rate stormwater
management fee was imposed by otdinance effective July 1, 2006 and is intended to fund maintenance and operations. The
City has no stormwatet management debt at this time.

Capital Projects Funds

Public Building Improvements Fund

'This fund 1s used to account for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, and/ot major tenovation of buildings for which
the City has not established a separate capital project fund. Financing is generally detived from the issuance of bonds ot notes.
Boatd of Aldermen appropriations are for the term of the project. The Public Building Commissioner is responsible for all
projects accounted for in this fund.

Street Improvements Fund

This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 90 highway
consttuction grant funds. Grant budgets are recorded based upon annual grant awards from the Commonwealth, Board of
Aldetmen authotization of annual spending authotity, and approval of specific construction projects by the Massachusetts
Highway Department. Chapter 90 highway construction grants ate paid to the City on a reimbursement basis. The City
finances grant expenditures internally until reimbursements are received from the Commonwealth. Grant revenue is
recognized when approved expenditutes are incutted and submitted to the Commonwealth for reimbursement.

Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund

This fund is used to account for the acquisition of public safety and public works motor equipment, financed with the issuance
of debt.
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Permanent Funds

Municipal Fund
"This fund is used to account for a variety of municipal purposes. A detailed repott may be obtained from the comptrollet’s

Office.

Library Common Fund
"This fund is used to account for the purchase of library supplies and materials and the enhancement of public library setvices

in Newton. The Newton Library Boatd of Trustees maintains custody of fund assets.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011
Special Revenue Funds
Community
School Receipts Federal Development

ASSETS Lunch Revolving Reserved ARRA Fund Block Grant
Interest and dividends. . ... oooue et e e e e e $ - 3 - 3 - 8 - 3 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Tax LN Sy pireais eosiv i b s b s Ao S e - -

Chatges for services....... . 367,045 E N -

Departmental and other - - -

INtergOVErNMENtal. . ue. . viitiiiiiiniin e raneasnenn s rasseearseaessaensssans 36,916 - - 51,294
OLNET ASSELS s ee s rmnspeepiiin: o+ me mpomasnsumas + oo « ¥y un i s 6  a@is s RAEINs o - Fomd - -
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 454,716 3,900,538 3,250,658 254,249 29,657

InVestMENtSyuia. . sannunsinsssers e ERIEEERGRRD S < PRACHRRRALRS o8s oo o 1 o SEVERERE ST - -
TOTAL ASSETS. ... iscdumaidt .. .. afdaiail, . FHEHR. . .. i aioe. $ 491,632 § 4,267,583 $ 3,250,658 $ 254,249 § 80,951
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Warrants payable.....siaamiiai. . ieveatabaiivars e siaiasasnavash e sre Savive sans g 335,827 § 120,436 $ - 8 23,309 $ 4,687

Accrued liabilities . 42,189 50,372 16,310 12,940

Acctued payroll......ooiev i s o - 141,058 - 148,269 7,325

Other labilities. .. uveuess i iieciiirin o ierssernne e re e sieseraneseanseresaoin 101,863 396,312 - #

Deferred 1evenue.. ... cuiissss . -« « ggmaasinns - ++  aNssFaw i - o X Juva - 244320 - -

Due t0 Other fUNAS. i.ivuuienieriaraiuniansnenesisssiansneasesionsnsirrniaeenenes - - = 6,076
TOTAL LIABILITIES......omuy et renmameass e s ie s vaiansnsamsansssessmnsnnnes 479,879 952,498 - 187,888 31,028
FUND BALANCES:

NONSPENAADIE, cay vt iiiaiat ettt et e iae s - - - - -

Restricted 11,753 3,669,583 2,363,764 66,361 49,923

Committed . - 886,894 . -

Unassigned........ B ¢ WSS o o ¢ ¢ R ONE NN Y s < BRGNS SRR Ak - (35:4,498) - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ......oiiiiiiiaiininiiii st e eesiiieesninn e 11,753 3,315,085 3,250,658 66,361 49,923
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES...c.ccvvvniieiviesireinsienns $ 491,632 § 4,267,583 $ 3,250,658 % 254249 % 80,951
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Special Revenue Funds

Municipal Municipal School School Stormwater
Federal Grant State Grant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Management Sub-totml

- - - 8 § -3 -
B B } 7,868 7,868
- - - 2 144,800 511,845
- . ) 26,958 : 26,958
59,838 4,163 490 119,697 - 272,398
190,069 501,780 264,674 306,652 1,343,019 739,702 11,235,714
249,907 505,943 265,164 % 426349 $ 1369977 % 892,370 12,054,783
24,304 20,438 - % 43968 § 2496 § 56,230 631,695
092 5,050 526 450 315 - 169,064
- 30,702 115,334 281,589 17,934 5427 747,638
z : . : ) . 498,175
- 25,709 270,029
. - - 6,076
65,216 56,190 115,860 326,007 20,745 87,366 2,322,677
184,691 449,753 149,304 100,342 1,349,232 805,004 9,199,710
. - < - 886,894
2 . . (354,498)
184,691 449,753 149,304 100,342 1,349,232 805,004 9,732,106
249,907 505,943 265,164 $ 426,349 $ 1,369,977 $ 892,370 12,054,783
(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2011
Capital Profects Funds
Public Municipal
Building Street Equipment
ASSETS Improvements Improvements Replacement Sub-total
Interest and dividends... $ - 3 - 8 s

Receivables, net of allowance for uncolle
Tax Hens. isuasii- . . (R 5 -« i - 6 SRR - o e R TR - Cvaas - -

Charges fOr SEVICES wuuvimmimrinnsienimiensressaiearran i - = -
Departmental and other......c.iiiiiiiiii i - - - -
Interpovemmental. .. - 600,254 600,254
Other aSSetSuyuquppanis oi- EEEEFFEE: - « WA R - FUSER + o+ + (05 SRTERES EHOTENE 1+ 1 T - - -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents, ............ . 7,199,727 - 20,436 7,220,163
INVeStMENtsy: wiqaruagis 1+« «suausiimansdinn: . - soaNavHERNRS RIS IR SIS ST - - =
TOTAL ASSETS 7,199,727 $ 600,254 $ 20436 § 7,820,417
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:
Warmnts pagablen cin. caiia i i i v tvavan s Ty Fins s s 138,578 S 199,557 § 5300 § 343,435
Acerued habilities. .. ... . 919,143 68,880 - 988,023
Acerued paytoll. ..o e 1,200 1,114 - 2,314
L T 1 . . -
Deferred revenue... . =
Drae b0 ther Amids. ..o mm s e e s - 198,245 - 198,245
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ot vs e s e s srasmnrens 1,058,921 467,796 5,300 1,532,017
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable........coivniiiiieiiininnann.. o br AN s b e - RA RSN e ¢ - - - -
Restrictedyy  anabasniniin o e re oo mesie s e o i . 6,140,806 132,458 15,136 6,288,400
Committed... .uvveiiininieinianioiieisns < . . -
Unassigned. ...ousssanioss. oo oon e uings cansamsann oo casa - dasaniainee o oo s sadEs NS « HTEE e - - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ...ttt ieesiisris s eeeieetsinbsieeaeieies arsannen 6,140,806 132,458 15,136 6,288,400

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES......0vveuieiiainiiarnyiaimmeiins $ 7,199,727 § 600,254 § 20,436 % 7,820,417




Permanent Funds

Total
Nonmajor
Library Governmental
Municipal Common Sub-total Funds

681 § 2,265 § 2946 § 2,046

- : - 7,868

B : . 511,845

. - - 26,958

- - - 72,652
30,000 . 30,000 30,000
402,184 140,782 542,966 18,998,843
69,457 593,839 663,296 663,296

502,322 § 736,886 § 1,239,208 § 21,114,408

$ - B 975,130

- . - 1,157,087
; - - 749,952
- - . 498,175
- - . 270,029
- - 204,321

- - - 3,854,694

445,570 - 445,570 445570
56,752 736,886 793,638 16,281,748
- 886,894

- - - (354,498)

502,322 736,886 1,239,208 17,259,714

502,322 § 736,886 % 1,239,208 § 21,114,408

(Concluded)



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Special Revenue Funds
Community
School Receipts Federal Development
Lunch Revolving Reserved ARRA Fund Block Grant
REVENUES
Penalties and iNterest OM EAXES. . ...ovuiurirueansissierse i s erestesesieasns $ - 8 - 8 - 3 - % -
Licenses and permits.........iiiuiuieivieuieererneasrrarananssessrae s ennareess . - 393,475 - -
Intergovernmental .. ... oot et et e s ra e ae e 495,796 646 - 3,845,677 1,878,748
Charges fOr SEIVICES. 1. iiuuutasiiaiiiiiniiaiiieiineeassmane s ea s erasananasnss 1,867,114 8,895,390 1,542,071 . .
Fines and forfeitures - 2,808 7,250
Investment income. ... 1,180 1,004 996 - -
Contributions and donations..........cc.eeerininn. - 171,024 90,200 - -
Miscellaneousvimis. .  atasSRRwatan oo E57 . FaEuwaoER 100 EEEEEEL Y L es s oo 2TLGS 63,161 139,603 - .
SPecial ASSESSIMENES. «.uuiiuiinmrmmsrmnnsrmarsssesiessssnsnsesessesnnsssensmrens - 123,588 - = 2
TOTAL REVENUES. - ettt iviiiiiiiaann i e s sisassssnisnnnas 2,364,090 9,257,621 2,173,595 3,845,677 1,878,748
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative 8¢ eXeCUtVE. .ouuiiuuiciiiiinii it iiaiaiiarinarinienriras - 175
Electionsl..... LaiiGiteii . Fiaaaioiiiia e v ere s EanGHBAIaRs < oo o BN - - - -
Planning & development.........cv.vvveriinieiiiiraininsnieniniieinnes - 120,134 - 1,094,326 1,848,838
Public building maintenance & operations. ........ccucvriesrerianaiins - 824 - 578,571 -
Public safety:
i - 2,461,204 -
- 168,253 -
INSPectional SEIVICES. ...\ uiuiiiaainiranneseraseaetseeestineisainnns - 4,100 - -
e o e BT 2,964,869 5,136,373 - 2,165,164
Public works:
Streets & SIdeWalks. .. ieunrenriaririaniiien e e ras - 220,423 -
Collection & disposal of s0lid Waste...uuuisevurerneiiiinrmeaianraenninns - 34,028 - -
Vehicle maintenance. ... .....eiuiiiievine ittt irinren e - 1,110 - -
Engineering, - 61,254
Health and human services:
Health & human services..... Kb o o BEARENERANR R « ¢ o 0 v 0o o ARBARTRITESS « 04 - 482 -
SENIOr SEIVICES awilil v vu s Jddiidiaiat s errenn e sbToite FHSTA T s o s rmaknhnsdem - 44,924 -
Culture and recreation
LADrafies. .. vvereieererrieeieierinnsnnsanssenens 22,190 -
Parks & recreation 1,675,256 - -
Newton History muSeum. .uvuiuiarreiirnirin i ariacnsanens 4,596
TOTAL EXPENDITURES...cc.ovettiieiiiiiiiisiaiuninnaiiiasinnnas 2,964,869 9,955,326 - 3,838,061 1,848,838
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES......iiiniiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiriineriaiemnesianannas (600,779) (697,705) 2,173,595 7,616 29,910
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in......... 462,000 918,678 - 40,000 -
Issuance of general obligation bonds.............ccccuirniiinerinnnn., s - - - -
Sale Of Capital ASSELS..1uuvuneuniiieirnn i iriiiaeiarierraneriaesaeas SR 19,824 - -
TEANSEELS OUL. .1 . oeiiiiieia st e v e et be et s e b e et siees - (2,564,301) - =
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............cuu.s 462,000 938,502 (2,564,301) 40,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES....ccuiivutriiiinnsimrmsananrneririnnis (138,779) 240,797 (390,706) 47,616 29,910
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ...ccovviviinniniiininnnan, 150,532 3,074,288 3,641,364 18,745 20,013
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR .\ ccutiruirniniiianieniisnnaninaninis § 11,753 ¢ 3,315,085 § 3,250,658 $ 66,361 $ 49,923
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Special Revenue Funds

Municipal Municipal School School Stormwater
Federal Grant State Grant State Grant Federal Grant Gift Management Sub-total

§ s s - 8 27219 8§ 27,219

- . - - - 393,475

2,576,670 1,289,193 4,664,600 6,192,874 5,000 - 20,949,204
. - - - - 745,899 13,050,474

2 3 5 . . 10,058

18 1,737 4,935

. - 870,069 1,131,293

. X . 202,764

5 123,588

2,576,670 1,289,211 4,664,600 6,192,874 876,806 773,118 35,893,010
. . - =) 9,900 - 10,075

= 11,979 - - - 11,979
2,401,565 11,120 - 6,162 - 5,482,145
- 511,741 - - - 1,091,136

86,731 180,034 - 2,609 - 2,730,578
30,769 29,482 - - - 228,504

= ) = - 4,100

- 5,390,507 6,183,241 589,874 - 22,430,028

- - 692,919 913,342

- 63,608 - - 97,636

B = - 1,110

- . - 61,254

15141 165,548 = 1,444 - 182,615
154,156 = - 4,903 - 203,983

21,009 92,271 - - 33,534 - 169,004

- 13,077 - - 41,572 - 1,729,905

: . B, = 4,596

2,555,215 1,233,016 5,390,507 6,183,241 689,998 692,919 35,351,990
21,455 56,195 (725,907 9,633 186,808 80,199 541,020
125,750 - - - - 1,546,428

. . _ B B : 19,824
(285,372) (174) : (16,005) (2,865,852)
(159,622) (174) - (16,005) (1,299,600)
(138,167) 56,021 (725,907) 9,633 186,808 64,194 (758,580)
322,858 393,732 875,211 90,709 1,162,424 740,810 10,490,686
184,691 §$ 449,753 § 149304 § 100,342 § 1,349,232 805,004 $ 9,732,106

(Continued)



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES

Penalties and interest On XES. cuuiirimm cvrierirmaaiieinerriecaenieaaeasieinnnens
Licenses, permits and fEes.......iuiiiviniriiniiitiiiieer i iiersieeieeeeranns
Intergovernmental ......
Charges for secvices...
Fines and forfeitures..
Investment income

Contributions and donations
Miscellaneous...... VNN SR R e e e S SRS

Special ASEETEMENES. ...\ irars bttt rein s ern e nr s ararsnsnrannnes
TOTAL REVENUES cziug: . . . s - st s » « - uqiaw i - - issssinisn - ivi

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative & executive.,............... SR VRV, L S
Elections. . s s, w8000 L SRTRE

Public building maintenance & operations. .
Public safety:

Inspectional services...c...uins o AR TR T e SR e R
Educabtionea i, iiililaid, o odeiaraaninn: - » o AoAbAA AN ®e o + smpmane

Health and human services:
Health & human services........coociiiininin i iieisiennns
Senior services. .
Culture and recreation:
LADIACies S5HiTaius - - oot au moARre < « -« Hw 1A~ o+« o« momsmERem« o ¢+ gmEs
Parks & recreation
Newton History muscum.............. AR SRR A A T

TOTAL EXPENDITURES........cideiniminsvsessanverssiasassntarasosen

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES i....... fcisdistais . camvvsseasomia. . oo oavillialanins.

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Issuance of general obligation bonds..........ccoveeviviviiniianiiiinniiiies
Sale Of Capital ASSEES. .ouvyvrusiiiitiiiiasiireiaeeere e iiie et saai e searans
Transfers outateamins . ... SEdEEE . .. SUESS L 0 e i S

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).....cuvvvvnnianae.

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...cciirtn i immearanreien e varanansaraesiens

Capital Profects Funds

Public Municipal
Building Street Equipment
Improvements Improvements Replacement Sub-total
= $ $ - § g
- 1,756,051 - 1,756,051
136,628 136,628
136,628 1,756,051 - 1,892,679
5,933,828 - - 5,933,828
2,499,152 - - 2,499,152
- 1,756,051 446,086 2,202,137
8,432,980 1,756,051 446,086 10,635,117
(8,296,352) - (446,086) (8,742,438)
323,500 - - 323,500
2,335,000 - 435,000 2,770,000
(136,628) (9,386) (146,014
2,521,872 425,614 2,947,486
(5,774,480) - (20,472) (5,794,952)
11,915,286 132,458 35,608 12,083,352
6,140,806 $ 132458 § 15136 § 6,288,400
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Municipal

Permanent Funds

Library
Common

Sub-total

Total
Nemmajor
Governmental
Funds

1,928

85,036
250,950

86,964
250,950

27,219
393,475
22,705,255
13,050,474
10,058
91,899
1,382,243
339,392
123,588

1,928

335,986

337,914

38,123,603

280,723

280,723

10,075
11,979
5,482,145
7024964

2,730,578
228,504
4,100
24,929,180

3,115,479
97,636
1,110
61,254

182,615
203,983

449,727
1,729,905
4,596

280,723

280,723

46,267,830

1,928

55,263

57,191

(8,144.227)

1,869,928
2,770,000
19,824
(3,011,866)

1,647,886

1,928

300,394

55,263

681,623

57,19

1,182,017

(6,496,341)

23,756,055

502,322

H 736,886 $

1,239,208 §

17,259,714

(Concluded)
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Internal Service Funds

Health Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for group health benefits for active and retired employees of the City. The City funds 80% of
group health benefits, and employees contribute 20% of the cost through payroll deductions. The City maintains sepatate
sub-funds for plans administered by Tufts Associated Health Plan and Harvard-Pilgrim Health.

Workers” Compensation Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for workers’ compensation benefits, replacement wages and medical benefits for qualified
employees. The fund is also used to account for the cost of providing medical benefits to public safety employees who are
injured in the line of duty. Replacement wages for public safety employees ate accounted fot in the General Fund operating
budgets of the police and fite depattments.

Building Insurance Fund

This fund is used to generate annual income, which is used to finance the City’s annual property insurance premiums. Funds
ate transferred to the General Fund, based upon an annual authorization vote of the Boatd of Aldermen.

Liability Insurance Fund
This fund is used to accumulate tresources to pay liability claims in excess of $50,000. Liability claitms of $15,000 ot mote are

financed from a judgment and settlement approptiation in the City’s Solicitor’s General Fund annual appropriation. Claims
greater than §$5,000, but less than $50,000 ate financed with a transfer from the Reserve Fund annual approptiation in the
General Fund.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011
Workers'
Health Compensation Building Liabiliy
ASSETS Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............oeeiviiniiieaninnnin.., $ 15342018 $ 469,304 S 31,980 S 222032 S 16,065,334
Investments - 8,168,241 786,555 - 8,954,796
Interest and dividends - 25469 6,008 - 31,477
Working capital deposit . 500,419 = - - 500,419
TOtal BSSEES.1 . v eveeeieeeseeeeensesereeerienes 15,842,437 8,663,014 824,543 222,032 25,552,026
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable.........oiiviiiirieiniiiiiinieevenee s - 20,092 - - 20,092
Accrued liabilities. .. ...ooviiiiciii 116,520 5,043 - - 121,563
Accrued payroll......ooiiiiiiiii - 17,713 - - 17,713
Other liabilities. ...........ieereiiiiiniiiai e 1,342,670 - - - 1,342,670
Accrued health claims payable. .. 4,022,849 - - - 4,022,849
Workers' compensation claims - 1,127,680 - - 1,127,680
Total current liabilities. ...........vuviiiceciiiinnnnnnn. 5,482,039 1,170,528 - - 6,652,567
Noncurrent liabilities:
Workers' compensation claims..........cc.vevuieeieniinnnn.ns - 5,889,230 - - 5,889,230
Total Habiliies. .........verrivveeeeerorseesreenss 5,482,039 7,059,758 ; . 12,541,797

FUND NET ASSETS
Unrestrcted. ..ot e $ 10,360,398 $ 1,603,256 § 824543 8§ 222032 § 13,010,229




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Workers'
Health Compensation Building Liability
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Employer contributions $ 39,717,481 § 1,465,676  $ - - 8 41,183,157
Employee contributions 10,285,804 E - 10,285,804
Miscellaneouss iimiimmitiniiii sl iua il syarassesis fiss sanesssssions 40 40
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. ....cccviuiiniiniiiienneiiniannns 50,003,285 1,465,676 - 40 51,469,001
OPERATING EXPENSES
Change in incurred but not reported liability. 398,231 332,049 730,280
Self insurance claims..............oouviiiinin. 47,041,409 1,819,067 48,860,476
Insurance premiums......... TR e L A L TR 498,653 - 498,653
AdMiniStrative EXPenSeS. . .o .. iveiiiimiirarinneirranimeereessersssnnrossen 2,618,069 56,695 2,674,764
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES......ccv..ceensnn. AR R E 50,556,362 2,207,811 52,764,173
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).ceuueerneriiinrineniniesnnasriiarions (553,077) (742,135) 40 (1,295,172
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INVeEStMENE IMCOME. ...\t tiiiiiiieecaaie et e ra e bsnn e sse e ienn s 40,539 1,245,956 37,619 670 1,324,784
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS. .......ccvecrinrrrerins, (512,538) 503,821 37,619 710 29,612
TRANSFERS
TTanSTers OUL. copxeqsmismaeens savassarssepssas s « v s cogerawnsance  «  »BHVTRISS EREHE . (277,582) - (277,582)
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS.......cuimiiiniieesionteiseinrineinnnnn (512,538) 503,821 (239,963) 710 (241,970)
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ...........coovunieenns 10,872,936 1,099,435 1,064,506 221,322 13,258,199
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR.........ocorruenrenrnrinns - $ 10,360,398 $ 1,603,256 $ 824,543 222,032 % 13,010,229




CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Workers'
Health Compensation Building Liability
Insurance Insurance Insurance Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts From cUSLOMErs ANd USCLS. vummiuiieiinnsnnsirermimminieimsnanssiassiatnrensoninsermmsssess $ 10,285,804 § - 3 - 3 - 10,285,804
Receipts from interfund services provided. . 39,717,481 1,465,676 40 41,183,197
Payments to vendors/providers.............. (49,359,935) (1,979,397 (51,339,332)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES .......cocciiiiireimneseeinieronnns 643,350 (513,721) - 40 129,669
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TTANSEELS QUL uusasivncuerntininiemrssrrnsnsenrsnnssmminsesmsnstesesssensenessonssssnssnsesesssnssrsnns (277,582) (277,582)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments . (1,411,153) 96,271 - (1,314,882}
Investment income........ 40,539 1,248,069 39,764 670 1,329,042
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES. ...c0uvmmmrerincrririrermiermmsemasnessernns 40,539 (163,084) 136,035 670 14,160
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. .....cimumtsrmtrerererimeieiserissnsses 683,889 (676,805) (141,547) 710 (133,753)
CASH AND CASH FEQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR... 14,658,129 1,146,109 173,527 221,322 16,199,087
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR .cvvvivvvverireiiinereiiimesassinneneens $ 15,342,018 § 469,304 $ 31,980 § 222,032 16,065,334
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating incoOMe (I058)uuuararesirivniarmmenimsmnesenstiismmmsnrramsissnsesssssnrisnssssanses $ (553,077) § (742,135 § - 3 40 (1,295,172)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Working capital depositis. o1 . .. rassissiiasrimam am eSS s s (102,002) - - - (102,002)
Warrants payable... (271,183) (56,892) - (328,075)
Accrued payroll,.... - (10,941) - (10,941)
Other liabilities.... 1,342,670 - - 1,342,670
Accrued liabilities 116,520 (35,802 - = 80,718
Accrued health claims payable. . 110,422 - - - 110,422
Workers' compensation.... T - 332,049 - - 332,049
Total adjUSTMENES. .t iasinsimimnnnsirersercrmanboamiasmrrsesrmetbaesbaeseaiesaeeean 1,196,427 228,414 - - 1,424,841
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES.......ciiimiiininnnerieiciiasrareranmmmnmnseriies 3 643,350 % (513,721) $ - 3 40 129,669




Private Purpose Trust Funds

Chaffin Education Fund
This fund is used to account for higher education loans and gtrants issued to Newton high school graduates who are unable to
afford the cost of college education. Revenues consist ptimatily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

Scovell Education Fund
This fund is used to account for prizes and awards to students for distinguished scholarships awarded at Newton high schools.

The prizes are subject to approval of the School Committee. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash
and investments.

Gorin Education Fund
This fund is used to account for loans to Newton high school graduates for attending institutions of higher education.

Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

Cousens Welfare Fund

This fund is used to account for loans and or grants to Newton residents who qualify as poor. At least 90% of the annual
income of the fund is to be distributed to the deserving poot and not more than 20% of this sum may be loaned to individuals
who are temporarily in financial need. Revenues consist ptimarily of investment income on fund cash and investments.

School Scholarship Fund
This fund is used to account for a variety of public school scholarship funds. Detailed fund information is available from the

City Comptroller’s Office.

Kendrick Welfare Fund
This fund is used to account for distributions to needy industtious poor of Newton, especially widows and orphans.

Read Charity Fund

This fund is used to account for the perpetual maintenance of the donot’s grave site, an annual sleigh ride ot picnic for the
children of the Newton Corner section of Newton, free lectures on scientific subjects in Newton Corner, library book
putchases, and assistance to poor widows of the City. Revenues consist primarily of investment income on fund cash and
investments.

Spear Infirmary Fund
The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used to “...provide cheer for the inmates of the City farm.” The

fund has been inactive for a numbert of years.

Mabel Riley Senior Fund
‘The terms of the gift of this fund calls for the income to be used for .. .special treats for residents of nursing homes and

homes for the eldetly on holidays and for comforts for the sick throughout the year.”

Elderly Tax Relief Fund
The City has accepted Massachusetts General Law Chapter 60, Section 3D, which authorizes the implementation of a

voluntary tax check-off program for purposes of defraying real estate taxes for elderly and disabled Newton taxpayers with low
incomes. This fund is used to account for the receipt of voluntaty donations and awards voted by the Taxation Aid
Committee.

Arnold Daniels Fund

Putsuant to the terms of the Arnold S. Daniels, Jr. Revocable Ttust, dated July 20, 2000, this fund is used to assist needy
residents of Newton by providing them with monetary disttibutions to provide food, shelter, and clothing.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2011
Chaffin Scovell Gorin Cousens
Hducation Fducation Education Welfare
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents...........ccccociiiiiiiiii $ 243,647 § 32,169 § 5727 § 627,220
INVESIMENES. ...t 4,469,520 1,044,241 - 1,253,890
Interest and dividends...........ooviiiiriii i 12,299 3,767 - 4,160
Receivables, net of allowarnce for uncollectibles
LoANS cuvsusemiiamsnimiiass s o i s e e e e S - - 20,436
TOtAl ASSELS. ... veeoeeeeeee e ee e 4,725 466 1,080,177 26,163 1,885,270
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds.....c..c.oviiiiii i 30,813
Total Habilities.......ooeiiii e 30,813 - - =
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for other purposes............cocoociiiiiiiiiininn. .. $ 4,694,653 § 1,080,177 § 26,163 $ 1,885,270




$

$

School Kendrick Read Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Arnold Daniels
Scholarship Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relief Fund . Total

728,612 $ 3102 § 43049 § 4,649 § 37919 § 749 $ 50,392 § 1,777,235
522,159 - - - . - - 7,289,810
2,032 : : : 22,258
- - - 20,436
1,252,803 3,102 43,049 4,649 37,919 749 50,392 9,109,739
. . 30,813
> 2 2 : 30,813
1,252803 § 3102 § 43,049 4649 $ 37919 $ 749 § 50,392 § 9,078,926
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Chaffin Scovell Gorin Cousens
Liducation Education Education Welfare
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Private donatons. ... .....oiiiiiirii it et s $ - S - 3 - 3 17,797
Net investment income;
TOEELESt. . ettt 592,217 146,323 - 269,041
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ...ttt eeea e v e e 592,217 146,323 - 286,838
DEDUCTIONS
Administration eXPense. ... ... covuiviieiiiiiiei e, 1,207 . - 30,483
Educational scholarships & awards.............coocvveveiniiiiinninn.n. 179,774 25,250 - 59,587
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. .. ..ottt e eeaeeaaiaens 180,981 . 25,250 - 90,070
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. .. ot ciiiiniiieiiaie e 411,236 121,073 . 196,768
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .......oovviieeieeienannnen. 4,283,417 959,104 26,163 1,688,502

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR......cceoiiiiiiiiiiiineciieei e, $ 4,694,653 § 1,080,177 % 26,163 § 1,885,270




School Kendrick Read Spear Mabel Riley Elderly Arnold Daniels
Scholarship Welfare Charity Infirmary Senior Tax Relief Fund Total

$ 151,166  § - % - % - 3 - % 3,976 = % 172,939
73,326 10 133 15 115 5 154 1,081,339
224,492 10 133 15 115 3,981 154 1,254,278
600 - 706 - - - - 32,996
96,013 - - - - 3,875 364,499
96,613 - 706 3.875 397,495
127,879 10 (573) 15 115 106 154 856,783
1,124,924 3,092 43,622 4,634 37,804 643 50,238 8,222,143
$ 1252803 § 3,102 $ 43049 § 4649 % 37919 § 749 50,392 § 9,078,926
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Agency Fund

This fund is used to account for monies held on behalf of parties othet than the City, such as state and fedetal agencies;

independent not-for-profit otrganizations for which the City collects private donations; the Metro Fire District; and public
school student activities.

95



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Deductions June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccooouvviiiinieniiin. $ 2,426,344 142,656,599 (143,857,070) $ 1,225,873
LIABILITIES

Warrants payable..............ooioiiin 217,624 143,639,022 (143,856,640)

Accrued payroll..........oooiii 424 - (424) -

Payroll withholdings............c..ccoiiviniiiniiinain. 1,443,934 140,780,748 (142,020,249) 204,433

Other liabilities.............c.cococciiiiinn, 764,362 1,875,851 (1,618,773) 1,021,440

Total liabilities. ............c.ocooiiiiiiiiinnn, $ 2,426,344  § 286,295,621 $ (287,496,002) § 1,225,873
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General Fund

This is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the government, except those requited to
be accounted for in another fund.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
City Clerk/Clerk of the Board
Personal Services 3 2 8 818,299 -
Expenses - 50,910 6,000
Fringe Benefits - 210,863 8,890
Total City Clerk/Clerk of the Board = 1,080,072 14,890
Mayor's Office
Personal Services = 668,543 (10,000)
Expenses 103 40,625 -
Fringe Benefits - 66,817 4,090
Total Mayor's Office 103 775,985 (5,910
Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance
Personal Services = 424 878
Expenses 11,193 479,235 £
Fringe Benefits - 60,959 7,164
Total Comptroller's Office/Property Insurance 11,193 965,072 7,164
Purchasing/General Services
Personal Services = 326,740 (15,000)
Expenses - 73,903 (5,000)
Capital Outlay - 3,000 5,000
Fringe Benefits - 51,480 5,076
Total Purchasing/General Services - 455,123 (9,924)
Assessing Department
Personal Services - 990,949 (15,000)
Expenses - 40,000 -
Fringe Benefits - 182,357 (15,965)
Total Assessing Department - 1,213,306 (30,965)
Treasury & Collection Department
Personal Services - 505,595 40,000
Expenses 11,805 411,569 24,852
Fringe Benefits - 100,466 (12,373)
Total Treasury & Collection Department 11,805 1,017,630 52,479
City Solicitor/Judgments & Settlements
Personal Services - 813,716 10,168
Expenses - 237,443 62,966
Fringe Benefits - 102,977 (11,022)
Total City Solicitor's Office/Settlements - 1,154,136 62,112
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
818,299 $ 818,299 3 812,882 $ - 5,417
56,910 56,910 50,200 5,621 1,089
219,753 219,753 219,518 - 235
1,094,962 1,094,962 1,082,600 5,621 6,741
658,543 658,543 655,426 3,117
40,625 40,728 29,928 - 10,800
70,907 70,907 70,843 - 64
770,075 770,178 756,197 - 13,981
424,878 424,878 407,483 17,395
479,235 490,428 482,017 8,033 378
68,123 68,123 67,764 359
972,236 983,429 957,264 8,033 18,132
311,740 311,740 302,298 - 9,442
68,903 68,903 35,655 - 33,248
8,000 8,000 6,173 1,827
56,556 56,556 56,097 459
445,199 445,199 400,223 44,976
975,949 975,949 967,383 8,566
40,000 40,000 39,999 - 1
166,392 166,392 166,026 366
1,182,341 1,182,341 1,173,408 8,933
545,595 545,595 543,956 - 1,639
436,421 448,226 402,465 2,700 43,061
88,093 88,093 87,897 . 196
1,070,109 1,081,914 1,034,318 2,700 44,896

823,884 823,884 823,884 - -
300,409 300,409 292,124 - 8,285
91,955 91,955 91,803 - 152
1,216,248 1,216,248 1,207,811 8,437

(Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Human Resources Department
Personal Services - 603,879 (55,462)
Expenses 298 107,549 -
Capital Outlay - 1,700 -
Fringe Benefits - 205,858 124,100
Total Human Resources Department 298 918,986 68,638
Information Technology Department
Personal Services - 650,626 (40,000)
Expenses 89 320,662 =
Capital Outlay - 25,500 -
Fringe Benefits . 118,906 (29,265)
Total Information Technology Department 89 1,115,694 (69,265)
Election Commission
Personal Services - 383,949 -
Expenses - 82,188 -
Fringe Benefits - 56,898 (1,737
Total Election Commission - 523,035 (1,737)
Licensing Commission
Expenses - 1,896 -
Planning & Development Department
Personal Services s 852,821 (10,206)
Expenses 35,077 29,057 (2,070
Capital Outlay - 2,070
Fringe Benefits - 150,289 (42,654)
Total Planning & Development Department 35,077 1,032,167 (52,860)
Public Building Department
Personal Services - 1,755,994 (48,014)
Expenses 01,186 751,320 18,445
Capital Outlay 3 1,000 -
Fringe Benefits - 394,625 (52,804)
Total Public Building Department 61,186 2,902,939 (82,373)
GENERAL GOVERNMENT TOTAL 119,751 13,156,041 (47,751)
Police Department
Personal Services 497,331 13,710,898 1,226,022
Expenses 11,171 804,013 60,000
Capital Outlay 49,078 71,507 -
Fringe Benefits - 2,281,294 (112,787)
Total Police Department 557,580 16,867,712 1,173,235
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
548,417 548,417 522,507 25,910
107,549 107,847 102,384 5,463
1,700 1,700 1,071 629
329,958 329,958 292,577 37,381
987,624 987,922 918,539 69,383
610,626 610,626 567,612 - 43,014
320,662 320,751 316,600 766 3,385
25,500 25,500 25,413 87
89,641 89,641 88,483 - 1,158
1,046,429 1,046,518 998,108 766 47,644
383,949 383,949 373,031 - 10,918
82,188 82,188 42,933 4,200 35,055
55,161 55,161 55,157 - 4
521,298 521,298 471,121 4,200 45,977
1,896 1,896 1,559 337
842,615 842,615 834,008 - 8,607
26,987 62,064 32,534 21,217 8,313
2,070 2,070 - 2,045 25
107,635 107,635 106,485 - 1,150
979,307 1,014,384 973,027 23,262 18,095
1,707,980 1,707,980 1,657,352 - 50,628
769,765 830,951 797,939 30,364 2,648

1,000 1,000 858 142 -
341,821 341,821 340,500 - 1,321
2,820,566 2,881,752 2,796,649 30,506 54,597
13,108,290 13,228,041 12,770,824 75,088 382,129
14,936,920 15,434,251 15,373,481 - 60,770
864,013 875,184 853,208 1,498 20,478
71,507 120,585 119,744 - 841
2,168,507 2,168,507 2,166,661 - 1,846
18,040,947 18,598,527 18,513,094 1,498 83,935

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Fire Department
Personal Services . 12,989,316 233,000
Expenses 500 555,462 49,300
Capital Outlay 20,480 27,000 -
Fringe Benefits : 2,336,025 (98,546)
Total Fire Department 20,980 15,907,803 183,754
Inspectional Services Department
Personal Services = 884,766 5,000
Expenses 53,810 -
Capital Outlay 20,000 -
Fringe Benefits 141,103 :
Total Inspectional Services Department - 1,099,679 5,000
Weights & Measures Department
Personal Services - 66,196 10
Expenses 3,615 (10)
Fringe Benefits 6,508 =
Total Weights & Measures Department 76,319
PUBLIC SAFETY TOTAL 578,560 33,951,513 1,361,989
NEWTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS 894,457 164,726,002 736,564
Public Works Department
Personal Services B 7,640,532 549,500
Expenses 60,736 9,353,930 2,248,000
Capital Outlay 146,421 68,770 -
Fringe Benefits - 1,575,853 (67,100)
Total Public Works Department 207,157 18,639,085 2,730,400
PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL 207,157 18,639,085 2,730,400
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
13,222,316 13,222,316 13,123,633 - 98,683
604,762 605,262 583,033 15,365 6,864
27,000 47,480 27,607 19,747 126
2,237,479 2,237,479 2,234,388 - 3,091
16,091,557 16,112,537 15,968,661 35,112 108,764

889,766 889,766 889,766 - -
53,810 53,810 37,912 5,100 10,798
20,000 20,000 - - 20,000
141,103 141,103 139,776 - 1,327
1,104,679 1,104,679 1,067,454 5,100 32,125
66,206 66,206 66,204 2
3,605 3,605 1,773 - 1,832
6,508 6,508 6,475 33
76,319 76,319 74,452 1,867
35,313,502 35,892,062 35,623,661 41,710 226,691
165,462,566 166,357,023 165,980,480 375,273 1,270
8,190,032 8,190,032 7,997,073 - 192,959
11,601,930 11,662,666 11,380,030 50,664 231,972
68,770 215,191 26,056 185,079 4,056
1,508,753 1,508,753 1,503,488 - 5,265
21,369,485 21,576,642 20,906,647 235,743 434,252
21,369,485 21,576,642 20,906,647 235,743 434,252

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
Health & Human Services Department
Personal Services - 2,213,314 (50,000)
Expenses 181 322,301 —
Capital Outlay 4,500 - *
Fringe Benefits - 489,272 (33,163)
Total Public Health Department 4,681 3,024,887 (83,163)
Senior Services Department
Personal Services - 228,980 -
Expenses - 301,444 B
Fringe Benefits - 50,322 (1,479)
Total Human Services Department 580,746 (1,479)
Veteran Services Department
Personal Services 140,658 500
Expenses 47,275 70,000
Fringe Benefits 23,129 9,118
Total Veteran Services Department - 211,062 79,618
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES TOTAL 4,681 3,816,695 (5,024)
Newton Public Library
Personal Services - 3,334,243 (50,000)
Expenses 1,088,484 -
Fringe Benefits - 606,304 793
Total Newton Public Library - 5,029,031 (49,207)
Parks & Recreation Department
Personal Services - 2,282,652 1,690
Expenses - 1,195,965 146,115
Fringe Benefits - 322,690 41,346
Total Parks & Recreation Department - 3,801,307 189,151
Newton History Museum
Personal Services 195,190 -
Expenses - 19,721 -
Fringe Benefits - 36,822 (574
Total Newton History Museum = 251,733 (574)
CULTURE & RECREATION TOTAL - 9,082,071 139,370
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Transfers Appropriations Fund Balance
2,163,314 2,163,314 2,159,991 3,323
322,301 322,482 286,938 35,544
- 4,500 4,391 - 109
456,109 456,109 449,481 - 6,628
2,941,724 2,946,405 2,900,801 - 45,604
228,980 228,980 218,224 10,756

301,444 301,444 301,444 -
48,843 48,843 48,759 84
579,267 579,267 568,427 10,840
141,158 141,158 141,157 1
117,275 117,275 115,545 1,730
32,247 32,247 32,150 97
290,680 290,680 288,852 1,828
3,811,671 3,816,352 3,758,080 - 58,272
3,284,243 3,284,243 3,133,480 - 150,763
1,088,484 1,088,484 990,105 - 98,379
607,097 607,097 606,873 224
4,979,824 4,979,824 4,730,458 249,366
2,284,342 2,284,342 2,254,075 - 30,267
1,342,080 1,342,080 1,274,612 67,468
364,036 364,036 360,507 3,529
3,990,458 3,990,458 3,889,194 101,264
195,190 195,190 194,626 564
19,721 19,721 19,484 237
36,248 36,248 34,867 - 1,381
251,159 251,159 248,977 - 2,182
9,221,441 9,221,441 8,868,629 - 352,812

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

GENERAL FUND

BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions
DEBT SERVICE (PRINCIPAL & INTEREST)
Debt Service “ 16,010,731 -
RETIREMENT
Personal Services - 179,103 -
Expenses = 70,525 -
Fringe Benefits - 23132,711 426,392
Total Retirement } 23,382,339 426,392
APPROPRIATED RESERVES
Wage & Salary Reserve 881,022 - (881,022)
Reserve Fund (Budget Reserve) - 750,000 (697,725)
Total Budgetary Reserves 881,022 750,000 (1,578,747)
STATE & COUNTY ASSESSMENTS 5,552,182 36,904
SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS 3,192,017 1,412,279
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,877,645 289,066,659 5,212,376
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - Municipal 750,000 48,014
Workers Comp Self Insurance Fund - School 250,000 -
School Athletic Revolving Fund - School 903,678 -
School Lunch Fund - School 502,648 (40,648)
School Building Improvement Fund - - 75,000
Municipal Building Improvement Fund - - 4,954
Capital Stabilization Fund - Municipal 22,163
Rainy Day Stabilzation Fund - 2,643,271
Municipal Federal Grants - Municipal - - 40,000
Municipal Federal Grants - School < - 125,750
OPEB Fund 137,000 -
Total T'ransfers to Other Funds 2,543,326 2,918,504
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS $ 5,877,645 $ 291,609,985 § 8,130,880
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Expenditures and Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Transfers Appropriations FFund Balance
16,010,731 16,010,731 16,009,264 - 1,467
179,103 179,103 179,101 2
70,525 70,525 70,525 - -
23,559,103 23,559,103 23,524,814 - 34,289
23,808,731 23,808,731 23,774,440 34,291
(881,022) : ; ] ]
52,275 52,275 - 52,275
(828,747) 52,275 52,275
5,589,086 5,589,086 5,472,487 116,599
1,412,279 4,604,296 1,508,283 3,096,013
294,279,035 300,156,680 294,672,795 3,823,827 1,660,058
798,014 798,014 798,014
250,000 250,000 250,000 s
903,678 903,678 903,678
462,000 462,000 462,000
75,000 75,000 75,000 - -
4,954 4,954 4,954 - =
22,163 22,163 22,163
2,643,271 2,643,271 2,643,271 - -
40,000 40,000 40,000 - -
125,750 125,750 125,750 -
137,000 137,000 137,000
5,461,830 5,461,830 5,461,830 -
299,740,865 $ 305,618,510 § 300,134,625 $ 3,823,827 § 1,660,058
(Concluded)
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Community Presetvation Fund

This fund accounts for the 1% local propetty tax surcharge that the votets of the City approved in Novembet of 2001 for
open space, historic resource and affordable housing purposes. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts currently matches local
surcharge revenue on a dollar for dollar basis.

The Board of Aldermen has appropriation authotity over all community preservation funds; however, all apptoptiation
recommendations must otiginate with the nine membet community presetvation committee.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Administration & operations
2010 CPA appropriation reserve

Open space:
Open space reserve
Flowed Meadow improvements
Cheesecake Brook Greenway development
Kesseler Woods debt setvice
Total - Open space projects

Historic resources:
Histotic presetvation reserve
Atchival survey
Historic building assessment (1830-1840)
Municipal building historic assessment
Mayor Hyde portrait restoration
Historical butial grounds testoration
Historical butial gtounds testoration Phase I1
Dutant Kenrick Homestead
Durant Kenrick Homestead presetvation restriction
Heritage landscape inventory
Newton History Museum Archives Project
Fatlow Patk Pond Imptovements
Jackson Homstead Museum Restoration
Atrchives Preservation
Angino farm bam rehabilitaton
Warren House Ptreservation
Archaeological Resoutces Sutvey

Total - Histortic preservation

Continued Current Year Original

Appropdations Approptiations Budget
1,625 145,990 $ 147,615
- 1,442,489 1,442,489
30,700 - 30,700
430 - 430
- 555,750 555,750
31,130 555,750 586,880
- 308,909 308,909
5,200 - 5,200
13,076 13,076
194,782 194,782
104 104
2,717,300 - 2,717,300
444 444
79,913 - 79,913
24,360 24,360
61,866 - 61,866
36,545 - 36,545
85,200 - 85,200
2,500 2,500
36,134 - 36,134
3,257,424 308,909 3,566,333
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Encumbrances/

Budget Final Continued Closed to
Revisions Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance
147,615 § 102,905 § 12,810 $ 31,900
(1,181,666 260,823 - - 260,823
430 430 - - 430
- 30,700 30,700
(430) - . - :
- 555,750 555,750 - -
- 586,880 555,750 30,700 430
(179,976) 128,933 - - 128,933
46,640 46,640 - 46,640 -
37,500 37,500 - 37,500 =
98,780 98,780 - 98,780 -
(500) 4,700 4,700 - -
- 13,076 - 13,076 -
194,782 16,612 178,170 s
104 - 104 -
- 2,717,300 - 2,717,300
(444) : : : :
- 79,913 30,493 49,420 -
24,360 14,360 10,000
61,866 32,122 29,744 -
36,545 24,377 12,168 -
- 85,200 5,804 79,396 -
(2,500) - - - -
- 36,134 26,250 9,884 -
(500) 3,565,833 154,718 3,282,182 128,933

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL - LEGAL LEVEL OF CONTROL (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued Current Year Otiginal
Approptiations Appropriations Budget
Community housing:
Community housing resetve . 308,909 308,909
192 Lexington Street housing 2,046,000 2,046,000
2148-2150 Commonwealth Avenue housing 375,000 375,000
61 Pearl Sreet housing - - -
Newton Homebuyer Assistance Program (629,631 - 629,631
Total - community housing 3,050,631 308,909 3,359,540
Community recreation:
20 Rogers Street land acquisition debt setvice - 327,038 327,038
20 Rogers Street land acquisition BAN interest - . -
Albematle community classtoom - Patks 12,929 - 12,929
Angino farm batn rehabilitation 482,800 - 482,800
Total - community recteation 495,729 327,038 822,767
TOTAL CPA FUND 6,836,539 3,089,085 $ 9,925,624
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Encumbrances/

Budget Final Continued Closed to
Revistons Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance
- 308,909 - - 308,909
- 2,046,000 1,986,001 59,999 -
- 375,000 375,000 - -
665,500 665,500 - 665,500 -
- 629,631 308 629,323 -
665,500 4,025,040 2,361,309 1,354,822 308,909
- 327,038 327,038 -
451,650 451,650 451,650 -
- 12,929 - 12,929
- 482,800 17,799 465,001 -
451,650 1,274,417 796,487 477,930
(65,016) $ 9,860,608 $ 3,971,169 $ 5,158,444 $ 730,995

(Concluded)
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Additional Information



CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

School Building Improvement Fund:

Newton South High Athletic Field Improvements
Burr Elementary Window Replacement

Education Center Emergency Generator Replacement
Williams Boiler Replacement

Countryside Elevator Lift

Peirce Elementary School Repairs

F.A Day HVAC Improvements

Angier School Boiler Replacement

Horance Mann School Window/Door Replacement
Elementary School Roof Top Exhaust Units

School Masonry Repairs

School Boiler Replacement

School Roof Repairs

Varous Elementary School Modulars

F.A Day/Oak Hill Modulars

Total School Building Improvement Fund

High School Renovation Fund:
Newton South High School Renovations
Newton North High School Renovations

Total High School Renovation Fund

Municipal Building Improvement Fund:
Energy Audits - Varous Buildings

Energy Conservation - Various Buildings

Police Station HQ lobby safety improvements
City Hall Window Replacement/Repairs - 2011
Crafts St DPW Yard Fuel Tank Replacment
Fire Station #3 & #10 Architectural Study

Fire Station #7 Renovatons

Fire Station #4 Plantings & Landscaping

Total Municipal Building Improvement Fund

CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund:
MA 3246207
MA 0035509
MA 0044606
MA 0048380
MA 0050910

Total CH 90 Highway Improvement Fund

Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund:
Parks Equipment Replacement - 2009
Automated Trash & Recycling Receptacles - 2009
Trommel Screen - 2010

Public Works Equipment Replacement - 2011
Fire Engine Replacement - 2010

Total Municipal Equipment Replacement Fund

Continued Fy 2011
Appropriations Appropriatons Transfers
$ 794,659 $ - 5
619,400
202,000
187,835
145,250
189,128
459,219 -
83,324 - -
- 500,000 -
100,000 -
450,000 -
350,000 -
810,000 -

- 75,000 -
1,263,571 - -
3,944,386 2,285,000 -

18,054
33,497,836 -
33,515,890 - -
165,070 - .
3,168,601 128,992 (128,992)
- - 118,500
- 125,000 -
386,093 -
- 130,000
4,403,576 - -
14,962 7,635 (7,635)
8,138,302 391,627 (18,127
166,641 - .
22,650 (20,000) -
24,560 - .
85,041 - .
3,942,471 2,369,481 -
4,241,363 2,349,481 -
9,386 - (9,386)
668,154 (650,000) -
170,000 - -
- 265,000
8,069 - -
855,609 (385,000 (9,386)
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Following Year

Expended Encumbered Budget Balance
142,971 8§ 9075 § 642,613
251,640 86,980 280,780
2,172 - 199,828
156,317 31,518
104,383 40,867 -
186,341 2,787 :
454,069 5,150 -
36,075 47,249 -
5,500 494,500
- - 100,000
5 450,000 =
- - 350,000 *
17,429 4,500 788,071 -
23,580 - 51,420 -
1,118,675 - 144,896 =
2,499,152 100,555 3,629,679 -
14,668 3386 - X
24,123 371 5,632,685 3,741,780 -
24,138,039 5,636,071 3,741,780 -

- - 165,070 -
3,161,862 - 6,739 -

- 118,500

- - 125,000 =

352,827 33,266

- - 130,000 -
2,419,140 1,461,418 523,018 -

- 14,395 567 -
5,933,829 1,475,813 1,102,160 -

166,641

: = 2,650

14,178 10,382 -

. - 85,041 -
1,741,871 1,375,300 3,194,781 B
1,756,049 1,385,682 3,449,113 -

17,556 - 598 -
164,500 z 5,500 -
265,000 - - -

(969) - 9,038

446,087 - 15,136 -
(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011
Appropriations Appropriatons Transfers

Water System Improvement Fund:
MWRA - Water System - Accumulated Interest Income 9,721 15,740 -
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2005 87,170 -
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2006 85,818 - -
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2007 42,010
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2009 1,879,841 - .
MWRA - Water System Improvements - 111 Transfer 664,379
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2010 2,189,813 -
MWRA - Water System Improvements - Loan of 2011 . 1,933,657
Water Meter Replacement - 2009 8,478,083 -
Waban Hill Reservoir Improvements - 2001 / 2003 254 811 - -

Total Water System Improvement Fund 13,691,646 1,949,397 -
Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund:
Sewer Emergency Repairs (City of Newton) 10,000
Cochitutate Sewer Repait (Town of Wellesley Contb) 135,478 -
Oakdale Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010 50,500 - (24,417)
Farina Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010 57,642 L
Irving St Sewer Improvements - 2010 116,500 .
Old Farm Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010 170,500 -
Woodland/Studio Rd Sewer Improvements - 2010 = - 24,417
Old Farm Rd Sewer Improvements - 2011 787,000 -
Aspen Ave /Hawthorne Ave/Studio Ed Ext - 2011 800,000 -
Quinobequin Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011 200,000 -
Grodon Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011 170,000 -
Newtonville Ave Sewer Repairs - 2011 160,000 -
Wood End Rd Sewer Repairs - 2011 - 160,000 -
MWRA - Sewer 1&I - Accumulated Interest Income 8,356 8,442 B
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2007 106,684 - -
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2007 308,009
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2008 269,301 -
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2009 913,405
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2009 652,779 -
MWRA - Infiltration/Inflow - 2010 683,192 -

Total Sanitary Sewer Improvement Fund 3,482,346 2,285,442 i
Total Capital Projects Funds $ 67,869,542 $ 8,875,947 §$ (27,513)
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Following Year

Expended lingumbered Budget Balance
- 25,461
69,690 17,480
85,818 = -
42,010 -
1,863,632 - 16,209
489,729 174,649 1 -
1,361,426 727,999 100,388 -
- - 1,933,657 -
4,192,701 1,886,891 2,398,491 -
2,566 3,959 248,286
8,107,572 2,793,498 4,739,973 -
- 10,000
- 135,478
- 26,083
7,142 50,500 -
55,982 - 60,518 -
125,612 44,888 - -
. 24,417 . .
- - 787,000 -
- 800,000
- 200,000
170,000
- 160,000 -
- 160,000 -
- - 16,798
96,334 10,290 60
254,782 43,124 10,103
217,669 51,631 1
913,400 - 5 =
648,775 - 4,004
354,244 328,948 -
2,673,940 503,298 2,590,550
45,554,668 $ 11,894,917 19,268,391 §
(Concluded)
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS QUT
BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Continued FY 2011 FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget Budget Revisions

Sewer Maintenance & Operation

Personal Services $ - $ 2,012,674 % (117,662)

Expenses 143,820 1,422,150 (37,000)

Capital Outlay 510,660 943,500 (555,000)

Fringe Benefits - 406,968 -

Total 654,480 4,785,292 (709,662)
MWRA Sewer Assessment -

Intergovernmental - 18,087,335 (52,000)
Debt Matutities & Intetest - 1,495,812 -
Retirement - 339,190
Employee Benefits - 276,534 (276,000
Transfer - Wortkers Compensation Fund < 150,000 117,662
Transfer - General Fund - 837,801

Total Sewer Entetptise Fund $ 654,480 $ 25,971,964 $ (920,000)
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Expended Appropriations Fund Balance

1,895,012 §$ 1,895,012 § 1,662,399 $ 4,100 228,513

1,385,150 1,528,970 757,514 264,585 506,871

388,500 899,160 260,795 636,364 2,001

406,968 406,968 397,392 - 9,576

4,075,630 4,730,110 3,078,100 905,049 746,961

18,035,335 18,035,335 18,034,955 380

1,495,812 1,495,812 1,316,148 179,664
339,190 339190 339,190

534 534 s 534

267,662 267,662 267,662 -

837,801 837,801 837,801

25,051,964 § 25,706,444 $ 23,873,856 $ 905,049 $ 927,539
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS OUT

BUDGET TO ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Water Maintenance & Opetration
Personal Services
Expenses
Capital Outlay
Fringe Benefits

Total
Debt Matutities & Interest
Retirement
MWRA/DEP Assessments & Charges
Budget Resetve
‘T'ransfer - Sewer Fund
Transfer - Genetal Fund
Transfer - Wortkers Compensation Fund

Total Water Enterptise Fund

Continued FY 2011
Appropriations Original Budget

FY 2011
Budget Revisions

B 2,116,840 $
239,119 1,306,389
142,940 498,000

430,398

(310,000)
(171,000)

382,059 4,351,627

(481,000)

3,172,816

381,798

8,745,520

110,373

922,778

558,534

150,000

382,059 $ 18,393,446 $

(481,000)
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Encumbrances/

FY 2011 Budget Total Revised Continued Closed to
As Amended FY 2011 Budget Expended Approptiations Fund Balance
2,116,840 §$ 2,116,840 $ 1,757,254 § 4,800 $ 354,786
996,389 1,235,508 844,316 176,044 215,148
327,000 469,940 50,854 412,086 7,000
430,398 430,398 407,545 - 22,853
3,870,627 4,252,686 3,059,969 592,930 599,787
3,172,816 3,172,816 3,136,654 36,162
381,798 381,798 377,110 4,688
8,745,520 8,745,520 8,738,199 7,321
110,373 110,373 - 110,373
922,778 922,778 922,778 -
558,534 558,534 558,534 =
150,000 150,000 150,000 -
17,912,446 §$ 18,294,505 $ 16,943244 $§ 592930 $ 758,331
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Newton’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends (pages 122 - 127)

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader undersiand how the City’s financial performance and well-being have
changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (pages 128 - 131)

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant local revenne source, the property ta.

Debt Capacity (pages 132 - 135)

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of ontstanding debt and
the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the futnre.

Demogtaphic and Economic Information (page 136)

This schedule offers demagraphic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the City’s
Jinancial activeties take place.

Operating Information (pages 137 - 138)

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the City’s financial
report relates 1o the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is detived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant yeat.
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NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Governmental Activities

Invested in capital assets, net of telated debt. $ 70,967,240 $§ 92,639,519 § 123,155,756 $ 153,522,317 § 153,034,916

$ 167,543,474 § 174,706,210 $ 150,650,131 $ 194,301,691 § 211,763,420

Restrcted 29,282,090 13,669,675 14,029,054 21,270,042 15,267,985 13,842,544 35,459,940 104,838,430 52,363,403 34,096,760

Unrestricted... 26,813,182 24,407,942 34,366,681 35,865,065 48,962,078 67,671,362 39,781,710 2,265,544 (27,083,933) 65,309,262
Total govemmental activities net assets............ $_127,062,512 § 130,717,136 _$ 171,551,491 $ 210,657,424 $ 217,264979 $ 249,057,380 $ 249,947,860 § 253,223,017 $ 219,581,161 $ 180,550,918
Business-Type Activities

Invested in capital asscts, net of related debr. § 24,654,154 § 34,035,510 § 29,625,363 § 29,802,672 $ 31,085,365 $ 32701330 § 46364172 § 32,694954 § IB62,779 § 46,802,526

Restrcted.... 5,211,172 6,475,918 6,624,240 8,410,167 9,007,804 10,418,683 6,581,929 15,657,948 13,497,989 7,321,657

Unrestricted 17,473,387 8,628,722 11,844,840 11,936,815 13,583,611 13,295,771 9,359,270 12,871,360 9,980,661 15,055,372
Total business-type activities net assets....... ... $__ 47 338,713 $_ 49,140,150 $_ 48,094,443 $_ 50,149,654 $ 53676780 $ 56415784 $ 62,305,371 $_ 61,224,262 $_ 62106429 $_ 69,179,554

Primary Government

Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt, $ 95,621,394 $ 126,675,029 § 152,781,119 $ 183,324,989 §$ 184,120,281

§ 200,244,804 $ 221,070,382 § 183,345,085 § 232,929470 § 258,565,946

Restricted... 34,493,262 20,145,593 20,653,294 29,680,209 24,275,789 24,261,227 42,041,869 120,496,378 65,861,392 41,418,417
Unrestricted 44,286,569 33,036,664 46,211,521 47,801,880 62,545,689 80,967,133 49,140,980 10,605,816 (17,103,272) (50,253,891

Total pnmary government net assets. - $_174,401,225 $ 179,857,286

$ 219645934 § 260,807,078 § 270,941,759

$ 305473164 $_ 312253231 $_314447,279 $_ 281,687,590 $ 249,730,472




GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Expenses
General povernment, - % 17,788,044 § 19132571 $ 20,594,439 §  19,275760 $ 24,609,259 § 20,617,999 $  25791,496 § 22581716 §$ 24,623,302 $ 26,974,952
Public safety....ccoooiiiiiiiiiinn 45,465,764 40,635,284 40,102,814 41,690,193 43,062,252 44,207,931 48,896,370 52,614,816 52,168,801 55,800,259
Education...ccociviiminiiiiiiinians 134,259,240 157,020,633 162,268,826 175,722,669 181,638,581 188,026,627 218,716,994 236,024,500 245,946,308 252,413,006
Public works...cooveiiiiin 18,502,301 18,987,391 19,755,181 23,440,299 21,666,417 21,643,562 25,208,763 27,229,098 26,138,843 28,410,758
Health and human services.. ... 10,378,352 9,119,333 8,470,667 8,864,530 8,979,409 9,273,626 9,980,301 10,463,388 10,672,057 10,757,372
Culture and recreation. ... 11,873,650 11,805,253 12,252,669 14,253,032 13,802,334 13,471,254 15,864,538 16,806,140 16,245,112 15,092,035
. . . . . 24,080 . ]
2,122,459 2,055,115 2,121,882 2,570,332 2,350,756 2,237,287 2,494,422 4,375,013 7,234,167 7,670,746
Total eXpenses.......iiviiiiiiine oo _ 240,389,810 258,755,580 265,566,478 285,816,815 296,109,008 299.478,286 346,976,964 370,094,671 383,028,590 397,119,128
Program Revenues
Charges for services.. - 18,114,260 19,697,646 19,253,150 20,056,263 21,298,907 22,854,391 21,185,123 21,413,394 20,969,889 21,915,225
Operating grants and contrbubions, ., 40,775,454 44,209,235 43,365,401 48,562,260 50,529,662 54,150,398 60,500,259 66,344,326 65,706,164 66,976,636
Capital grants and contobutions....,., 6,420,028 2,686,298 1,810,615 36,589,529 642,315 11,118,572 21,684,895 30,179,116 1,960,084 1,764,258
Total program revenues... 65,309,742 66,593,179 64,429,166 105,208,052 72,470,884 88,123,361 103,370,277 117,936,836 88,636,137 90,656,119
Net (expense)/evenue.... ... ioiuiiin _(175,080,068)  (192,162401) (201,137,312) (180,608,763) (223,638,124) (211,354,925 (243,606,687) _(252,157,835) (294,392,453) (306,463,009}
General Revenues and
Other Changes in Net Assets
Real estate and personal
property taxes, .. ........ 160,622,246 178,891,217 187,446,868 192,457,450 200,966,839 209,105,186 211,886,334 226,800,860 232,774,689 239,761,554
Motor vehicle and other
exCHe ey, a 10,108,340 10,006,839 10,537,142 11,202,714 10,803,654 10,396,428 10,859,789 10,479,922 9,860,220 10,541,624
Hotel/motel taxes.,...icivoooe.. 1,291,950 1,151,838 851,157 979,194 1,060,052 1,138,921 1,103,549 1,108,199 1,168,095 1,588,882
Meal taxes - - - - - - - - 382,934 1,308,191
Penalties and interest on taxes 791,560 1,027,184 957,072 1,166,429 830,030 1,049,712 1,055,344 1,223,300 1,026,507 1,038,225
Payments in lieu of taxes. ........... 1,190,418 449,556 340,010 529,600 553,920 2,851,122 767,439 273,359 3,270,902 515471
Community preservation surcharges 1,522,800 1,813,888 1,829,757 1,893,219 1,963,982 2,032,942 2,114,805 2,193,701 2,288,314 2,352,389
Grants and contrbutions not
restricted to specific programs. ..., 7,319,604 6,447 414 7,572,440 7,988,751 8,353,727 9,289,181 8,705,545 7,435,280 5,891,287 5,596,391
Unrestricted investment income. . 2,185,703 1,485,848 949,028 1,687,125 3,290,981 4,757,698 4,306,424 2,610,098 934,313 454,365
Gain (Loss) on sale of
capital assets....... : . {48,600) 36,000 10,702 - - - 24,347 12,280
Other... . 214,750 665,612 1,065,172 554,259 1,133,664 1,302,478 2,522,070 1,761,048 1,752,802 3,002,856
Transfers, net.... 999,141 1,230,245 1,305,717 1,219,955 1,278,128 1,223,658 1,264,968 1,457,225 1,376,187 1,240,538
Total general revenues and
other changes in net assets. ....... 186,246,512 203,169,641 212,805,763 219,714,696 230,245,679 243,147,326 244,587,167 255,342,992 260,750,597 267,432,766
Change in netassess........cooeceeeennne §__11,166444 $_ 11,007,240 $_ 11668451 $ 39,105,933 § 6,607,555 % 31792401 § 980480 $ 3,185,157 $_ (33,641,856) $ _ (39,030,243
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Expenses
Sewer. 3 17,206,366 § 17,749,399 § 18,167,263 § 17,891,749 § 18,404,780 § 20,033,778 § 21,208,637 $ 21,879,634 $ 23347392 § 23,468,371
Water, 8,144.940 9,138,695 9,465,285 10,045,997 10,939,117 11,467,754 12,212,234 13,623,595 13,780,687 14,260,631
Total eXPEnses. ..o ovrennerreernrrerysresrnrers 25,351,306 26,888,094 27,632,568 27,937,746 29,343,897 31,501,532 33,420,871 35,503,229 37,128 079 37,729,002
Program Revenues
Chatges fae servces 31,690,684 28,393,528 27,032,083 29,763,876 32,981,905 33,084,089 39,034,143 33,761,633 38,405,378 45,171,479
O ing; prants and . 4,141,117 900,806 758,501 1,289,586 838,241 835,397 814,428 857,561 732,948 847,004
Capital grants and contobutions. ,...c..eiieieivie 300,075 609,076 51,994 159,450 329,005 1,544,708 726,855 1,260,151 245,331 24,182
‘Total ProOgTAM [EVENUEs. «cunvovrinrnriienierni 36,131,876 29,903,410 27,842,578 31,212912 34,149,151 35,464,194 40,575,426 35,879,345 39,383,657 46,042,665
Net (expense)/evenue. ......o.cieiioomimuinnieinns 10,780,570 3,015,316 210,010 3,275,166 4,805,254 3,962,662 7,154,555 376,116 2,255,578 8,313,663
General Revenues and Transfers
Gain on sale of capital 2sset.,..-...eremnrrornrenenn . - B - . - - - 2,776 -
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes. . . B - . - H : - .
Transfers, net............. (949,141 (1,131,230) (1.255717) (1,219,955) (1,278,128) (1,223,658) {1,264,968) {1,457,295) (1,376,187 (1,240,538)
Change in DEt 488€t..uuiuriiiimeninrineieerenieiens $ 9,831,429 § 1,884,086 $ (1,045707) § 2055211 $ 3527126 § 2,739,004 _$ 5,889,587 $ (1,081,109 § 882,167 $ 7,073,125




PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Total expenses. .- iiiiiiienn § 265,741,116 $ 285,643,674 § 293,199,046 § 313,754,561 $ 325918453 § 330,979,818 $ 380,397,835 §$ 405,597,900 § 420,156,669 $ 434,848,130

Total program revenues.............., 101,441,618 96,496,589 92,271,744 136,420,964 107,200,814 123,587,555 143,945,703 153,816,181 128,019,794 136,698,784
Net (expense)/revemue. ,,voooeeemrenns (164,299,498) (189,147,085) (200,927,302) (177,333,597) (218,717,639) (207,392,263) (236,452,132) (251,781,719} (292,136,875) (298,149,346)
Total general revenues, transfers

and other changes in net assets.... 185,297,311 202,038,411 211,550,046 218,494,741 228,967,551 241,923,668 243,322,199 253,885,767 259,377,186 266,192,228

Change in net agsets..

$__20997.873 §_ 12891326 §_ 10622744 $_ 41,161,144 $ 10249912 $_ 34531405 § 6,870,067 §

2,104,048 $ (32,759,689) $ (31,957,118)




GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2002 2003 2004 205 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2001 (1)
General Fund
Reseovedi.oiininne § 4080296 § 4049314 § 5125252 5 3696513 § 4071720 § BESATI4 S 3001164 5 4595043 § 546,263 § -
Unreserved.. 11,349,447 13,111,188 12,161,196 10,125,954 16,117,152 19,724,693 16,112,052 15,574,235 13,366,282 5
Resmcred. . . 3 : < . 2 : ) 928,722
Comnutted. . - - 14,877,088
. Bad 41
Unassigned. . - . 14,123,323
Total general fund..ovvviecinnnnieen § 1543843 § 17160502 §_ 17286448 § 13822467 §_20200872 §_ 23600407 §_19433216 § 20169278 §__ 19312545 §__ 30,773,574
All Other Governmental Funds
Retttvetds crassionessenerammmnamsmserie § 05000 5 28792926 5 4675240 §  TA88858 § 7333993 §  GIBLESS § TO0HTIR §  H153969 § 25926689 §
Unieserved, reparted i
Special revenue funds,, 7237304 7,369,358 8,108,905 7651781 6,828,092 7,213,248 10,478,029 13,253,60M 10,704,933 -
Capital projects funds... (11417,544) (46,879,322 (39,972,245) (9421,471) 1,450,147 17,319,824 38,560,162 93,303,737 28,167,213 -
Permanent funds 977,907 923,15 868,171 1,012,798 a6 925,527 A17.614 30,678 740,024 “
Nonspendable. - - . . - H - - - 443,570
Restnoted....... - E - . - B 28,969,163
Commtted - & . . . . i HB6,E9
Unassigmed.. ... (354.498)

Total all other governmental funds. ... § __ (2407303 § "}I‘.’iﬁl?ﬂt § ’@aw!gg S__ 6431966 5 16486693 §_ 31640454 S_57760.583 §_VIS447988 §__ 65538850 § __ 29.067.129

(1) Startng in fiscal year 2011 governmental fund balances are bewg eported in secardance with Governmental Accounting Stanilards Boaed Statement #540uwl Blawe Reporting and Gasersiseental Fusd Type Deforitions.



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST NI

REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes.........
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes. ............
Hotel/motel tax

Payments in lieu of taxes,,
C preservation
Charges for secvices..
Intergovemmental

Special assessments. ..
Penalties and interest on taxes.
Licenses and permits.

Fines and fotfeitures. .

Contabutions, ...

Investment income...
Miscellaneous/other..

TOTAL REVENUES,, .. c0oiiimiieminis

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General povernment,,
Public safety.
Education,,
Public works .
Health and human services
Culture and recreation.
Retirement benefits.
Property and liability insurance.
Claims and judgments..,,
Health insurance subsidy.

Otheruizii s

State and county chzrg:s

Debt service:
Interestummiitniiinir s B R s

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. . ...1e00 001

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES.. vages

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in..
Proceeds of bonds znd notes
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes, .
Sale of capital assets,
Transfers out.........

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....

EXTRAORDINARY ITEM
Proceeds of structured settlemnent conteact.. . uwveyvesivasicin;

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........ccovvnviuiin

DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES AS A PERCENTAGE
OF NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES. ......coevnrorenyens

2002 2003

2004

FISCAL YEARS

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

. $ 160,230,063 § 179,025,142

$ 187,056,486 $

192,554,388 § 200,165,525 §$ 207,245,638 $ 211435422 § 224,437,442

200

2011

$ 233726177 § 240,132,647

9,848,559 10,645,450 10,258,795 11,467,867 11,298,282 10,197,596 11,131,712 10,098,579 10,222,534 10,463,796
1,291,950 1,151,838 851,157 979,194 1,060,052 1,138,921 1,103,549 1,108,199 1,168,095 1,588,882
R . . . . . - 382,934 1,308,191
309,695 377,867 340,010 394,563 418,202 411,841 158,957 489,108 3,095,059 439,721
1,522,800 1,768,225 1,830,144 1,878,001 1,978,999 2,027,379 2,107,392 2,207,442 2,296,523 2,365,422
9,992,038 11,242,611 11,847,663 11,765,228 11,895,186 14,110,021 14,088,742 14,209,678 14,821,694 14,674,078
49,874,632 53,219,152 55,057,266 85,837,606 60,266,994 75,564,011 18760,492 122,879,420 75443469 73,856,678
- - - - - 215,216 157,281 218,438 158,481 254,638
791,560 1,027,184 957,072 1,225,224 830,030 1,049,712 1,055,344 1,223,300 1,026,507 1,038,224
4,485,956 4,566,185 4,896,721 4,991,489 7,172,004 5,764,582 4,926,179 4,575,496 4,564,508 5,523,613
1,820,973 1,717,200 1,916,239 1,987,816 2,002,406 1,850,503 1,899,661 2,022,175 2,101,518 1,907,471
978,344 1,368,799 645,007 1,462,588 1,187,036 796,807 1,395,023 1,320,527 1,185,340 1,382,243
1,695,643 1,315,562 1,031,017 1,985,227 3,362,563 4,960,859 4,435,423 2,642,189 1,016,818 554,473
945,986 1,278,662 678,304 588,220 1,326,054 947,985 1,813,990 1,686,507 667,540 1,676,863
243,788,199 268,703,877 _277,365971 317,117,501  _302963333 _326261071 334671167 _389,118500 351,877,197 _ 357,766,940
15,249,553 17,364,672 24,829,089 20,272,046 21,671,422 18,456,441 22,190,508 21,756,050 22,007,737 27,495,142
29706902 31,900,736 33,442,336 33,461,775 33,207,890 36,540,065 36,960,093 37,438,138 37,999,263 37,725,261
143,450,681 158,405,020 158,699,064 156983456 157,219,646 166363295 202577476 252,917,406 254,430,394 214,802,244
17,448,356 19,195,401 20,323,463 23,574,662 20,074,536 23,001,792 24,844,231 24,944,049 26357440 24,730,797
4,692,835 3,763,331 3,215,469 3,565,435 3,594,966 4,054,211 3,989,849 4,080,313 4,305,785 4,177,515
9,670,437 10,462,029 11,044,089 12,376,821 12,156,563 14,441,900 12,837,823 12,438,606 12,637,414 11,232,808
26,054,970 29,244,524 32,609,146 36,643,546 39,366,562 42,079,659 44,134,609 47,480,693 49,940,948 53,157,157
1,367,674 1,464,626 1,638,348 1,506,923 1,621,121 1,666,576 1,690,977 1,891,488 1,676,169 1,445,803
189,509 118,032 290,227 176,472 214,058 143,335 97,254 250,509 100,453 160,733
: - 173,495 B - - -
. . ; . F . 24,080 5 - -
5,142,581 5,081,422 5,086,760 5,045,783 5,209,013 5,375,365 5,512,027 5,453,169 5,619,317 5,472,487
4,884,800 4,878,900 4,281,100 5,118,200 5,595,500 8,472,050 6,146,900 7,652,100 8,548,500 9,460,500
1,716,690 1,929,122 2,744,328 2483216 2215170 2,129,315 2,378,302 3,694,574 7,019,256 7,509,703
259,574,988 283,607,817 _ 206,203,419 301304335 _302,146447 _322,807499 363384129 _419997,095 430,702,676 _397,370,170
(15,786,789) _(15103940) _ (20.837448) _ 15,813,166 816,886 3383572 _(28712962) _ (30,878,595 _ (18825479 _(39.603,230)
6,456,951 8,254,035 9,279,721 7,768,303 8,195,261 9,793,750 12,584,287 15,539,377 8,860,150 6,386,643
4,910,000 5,700,000 5,000,000 11,500,000 13,835,000 10,600,000 48,792,000 86,010,000 25548000 13,770,000
- - 375,267 406,462 293,090 92,732 262,441 1,557,255 815,357 168,147
- - - 36,000 26,446 40,752 49,909 - 42,491 36,262
(5342,810) _ (7,023,790) 7697615 _ (6,236,017) (6,639,571) (8292510) _(11,031,737) _ (13804,570) _ (1,206,381 _ (4,868 523)
6,024,141 6,930,245 6,957,373 13,474,748 15,710,246 12234724 50,656,900 89,302,062 28,050,617 15,492,529
: - - __ 2,850,000 - -
$__(0,762,648) § _ (8,173,695 $_ (13,880,075 $_ 29,287,914 § _ 16,527,132 § _ 18468296 §_ 21943938 § _ 58423467 §_(50765862) $ _(24,110,701)
25% 24% 24% 25% 26% 3% 23% 27 16% 3%
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ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Assessed Value (2)

Commercial and Total Total Estimated Assessed Value
Fiscal Residential Industrial Personal Assessed Direct Actual as a Percentage
Year Real Property Real Property Property Value Tax Rate Value (3) of Actual Value
2002 § 13,232,606,650 § 1,471,227,850 $ 166,827,900 $ 14,870,662,400 S 1077 $ 15,843,209,000 93.86%
2003 13,350,364,729 1,478,001,571 188,708,900 15,017,075,200 11.83 15,843,209,000 94.79%
2004 15,105,379,601 1,504,901,799 214,760,200 16,825,041,600 10.98 19,131,654,600 87.94%
2005 17,046,470,917 1,614,228,983 194,282,500 18,854,982,400 10.16 19,131,654,600 98.55%
2006 18,038,525,657 1,630,652,443 197,645,600 19,866,823,700 9.99 21,590,027,600 92.02%
2007 18,780,465,279 1,691,031,121 195,725,500 20,667,221,900 9.95 21,590,027,600 95.73%
2008 18,478,928,698 1,767,239,702 211,461,100 20,457,629,500 10.44 22,207,139,600 92.12%
2009 18,659,283,807 1,788,640,793 266,624,600 20,714,549,200 10.72 22,207,139,600 93.28%
2010 18,384,685,100 1,819,972,600 283,174,000 20,487,831,700 11.25 22,506,213,100 91.03%
2011 18,113,668,363 1,830,045,937 289,095,700 20,232,810,000 11.80 22,506,213,100 89.90%

Source: City of Newton Annual Tax Recap Sheet

(1) Does not include valuation affected by residential exemption

(2) As of January 1st

(3) Estimated actual value is based on equalized valuations determined biennially by the Commissioner of Revenue
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DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (1) (2)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Commetcial

Fiscal Residential and Industrial Total
Year Real Property Real Property Direct (3)
2002 994 $ 18.77 § 18.77 10.77
2003 10.92 20.63 20.63 11.83
2004 10.20 19.37 19.37 10.98
2005 9.48 18.02 18.02 10.16
2006 9.36 17.72 17.72 9.99
2007 9.33 17.64 17.64 9.95
2008 9.70 18.46 18.46 10.44
2009 9.96 19.00 19.00 10.72
2010 10.41 19.93 19.93 11.25
2011 10.90 20.89 20.89 11.80

Source: City of Newton Tax Recap Sheets
(1) Rates ate applicable to each $1,000 of assessed value

(2) Per the initiatives of Proposition 2 1/2 adopted by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts, the City cannot levy more than 2.5 percent of the total full and
fair cash value of all taxable real and personal propetty. The City's levy is also
limited in that it cannot inctease mote than 2.5 percent from the prior year, with
certain exceptions for new growth ot through overrides and exclusions adopted

by City votets.

(3) Calculated by dividing the net tax levy by total assessed value divided by 1,000
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

2011 2001
Percentage Percentage
Amount of Total Amount of Total
Taxpayer of Tax Rank Tax Levy of Tax Rank Tax Levy
Riverside Project, LLC - Office S 2,243,425 1 097% $ 1,467,687 1 1.00%
NSTAR Electric - Electric Utility 1,518,619 2 0.66% - -
Mayflower Atrium, LLC - Retail 1,455,377 3 0.63% 1,206,150 2 0.82%
Daniel Rothenberg - Retail 1,388,802 4 0.60% 848,355 3 0.58%
Verizon, New England Inc. - Telecommunications 1,150,893 5 0.50% - -
Julian Cohen & Daniel Rothenberg Trust - Retail 1,087,724 6 0.47% 810,340 4 0.55%
NS Wells Acquisitions LLC - Office 873,277 7 0.38% 718,732 f 0.49%
CHSP Newton, LL.C - Hotel 850,298 8 0.37% 767,500 5 0.52%
Thomas White Trust - Office 807,092 9 0.35% 584,722 8 0.40%
Avalon Upper Falls, LL.C - Residential 547,584 10 0.24% - -
Schroder Newton Limited Partnership - 727,308 6 0.49%
Newton Wellesley Hospital - 367,439 9 0.25%
Two Newton Place Acquistion LLC - 350,880 10 0.24%
Total 5.17% § 7,849,113 5.34%

Source: City of Newton Board of Assessors.

$ 11,923,091
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST 'TEN FISCAL YEARS

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Total

Cutrent Percent of Actual Collections
Fiscal Net Tax Tax Net Levy Subsequent Total Tax as a % of
Year Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Net Levy (1)
2002 § 160,122,038 § 158,569,112 99.03% $ 2,996,464 $ 161,565,576 100.90%
2003 177,652,048 177,072,455 99.67% 2,588,516 179,660,971 101.13%
2004 184,772,348 184,463,684 99.83% 2,193,032 186,656,716 101.02%
2005 191,516,639 189,884,213 99.15% 2,341,150 192,225,363 100.37%
2006 198,431,418 197,604,301 99.58% 1,845,616 199,449,917 100.51%
2007 205,603,998 204,425,747 99.43% 2,445,083 206,870,830 100.62%
2008 213,670,594 211,782,357 99.12% 2,220,075 214,002,432 100.16%
2009 222,124,895 221,179,256 99.57% 1,757,081 222,936,337 100.37%
2010 230,471,466 228,861,998 99.30% 1,768,005 230,630,003 100.07%
2011 238,752,520 237,347,484 99.41% - 237,347,484 99.41%

Source: Annual Tax Recap Sheet and General Ledget records

(1) Total collections can exceed 100% due to the City's conservative statutory reserve for abatements, which reduces the

net tax levy.
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RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General State General MWRA/ Total

Fiscal Obligation Pension Obligation MWPAT Primaty Per

Year Bonds Loan Bonds Toans Government Capita (1)
2002 28,793,550 § 2,600,000 § 941,250 $§ 19,164,796 $ 51,499,596 666
2003 29,614,650 2,600,000 1,080,450 27,979,244 61,274,344 790
2004 30,333,550 2,600,000 491,250 21,908,488 55,333,288 696
2005 36,715,350 2,600,000 266,250 22,627,199 62,208,799 778
2006 44,954,850 2,600,000 176,250 23,158,874 70,889,974 844
2007 49,682,800 - 80,000 24,790,065 74,552,865 903
2008 92,327,900 - 40,000 22,117,941 114,485,841 1,415
2009 170,685,800 - 6,000,000 24,259,834 200,945,634 2,418
2010 187,685,300 5 5,900,000 23,261,750 216,847,050 2,597
2011 191,994,800 - 8,275,000 21,449,014 221,718,814 2,639

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(1) See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics" schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income
and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.
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RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding:

Less: Total Net
General Resources General Percentage of Percentage of

Fiscal Obligation Restricted for Bonded Actual Taxable Estimated

Year Bonds Debt Principal Debt Value of Property (1) Personal Income (2)
2001 30,157,594 - 30,157,594 0.25% 1.33%
2002 29,734,800 - 29,734,800 0.19% 0.84%
2003 30,695,100 < 30,695,100 0.19% 0.87%
2004 30,824,800 - 30,824,800 0.16% 0.85%
2005 36,981,600 - 36,981,600 0.19% 1.01%
2006 45,131,100 - 45,131,100 0.21% 0.96%
2007 49,762,800 - 49,762,800 0.23% 1.08%
2008 92,367,900 = 92,367,900 0.42% 2.04%
2009 170,685,800 (881,707) 169,804,093 0.76% 3.66%
2010 187,685,300 (749.640) 186,935,660 0.83% 4.01%
2011 191,994,800 (683,320) 191,311,480 0.85% 4.07%

(1) See the "Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" schedule located in the Statistical
Section for propetty value data.

(2) See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics” schedule located in the Statistical Section for personal income
and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.
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DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

JUNE 30, 2011

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Qutstanding Applicable (1) Debt

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority....................... $ 6,038,990,000 4.9%/4.5% $ 277,206,694
Gty dfeCt deDt. ...t s 221,718,814

Total direct and overlapping debt. ........c.ceuiieiiii e $ 498,925,508

Sources: MWRA, City of Newton Treasurer’s Office
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LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Equalized valuation................oooeiivnininnnen. $ 22506,213,100 $ 22,506,213,100 $ 22,207,139,600 $ 22,207,139,600 $ 21,590,027,600
Normal debt limit (5% of equalized valuation)......... 1,125,310,655 1,125,310,655 1,110,356,980 1,110,356,980 1,079,501,380
Debt applicable to limit:
Total bonded debt...........co.oiiiiiiiiiiiin.., 221,718,814 216,847,050 200,945,634 114,485,841 74,552,865
Less: General obligation bonds exempted by
authority of state legislature.................... (29,724,014) (29,161,750) (30,259,834) (22,157,941) (24,870,065)
Total net debt applicable to limit................... 191,994,800 187,685,300 170,685,800 92,327,900 49,682,800
Legal debt margin. ............ocooiieici $ 933,315,855 $ 937,625,355 $ 939,671,180 § _ 1,018,029,080 $ _ 1,029,818,580
Total net debt applicable to the limit as
a percentage of normal debt limit.................. 17.1% 16.7% 15.4% 8.3% 4.6%
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Estimated Median Public
Median Per Capita Personal Family School Unemployment

Year Population Age Income Income Income Enrollment Rate (%0)

2001 77,350 387 § 45,708 3,535,513,800 $ 105,289 11,250 2.7%
2002 77,517 38.7 45,708 3,543,147,036 105,289 11,276 3.9%
2003 79,515 38.7 45,708 3,634,471,620 105,289 11,267 4.1%
2004 79,980 387 45,708 3,655,725,840 105,289 11,268 3.5%
2005 84,031 38.7 55,891 4,696,576,621 124,893 11,415 3.3%
2006 82,578 38.7 55,891 4,615,366,998 124,893 11,501 3.7%
2007 80,917 38.7 55,891 4,522,532,047 124,893 11,570 3.9%
2008 83,112 38.7 55,891 4,645,212,792 124,893 11,570 6.3%
2009 83,501 387 55,891 4,666,954,391 124,893 11,607 6.5%
2010 84,024 38.7 55,891 4,696,185,384 124,893 11,775 5.0%

Sources: Population from City census

Per capita income, median age, and median family income is from U.S Census for 2000 and 2005
Unemployment rates from Massachusetts Division of Unemployment Assistance for September of each year.
School enrollment represents October 1 total enrollment per Newton Public Schools.
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EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
LEmployees as of June 30
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Function/Program
General government.................. 133 125 129 135 139
Public safety. 373 379 362 383 388
Education........ccooevveiiiiiniininns 1195 1,268 1,283 1,217 1,198
Public works 131 139 143 143 137
Health and human setvices........... 48 48 48 50 50
Culture and recreation................ 82 93 100 102 105
WaLer. . vt 31 27 27 28 29
SEWET. tviteee e et arieeanas 32 36 36 36 34
Total.eiviii i 2,025 2,115 2,128 2,094 2,080

Source: City of Newton payroll
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal Year
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Function/Program
Public safety
Police
] Y (o7 LR 1 1 1 1 1
Vehicles. . oviviiiiiiiiiiianiiiiiiiiinnnns 69 69 69 69 69
Fire
Stations. .......coovii i 6 6 6 6 6
Firefighteing Vehicles...................... 9 9 9 9 9
Education
Public school buildings......................... 21 21 21 21 21
Public wotks
Streets (miles)........ooocoiiiiiii 310 310 310 310 310
Streetlights. .......ovveieeeees s 8,595 8,595 8,595 8,595 8,595
Trafic signals..........oooeviiiiiiiii .. 98 98 98 98 98
Parking meters. .....vvvevoveseoeeeeeeeeee. ., 1,671 1,671 1,671 1,671 1,671
Culture and recreation
Public libraties
Main libraty..............cc 1 1 1 1 1
Branch libraties. ....oiviiiiiiinniinnnnne, - - - 4 4
Park & playground Actreage.................... 590 590 590 590 590
Outdoor swimming facilities................... 2 2 2 2 2
Indoor swimming facilities..................... 1 1 1 1 1
Public street trees 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Water
Water mains (miles)........ccovveiniiiininn. 300 300 300 300 300
Fire hydrants...............c.oc, 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400
Stotage capacity (thousands of gallons). ... 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000 26,000,000
Sewer
Sanitaty sewets (miles).......................... 300 300 300 300 300
Sewer pump stations............veveeeneaiannn, 10 10 10 10 10
Stormdrains (miles)................o.caL 324 324 324 324 324

Sources: Various depattments of the City of Newton
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